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Sheriff that was employed to divide the City, and
to raife Men within the City, having difcourfe with
Mr. Cornifp about the fettling that matter, he liked
it very well, and promis’d he would be affifting to
him, and you may eafily prefume M. Goodenotgh
the Under-Sheriff was very privy to all the Aéts of
Mr. Cornifp at that time, We will call our Wit-

nefles. Mr, Rumfey.
Mr, Cor. I defire the Witneffes may be kept

apart.
PMr. At Geir. They will prove it upon you at
two times.

Mr. Cor. You will find me guilty of neither;
I am as innocent as any Perfon in this Court.

Mr. A, Gein. So was my Lord Ruffel to his
Death, Mr, Cornifh : do you remember that ¢

Mr. Cor. Mr., Attorney General, 1 fpeak 1n
the Prefence of the great God, Iam as innocent as
any Man in this Court.

Mr. 4. Gen. Mr. Ruinfey, pray will you give
my Lord and the Jury an account of the Infur-
rection that was to have been in Englaad, in the

late King’s Time, and what concern the Prifoner
had 1n that Affair,

Mr., Rumnfey. My Lord, about the latter end of
Ofiober, or the beginning of Neveinber, my Lord
Shafteshury deflired me to go to Mr. Sheppaid’s Houle,
where there was a Meeting of thofe Gentlemen that I
did name before, the Duke of Moumonth, my Lord
Ruflel, my Lord Grey, Sir Thowmas Arinftrong, and
Mr. Fergufon, and Mr. Sheppard, and accordingly I
went; I came late there my felf, for they were juft
going away, when I came 1. I told them my Mef-
Iage, and they told me they were difappointed by
Mr, Trenchard. 1 had not been there a quarter of
an hour, but we were going away, and Mr. Shep-
pard was call’d for by his Man, and he went down
Stairs and brought up Mr, Coraifh 5 and when he
came into the Room, he told the Gentlemen there
met, that Mr. Alderman Cornifh was come ;3 fo as
foon as Mr, Alderman Coer#ifh came into the Room,
he made his Excufe to the Gentlemen that he did not
come fooner, and that he could not ftay wich them ;
the Reafon why he could not ftay with them, he told
them, was, that they were to meet that Night about
their Charter, and there was never another Alder-
man in Town but himfelf, and therefore he could
net {tay, there was 2 Neceffity of an Alderman to
be there, And upon that Mr. Fergufoi opened his
Bofom, and from under his Stomacher pull’d out a
Paper ; they told him, they had that Paper read,
and defired to read it to him: Mr. Fergufon read it,
and Mr. Sheppard held the Candle all the while that
it was reading 3 and after they had read it, they afked
hixﬂ how he liked it, and he did fay he liked it very
well,

L. C. J. Fones. What were the Contents of that
Paper ?

Mr. Rumfey. The firft part of it was complain-
ing of the Mifgovernment of the late King 5 there
were two Points in it that I do remember very well,
that they would declue for : One was Liberty of
Cenfeience 5 and Potlicr was, That all thofe that
would affitt 1n that Infurrection, that had any Lands
of the Church, or the King’s, in the late War,
fhould have them reftored to them.,

L. C. . Fones. Was there any thing in that Pa-
per that did engage any body to an Infurreftion ?

Mr. Ruinfey. 1 did not hear all the Paper, nor
did T take great notice of it 3 but thofe two Points
Were i 1t, to engage them that would affift,

Mr. A, Gen. What was the Effe& of the Paper ?
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 Mr. Rumfey. It was to be a Declaration upon the
Rifing ; when the Rifing was to have been, i
was to have been difperfed abroad.

Mr. A4t Gen. Mr. Ruinfey, was there a2 Rifino
intended at that time ? 2

Mr. Rumfey. Yes, and they met there for that
Purpofe ; and Mr, Zrenchard was the Man to
manage the Bufinefs about Tawiton, and he difap-
pointed then.

Mr. 4t Gen. What was your Meilage from nyr
Lord Shefteshury to them ? '

Mr, Rumfey. It was to know what iffue thev
had come to about the Rifing, and to prefs them

L D:
to ir, for fuch a matter as that was not to be long

kept a-foot 5 either let them come to a Refolution
to rife, or let it fall for good and all,

Mr. At Gen. After Mr. Cornifh had expreffed
his liking of this Bufinels and Declaration, what
follow’d ?

Mr. Rewnfey. He did fay he liked 1t very well ;
and that poor Intereft he had, he would join with
1T,

M. At. Gen, Speak that again,

Mr. Rumfev, Mr, Cornifh did fay, he did like
the Declaration, and with the {mall Intereft he
had, he would appear to back it, or Words to that
Eftett.

Mr, Cor. My Lord, fince he takes the Free-
dom to charge me with thefe things, I never was
at a Confult 1n my Days.

Mr. Jult. Levinz, You were not then at M,
Sheppard’s that Night ?

Mr. At Gen. Wl you deny you were at Mr,
Sheppard’s that Night ?

Mr. Cor, I do declare, T never was at My,
Sheppard’s in any Confult in my Life, as he de-
clares 3 but I have had great dealings with Mr.
Sheppard,

L. C. F. Jones. You fhall be allowed your Li-
berty 5 pray, Sir, be not tranfported with Paflion.
I doubt, before this time, notwithftandine the
Confidence you feem to have, there are few be-
lieve you to be as innocent as any Perfon prefent.

Mr. At Geno You will hear more from his
Oracle.

Mr. Jult. Levizz, Were you there when my Lord
Ruffel was there ?

Mr. Cor. 1 was not there when my Lord
Ruflel was there, as I remember.

L. C. 7. Jones. Were you prefent, hear, hear,

Sir @ were you prefent at Sheppard’s when Furgufon
was there ?

Mr, Cor. My Lord, I have been at Shep-
pard’s feveral times, but I never liked the Man
for his Morals, and therefore never liked to be in
his Company.

L. C. . Jones. He pulld the Paper out of his

Bofom.

Mr, Cor, It is as great an Untruth as ever
was told in the World 3 but, my Lord, feeing he
takes this Frecdom to charge me, I defire o
know whether he ftands here as a lawful Evi-
dence ?

L. C. §. Jones. What is your Exception

Mr. Cor. He {tands charoed guilty of Trea-
{on. '

L. C. 7. Fones. That it {elf does not difzble him
to be a Witnels,

Mr. Cor. Before he hath his Pardon, my
Lord ?

L. C. F. Jones. 1 dont know whether he hath
his Pardon or not,

Mr,
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M. At Ges. Therc is 1o Inditment at all upon
him. -
Mr. Jult. Leunz. If he were convicted, or out-
lawed of Treafon, it were fomething ; an innocent

be charged, |
Mi’l\ﬁrfnlgmjgy- M}% Lord, Mr. Corunifh and I have

been very well acquainted thefe fourteen Years or
thereabouts, and have had great concerns together s
for during the time that I managed the King’s Cu-
foms at Briffel, fix Years I was there ColleCtor, he
Jid return berween three and four hundred thoufand
Pounds for me ; he is a very honeft Gentleman, and
I appeal to himfelf, whether I take delight toappear

here to accufe him. _
Mr. Cornifh. But Colonel, what is the reafon that

you have not accufed me all this while?

Mr. Ruisfey. Mr. Cornifh, I hope that is not an
Objection, I think I fuffer for 1t and not you ; it
was Compaffion, and the fume Compaffion makes
you deny it to fave others; if you would deal
openly, I make no doubt, but you might partake
of the King’s Favour yet, as wellas I have done.

Mr. Cornifb. 1 do thankfully accept of his Maje-
fty’s Favour at all rimes, but I thank God I'am in-
nocent in this matier, and do not ftand in need of it,

Mr, Ruanfey. And you fay 1 accule you falfely s
then Mr. Cornifh, you don’t ftand there, nor I here,

Mr, At Gen, Pray, will you afk him any Que-

ftions? _
L. C.¥. Fones. But pray don’t enter into a long

FHarangue,

Mz, Cornifh. My Lord, I do humbly conceive,
that he does not ftand here as an Evidence.
L. C.F. Fones. You have the Judement of the

Court for that,

Mr. Cornifh. Before he 1s pardon’d ?

L.C.¥. Foues. Idon’t talk of a Pardon; what
Record have you againft him?

Mr, At Ger. You were prefent and heard that
refolv’d before in my Lord Ruffel’s Cafe,

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord, Mr. Rumfey did upon
his Evidence give in, and he was obliged by his
Oath to fpeak the whele Truth —

L. C. }. Fones. Now you are making your Speech,
it 15 not your proper time; you fhall urge any
thing againft Mr, Rumfey’s Evidence, or the Cre-
dibility of it when it is your time,

Mr. Coruifb, My Lord, Ido here defign i,

Mr, 4. Gen. Mr. Rumfey, pray recolle@t ; had
you never any Difcourfe with him at other times?

Mr. Rumfey. We have had a long Acquaintance,
fourteen Years 3 but in my Life, I never heard him
fpeak any thing before or fince that, to my know-

ledge.
Mt. 4. Gea, Mr. Cornifp, will you afk him any
more Queltions ?

Mt. Cornifh. I defire to know ——

Mr. Remfey. What would you know 2

Mr. Cornifb. Whether did you and I difcourfe of
thefe matters at any other time ?

Mr. Rumfey. No.

Mr. Juft. Levinz. You muft not ftand to dia-
logue between one another, bur fpeak as we may
hear you.

L. C. 7. Fones. You fhall argue if you will, when
you come to make your Defence in the proper time,
the Improbability of any thing that he hath faid, or
the Impofibility, or Repugnancy to any Truth, or
any Ividence that you can give to the contrary ;
but I fay, this is not your time,

Mr. Cornifh. [ never was ar any Confult in my Life,

Me, At Gen, That is 2 Name he olves 1L ; was
you never at a Meering about a Rifing ?
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M. Goodenongh {wiotn, |

Mr. At Gen. Mr. Goodenough, are you acquainted
with Mr. Cornifh ¢

Mr. Goodenough, Yes, Sir.

Mr. Cornifp. My Lord, 1 humbly conceive he is
not a Witnefs, be ftands indicted upon an Out-
lawry; I can produce it,

Mr. 42, Gen, We do admit it.

L. C. 7. Fones. They admit your Exception, and
will anfwer it by producing a Pardon.

Mr. Cornifb. 1 need not fay any thing againt
him, he is known well enough.

Mr. Juft, #ithins. He was your Under-Sheriff,
Mr., Coraifh.

Mr. Cornifb. Much againft my Will 5 T oppos’d
him to the utmoft ; and this is nothing but Malice
againit me,

[Mr. Goodenongh’s Pardon read. ]

Mr. Cornifb. 1 do humbly conceive this can’t be
done, but by a Writ of Error, or an A of Par-
lament,

L.C.¥. Fones. Can’t the King pardonan Outlawry ?

Mr. Juft. #ithins, That is no piece of Law, I
am fure of it.

Mr, A1, Ge. Goodenough, pray what do you know
of a Rifing intended againft the late King?

Mr. Goodenough. All that I have to give an ac-
count of, s a Dilcourfe ——

Mr. At Gen, Anfwer what Tak you; what do
you know of a Rifing by others?

Mr. Goodenough. 1 know nothing of that Bulinefs
of my Lord Ruffef’s ; but there was a Defign to rife,
Sir, in London 3 we defign’d to divide it into twenty
parts, and out of each part to raife five hundred Men,
if it might be done, to make an Infurre@ion.

L. C. 7. Jones. What were thefe Men to do when
they were ratfed ?

Mr. Goodenongh, They were to take the Tower,
and drive the Guards out of Town.

Mr, A, Gen. Pray, acquaint my Lord and the
Jury what Difcourfe you had with Mr. Cornifb.

Mr. Goodenough. Before this was agreed on by
us, I chanced to be at Alderman Cornift’s 5 Sir,
fard I, now the Law won’t defend us, tho’ we
be never {o innocent; but fome other way is to
be thought on, Upon this, faid he, I wonder the
City is fo unready, and the Country fo ready.
I {atd to him again, Sir, thereis fomething thonght
of to be done here; but, fays I, in the firft place,
the Tower ought to be feized, where the Maga-
zine 1s : upon this he made a little Paufe, and faid;
I will do what I can, or what good I can. To this
purpofe heanfwered me ; and about fome time after,
he met me upon the Exchange, and afked me how
Affairs went? which [ underftood to be relating
to what we difcours’d ; this is all that Tcanfay. I
never met after this, but only upon the Exchange,

he afk’d how matters went.

Mr, 4t Gen. Was there any Difcourfe about
ferzing the Guards?

Mr., Goodeirough, 1 have told jou the whole Dif-

courfe,

M. A, Gen. Pray, repeat it.

Mr. Goodenongh. 1 told him, fays I, Sir, now
it is plain, the Law will not defend us, though we
are never {o mnocent, or to this purpofe.

Mr. §ol. Gen, Upon what occalion was that Dif-

courfe ?
Mr. Goodenough. Every thing going againft us.
Mr, 8ol Gen. How?
Mr. Goodenongh. This was in Eafter Term, as

near as I can remember, §3.
Mr,
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Mr, At Gen, Ay 83. . _
Mr. Goodenough.  Therefore, fays I, fomething

elfe is to be thought on, fome Courfe elfe is to be

taken : to this purpofe he anfwer’d me, I wonder
the City is fo unready, and the Country fo ready.

L. C. Baros., What Country ¢

Mr. Goodenough. He had been in the Country,
as T underftood before, that I don’t know.

My. Cornifb. What time was this, Sir?

Mr. Goodenongh, In Eafter Term, or thereabouts,
g3. I told him then, Sir, there is {omething
thousht of to bz done here in London, to this
purpofe 5 but fays I, in the firft place, the Tower
is to be feized, where the Magazine is ;3 fo he an-
{wered me, after fome Paufe (he paufed upon i)
fays he, I will do what good I can, or what I can,
to this purpofe.

Mr, Sol. Gen. Did he feem to diflike feizing the

Tower at all ?
Mr. Goodenongh, Not at all, Sir, it did notap-

pear fo to me.

Mr. Sol. Gen. 'What Difcourfes had you any o-
ther time ?

Mr. Goodeirongh, 1 never had any Difcourfe of
this matter, or any thing relating to it at any other
time, but only when I came upon the Excheige,
how things went.

Mz, Sel. Gen. And did you give him an account ?

Mr. Goodeinongh, 1 faid, welll 1 gave him a
general Anfwer, for that was not a place to talk n,
and that I apprehended of this Difcourfe,

Mr. §ol. Gen, Had you any other matters ?

Mr. Goodenongh. I'had fome other matters of ma-
niging the Riot, that was brought againft him, and
feveral others, and my felf alfo,

L. C. 7. Fones. Will you afk him any Queftions,
Mr. Corifh ?

Mr. Cornifh, Whether his Pardon be allowed ?

L.C. 7. Sones. We heard it read.

Mr. Corirzfh. 'This being a Court inferiour to the
King’s Bench e

L.C.}. Founes. Here isa Pardon under the Great
Seal, Sir, and here is a Pardon of that Offence
which you charge him with, and which you mke
to be a fufficient Exception againit his being a Wit-
nefs, we are fatisfed it 15 fufficient.

Mr. Cornif. Pray, my Lord, is not this Pardon
{pecial ?

L.C. 7. Foues. What do you mean by that ?

Mr. Cornifb. Becanfe, my Lord, he hath been
in an At of Treafon fince ; therefore, my Lord,
if he be not pardoned of that

L.C. }. Joues. No, no, he isnot indicted for
it; we can’t try him now for any Treafon of that
nature.

Mr. Cornifh, T humbly conceive he hath not had
a Pardon for his laft Treafon.

L. C. 7. Foues. T mult tell you, if he be guilty
of Treafon, till he is tried and convifted, it doth
not take off his Teltimony.,

Mr. Corn. Pray, Mr. Goodeough, remember
all your Tricks, whether or no, was there any
body prefent when this Difcourfe paft between you
and 2

M. Goedeiough. No body but you and 1.

Mr. Cori. You were not {o converfant in my
Houfe, I know.

Mr. Goodeirongh. Sir, T came to you about the
Bufinefs of the Riot.

Mr. Corir. How many times might you be at my
Houfe? Not three times, I believe.

L. G Jones, You afk a Queflton, and anfier
1t your {clt. 1

136. Trial of Henry Cornith, Efg;

1 Jac 1L

Mr. Corsz. My Lord, I defire to know, where

it was thefe Words were {poke.

Mr. Goodenongh. Sir, in your lower Room.

Mr, Corsn. In my own Houfe ?

Mr. Goodenongh, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Corn. And no Company there ?

Mr. Goodenough. And no Company.

Mr, Corn. ‘That is very ftrange, and that after-
wards you fhould meet me, and difcourfe this matter
again,

Mr. Gosdenongh. No, Sir, all T fay, it this, you
met me upon the Exchange, and afked me how
things went,

Mr, Cern. That might be in reference to the
Suit you were managing for the Rioters; I know
of nothing clfe.

Mr. Jult, 77ithins, And I tell you, Mr. Cornifh,
that was a Branch of the Plot; ke that from me.

Mr, Corz. My Lord, he was Attorney in that

Caufe, and I might afk, how matters went in refe-
rence to that Tuial; but I take God to witnels, no-
thing elfe, as I remember.

L. C.F. Fones. But here you fay, it wasa ftrange
thing that Mr. Gesdenongh and you fhould be in a
Room alone, when you acknowledge him to have
been the Attorney 1n a Caufe of mighty Confequence
among you.

Mr. Corn. He was concern’d for all, and I
ftedfaftly believe he was never with me twice about
that Suit 3 but he hath been at Sir Thowas Player’s s
there he often went about that Afiair; and I do not
believe that ever he came to me about that Bufi-
nefs.

L. C.F. Foues. Is that all you have to fay to
him, Si?

Mr. At Gen, Will you afk him any more Que-
ftions ? 1f not, go on, we have done. .

My, Corir, My Lord, Colonel Ruzfey 1s a Per-
fon that hath acquainted the Court, that there
was a long acquaintance between him and me, I
have ferved his Majefty in my Place, and do it to
this day. My Lord, itis a very improbable thing,
that I fhould meet him at Mr. Sheppard’s, where 1
faw fuch wicked hormble Doings 3 and that he
fhould never afterwards fpeak to me about that
Affair. He came to my Houfe, I remember, about
the return of fome Monies for his own private Ulfe ;
for he was then out of his Majefty’s Employment.
He does declare here, he never fard 2 Word to
me, never {pake to me any thing of it but there.
My Lord, it 1s a very ftrange thing, that there
fhould be fuch a Contrivance to ruin the King and
Kingdom, and that I fhould be one in this Bufi-
nefs, this Villany, and not be confulted how to
carry 1t on; 1t 1s very ftrange, they fhould fee me,
and never faya Word of it afterwards tome. My
Lord, I hope, and you Gentlemen of the Jury,
that you will confider the Improbability of it it
15 as improbable as any thing in the World. T hope
it doth appear to your Lordfhip and ‘this Bench,
that there 1s no probability in it; he owns we had
a great deal of Freedom; he owns we were ac-
quainted for fourteen Years together, and that I
fhould bz at fuch a wicked villainous place once,
and fee him {o often afterwards, and never {peak of
it, and never fay any thing of it, the Great God of
Heaven and Earth, before whom I ftand, knows
that I know nothing of all that he hath {worn a-
aainft me: He muft {fwear thele things to fave his
own Life ; 1f he will take away my Life, he will
take away many others, without queftion, if he
can fave his own, I fhould not uvree this, but God

1S
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is my Witnefs, 1 never heard any thing of Contri-
vance or Plot, till my Lord Rufel’s Trial: Thefe
are very ftrange things, i fo be fo good a Govern-
ment as we have, fhall not prote_& fuch innocent
Men ; truly, my Lord, I am as innocent as any
Man in this Court, if I were to appear before the
Great God in Judgment this Moment,

L.C. ¥ Fones. Look you, Mr. Cornifh, X would
with all my heart allow you all the Liberty ima-
ginable, to fpeak pertinently to your Defence, but
to oppofe Confidence, and very great Affurance,
upon your being in the Prefence of Almighty God,
againft exprefs Teftimony, i1s the weakeft Defence
that can be ; if you have any Witnefles, if you have
any thing to urge againft the Teltimony of any of
thefe Perfons, befides the Improbability of it,
which you have often mentioned over and over
again, you fhall be heard with all Patience: if
you have Witneffes that you will call, we will hear

them likewife.
Mr, Cors. My Lord, I think his Treafon be-
ing confeffed, and not being pardoned
Mr. Jult. Withins, Is that all you will fay,

Mr. Cornifh ¢
Mr. Corn. I hope you will bear a little with

me, I am highly concerned.
L. C. . Fones. You are fo.
Mr. Corn. T have had no help, and it is well

known, I am not fkilful in the Law. I don’t un-
derftand what to fay, nor how to plead my Caufe,
having no help, nor no affiftance allowed me, My
Lord, it is a moft improbable thing that I thould
be at this place, where this horrible Wickednefs
was, and that it fhould lie all this time never men-
tion’d : I have been, my Lord, feveral times in Pri-
fon this Year, and I think my Virwe will be fo
much the greater, to be again and again purged,
as I have been 5 that which hath pleafed me very
much, hath been my Innocency : Would any Man
in my Circumftances have ftaid and continued in
this Nation, 1f he had not known himfelf perfectly
innocent ? Others have gone away, and I could as
frecly have gone, after [ have been taken up four
times.

L. C. J. Fones. Idoubt there are a great many are
not gone, Mr. Rumfey hath told you plainly, it was
Compaffion to you, though Injury to himfelf, that
he did not accufe you fooner. |

Mr. Juft. Levinz. Here 1s Gaunt ftaid here till
within this Week or Fortnight, and never ftirr'd.

Mr. Juft, Wibins, Mr., Cornifb, my Lord hath
put you in the right Way for your Defence, if you
can invalidate the Teftimony, or call any Wit-
nefies, do it; but to talk at this rate, you may do
1t this Month (for ought I know) and *twill fignify
no more than 1t hath done already.

Mr, Corn. The Improbability is fo manifeft.

L. C. #. jones, Isitenough to fay, Improbabili-
ty, Lmprobability, Improbability ? Is that enongh?
Have you faid any more ?

Mr. Corn. My Lord, I have faid this, that
this Gentleman that fhould be fo converfant in the
Town, I'in his Company, and he in mine; is it
not improbable ? e

Mr. Juft. Levinz. Look you, Mr. Cornifh, 1 will
tell you what the Method is, to give Evidence firft,
and then apply it in fumming up the Evidence; if
you were fumming ‘it up, the Court hath all the
reafon in the World to hear you 3 if you have Evi-
dence, the Way is to give your Evidence, and
apply it if you can,

Mr. Juft. #ithius. Have you any Witnefles ?
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Mr. Corn. Againft Mr. Rumfey 2
M. Juft. Witbins. Againft any body, Mr, Rum

Sey if you will,

Mr. Corn. My Lord, I humbly tonceive that
this Witnefs, Mr. Rumféy, ought not to fland; if
your Lordfhip fatishes me, I fhall be very shuch
obliged to your Lordthip: He declared upoh his
Qath, when he fwore againft my Loid Ruffel, that
he had nothing elfe to Twear againft any Man,

Mr. Jult. Withins. How does it appear?

Mr, Corn. I will produce it, if your Lordfhip
pleafe to give me time, _

Mr. Juft, Withins, Burafterwards he difcoverd a
areat deal more.

L.C.¥. Fones. Look you, Sir, if you have any
Exception againft Mr, Rumfey’s Teftimony, we will
hear you, propound a legal Exception.

Mr, Corn. My Lord, I humbly concéive, he
not producing his Pardon, his Evidencé is hot good.

L. C. 7. Fones. You have had the Opinion of the
Court. -

Mr, Cori. If your Lotdfhip over-tule me.

L. C. 7. Fones. We muft over-rule you.

Mr. Gorn. If that will not be granted me,

L. C. F. Foues, Then you have no more to fay ?

Mr., Corn, But for my Innocency, for that (I
know) I have enough to fay. '

L. C. ¥. Fones. That is in your own Brealt, the
Jury can’t fee that s will you call any Witnéffes ¢

Mr, Corn. 1 have fome Witnefles to call hére,
as to Mr. Guodenongh, my Lord.

L. C. }. Fones, What is your Exception againft
Mr. Goodeirongh ?

Mr, Cors. My Lord, it was my moft great -
Unhappinefs and Misfortune, that this Goodesongh

was admitted into the Office of Under-Sheriff ¢ and

my Lord, that I might fuliy convince your Lord-

fhip and this Court, all that I defire is, fome few

Men may be call’d ; befides, I think there are a
thoufand, 1 may fay, that will bear me witnefs, I
did oppofe him.

L.C.}. Fones, But pray, Mr. Cornifb, is that an
Exception that he does not fwear true, becaufe you
would nat let him be your Under-Sheriff ?

Mt. Corn. It looks like Malice.

L.C. ¥. Fones. You did admit him to be Under-
Sheriff, all the World knows that,

Mr. Corn. But I can fet forth that I did oppofe
him, and the Reafons why 1 did oppofe him.

L. C. ¥. Fones. You may, if you will, give Evi-
dence, what an Inftrument he was to you, and how
he ferved you in your Office, when you were Sheriff:
is this to the purpofe ?

Mr. Corn. Yes.
L. C. ¥. Itis not at all the purpole.

Mr. Corn. My Lord, 1 was impofed upon by
my Partner,
L. C. F. Fones. You could not be impofed upon,

you had equal Power with your Partner.

Mr, Corn. If your Lordfhip pleafes to confider

the Temper of that Man,

L. C.¥. What Man? |
Mr, Corn. Bethel, 1 mean, what an obftinate

Man he was. My Lord, I hope I can purge my

felf greatly in thefe matters.
L. C.¥. Foues. If you will, tell to what you will

call them.

Mr. Corn. The great Averfion that 1 had.

Mr. At. Gen. We will adinit that he did oppofs
him, becanfe he would have had more Money.

M, Juft. /Vithins, You have heard the Opinion

Mr,

of the Court,
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Mr, Juft—It is not material whether he came
in with or without your Confent. |
 Mr. Corn. Mr. Gosfright, will you be pleas’d
to declare to my Lord, how I was impos’d upon
by fuffering Goodznough to be Under-Sheriff?

Mr. Gosfright. My Lord, after that Bethel and
Cornifb were chofen Sheriffs, they had fome Meet-
ings together concerning an Under-Sheriff'; Mr. Be-
thel he named Guodenough, Mr. Cornifp he named
another 5 they could not agree, the Difference did
arife in three or four, or more Days Debate, as I
remember, and Mr, Cornifh did tell Sheriff Bethel,
he was refolved if Goodenough were Under-Sheriff
he wouid fine, and not hold, and told him the rea-
fon why : He faid he was a2 Man that he would not
truft 2 Hair of his Head with, and he had no Know-
ledge he believ’d of the Bufinefs; but withal, he
told him, he was a Man obnoxious to the Govern-
ment, and he was an 1ll Man, and had done ill
things, and he would not truft his Eftate and his
Reputation in the hands of fuch an Under-Sheriff.
Bethel e infifted upon it, and he was refolved he
would have Goodenongh, and Cornif’s Man fhould
nat be.

L. C. . Fones. Who was Cornifh’s Man ?

M. Gosfright, 1 know the Man, bur forget his
Name. —~————Millman.

L. C. 7. Fones. Canyou tell what Goodenongh was
to give for the Under-Sheriffwick ?

Mr. Gosfright. No, indeed.

L. C. . Fones. Was there no Difcourfc?

Mr. Gosfright, Not in my hearing,

L. C. . Jones, Was Goodenongh Under-Sheriff to
Cornifh at laft ? '

Mr. Gosfright, Yes, Sir.

L. C. 7. Fones, How did they agree?

Mr. Gosfright. 1 believe the Animofities were {o
great, that they were never reconciled 5 for Cornifl
had {o befpatter’d Goodenongh, that he was fo ill a
Man, that Geodenongh, 1believe, could never digeft
it well.

L. C. }. Fones. Did you hear any angry Words,
after he was admitted to be Under-Sheriff ?

Mr. Gosfright, Truly, 1 never was at Alderman
Cornif’s while he was Sheriff : But I heard that Cha-
ralter of him.

L. C. ¥. Fones, And what was the Reafon you
did not go to Mr. Corunift’s ?

Mr. Gosfright. No, I believe Goodenough never
came there, but I was at neither of their Houfes,

Mr. Juit. Levinz, Pray, how many Juries did
you help himin ¢ .

Mr. Gosfright, Truly I was {o little acquainted, I
could not help him.

Mr. Juft, Levinz. I hear other People fay the con-
trary,

Mr. Gosfrright. 1 was but newly come into England,
and could know no Man. |

Mr, Corn. Alderman Love,

L.C.F. Fones. Towhat purpofe do you call him,
Sir? To the fame?

Mr. Corn. Itis evidently to declare how much
I was 1mpofcd upon.

L. C. f. Jones, Plha! 1 will tell the Jury, I will
do this for you, upon this Man’s Teftimony, that
you wereunwilling that Gesdenongh (hould be Under-
Sheriff. *
~ Mr. Cors. My Lord, there is a great deal more
in 1t,

L. C. ¥. Joues. What is there more ? he never
heard an angry Word between you, during the time,

he fays, afterwards you z.dmitted him tobe Under-
Sheriff 2
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Mr. Cors. Mr. Love, will you pleafe to declare
to the Court, what averfion I had to Mr, Goodenongh
being the Under-Sheriff,

Mr. Love. My Lord, I did receive a Subpeena
Jaft Night, and I wonder’d at 1t, I confefs ; ever
fince I was fo happy to get out of publick Employ-
ment, having apply’d my felf to my private Affairs,
I never came to Guild-Hall. But all I can fay, is
this, that when it was publickly talk’d upon the Ex-
change, meeting Mr, Cornifh upon the Exchange, I
did hear him inclined to have another Man (one I
don’t know,) to be his Under-Sheriff, and that ke
did not Itke Mr. Goodenough, but was inclin’d to
another Man : but it is {o long ago, I believe I
might perfwade him, having bezen Sheriff abova
twenty years ago, to Mr. Haftings, an honeft Man ;
I got my Quietus ¢ff, without trouble : But I muft
fay this for the Gentleman, I did hear Kiim complain,
that he was impofed upon to take this Man,

L. C. f. Fones. How long was it after the time ?

Mr. Love. 1t was before they had pitched upon 2
Man, and he was much inclined to one Mr. Mi/-
pourne or Millman, or fome fuch name, that is all
I can fay.

L. C. 7. Fones. Do you think we fit here to hear
Impertinencies ¢ God forbid, Sir, I fhould hinder
you from giving any Evidence ; but this is not at
all material, |

Mr. Corn, If your Lordthip pleafe to let Mr.
Fekyl come, he will tell you what this Man did de-
clare, why I was againft him.

L. C.}. Fones. If you had not entertain’d M,
Gaedenongh, then there might be fomething of Ma-

- hce in 1, but you did receive him,

Mr. Corz. 1 had private Covenants with Be-
thel, before 1 would let him come into the Office,
Mr, Feky!, pray will you declare to my Lord, and
the Jury, whataverfion I had agnrinft Mr. Good-
enongh’s being Under-Sheriff ?

Mr. Fekyl. Truly, my Lord, 2Alderman Corugfh
and I, living near together, I had occafion to go
to him, feveral times, about Bills of Exchange 4
and he told me, when he was Sheriff, how he was
troubled with Betbel, becaufe he would put Gogd-
erough upon him, for I don’t intend to have him,
fays he, for I know he is obnoxious to the King and
Government, and defired me to fpeak to Mr. Berke/
abcut it, but I had no acquaintance with him till
he was Sheriff : And fome came to me, to defire me
to fpeak to Alderman Cornifp to receive Goodenongh,
Troly, fays I, I find him fo averfe againft him,
that it 1s not for me to perfuade him, to take a Ser-
vant he muft put {uch truft and confidence in 4 for
I faw Alderman Coruifb was fo averfe to it, that I
would not do 1t

Mr. 8ol. Gen. Pray do you think in your Con-
{cience, he was more obnoxious to the Government
than his Partner, Sheriff Bethel, was ?

Mr. Fekyl, I muft confefs, I have heard much of
Sheriff Bethel, but I never heard that Cornifh was
any diflaffe¢ted Man to the Government,

Mr. Sol. Gen. But which was the moft diffaffeted
Man to the Government, Bethel, or Goodenongh ?

Mr. Fekyl, Truly, as I remember, he faid, he
would not have him, becault he was obnoxious to
the King and Government,

Mr, Jult. Withins, This Gentleman was in 2 Limb
of the Plot himfelf, as great a Rioter, and as hot
as any of them, this Evidence that they call : T re-
member you, Mr. Fekyl, Tl affure you.

Mr. Corn. 1f Sic Williain Turaer be upon the
Bench, I defire him to {peak.

I L C %
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£.C. . Fones, Wewill hear Sit William Turnerany

thiﬁ;‘. Corn. 1defire he would declare how I was

. 357 Turner. 1 don’tremember that ever I
favf liipff%oadenaugb’s Face I?Efore_: this time, fol
have nothingat all to fay againft him, nor can I fay
any thing, but what Mr. Cornifh told me 3 and that
was, he once came to my Houle fome time after he
was chofen Sheriff, and tpld me, that Mr, Betbel
prefled very much for taking Goodenough to be his
Under-Sheriff 3 that he had no mind to accept him,
and he would propofe another, and it caufed a great
Difference, but it was at laft compofed, but how, 1

n’t tell,
N L. C. . Fones. Now, Mr. Cornifh, by my con-
fent, if you will, call all the Aldermen upon the
Bench ; whether they will, or will not, fay the fame
thing, for my part, I w%ll agree, that they have gi-
ven Evidence (if they will be contented themfelves)

to the fame purpofe. |
'OMr. Carfg/b.PMy Lord, T fhall not give your

Lordfhip unneceffary trouble, but I think itis con-
venient to call fome Witnefles, to prove the Manner

of my Life and Converfation, |
L.C. ¥. Fones. Your Life hath not been in the

dark.
Mr. Cornifb. The Dean of Canterbury, Dr. Til-

lotfon. (who did not appear.)

L. C.¥. Fones. Will any Man atteft your Loy-
alty in London ¢ _

Mr, Cornifh. The Dean of Nerwich, Dr, Sharp.
Is the Dean of Norwich here ?

Officer. No, Sir.

‘Mr. Coruifp. My Lord, hereis Mr, Lane, 1 de-
fire he may be afked what he knows.

Mr., Lanze. Upon the Trial of my Lord Ruf-
fel, according as Mr. Cornifb defires I may be heard,
it is with refpect to Colonel Rumfey’s Evidence ;
Colonel Rumfey fays, in my Lord’s Ruffel’s Trial,
he did not hear the Declaration read, becaule it
was read before he came there.

Mr. North, Were you prefent at my Lord Ru/f-
fel's Trial 2

Mr, Lane. No, Sir.

Mr, Juft, Levinz. Sir, that fignifies nothing,.

Mr, Cornifh, That is a very material thing, my
Lord.

L. C.F. Fones. Whatis? it is no proof at all,

Mr. Cornifh. Not the printed Trial ?

L. C.}. Fones. No.

Mr. Cornifh. 1t 1s by Authority.

L. C. J. Fones. Any body that was prefent may
fwear it

Mr., Cornifb, My Lord, 1 defire I may have
the Minifter of the Parith, Dr. Calamy, for my
" conftancy at my Parith-Church, and receiving the
Sacrament, according to the Rites of the Church
of Euglond, that Tam, to all appearance, a Per-
fon that does as well affet the Government as any
Man,

L. C.¥. Foires. T doubt youare all Appearance.

Dr. Calamy. My Knowledge of Mr. Cornifh hath
" been {ince I came to be Minifter of the Parifh,
which is about two Years, a little above two Years;
whenever he was in Town he did ufe to come to
Church as conftantly as any one, and come with
his Family to Prayers, and did come to the Sa-
-crament, and he did not only come at Eafer,
to fave himfelf from a Prefentment, but at our
monthly Communion ; and fince I have been Mi--

nifter of the place, I have often converfed with
Vou, IV, -
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him : All that I can fay, is, that I never.heard him

{ay a difrefpectful Word of the Government, .

L. G. ¥. Fones. 1'hope he took you to be 2 Man
of another Kidney. .

Dr. Galamy, 1 marked his words, becaufe of the
Character I had heard of him,

Mr. A4t Gen. Pray, what was the Charaéter
he had before thofe two Years.

Dr, Calamy, That was, what was publick.

Mr. Coruifb Joleph Reeve, Efy;

Mr. Reeve. My Lord, I received a Subpeena,
from the Prifoner at the Bar, yefterday. I have
been acquainted with him about fourteen or §f-
teen years, and had a confiderable trade with him,
and fometimes we had fome Converfation, and
drank a Glafs of Wine together ; I thought he was
always very Loyal, and drank the late King’s
Health, and this King’s Health, and all the Roy-
al Family. I have no more to fay.

Mr. Cornifh. Mt. Fobn Cook,

L. C. F. Founes. What do you examine this Wit-
nefs to ?

Mr, Cook. My Lord, I have dealt with him for
thefe twenty Years laft paft, I always found him
a very honeft Man, and a juft Man, and very
upright in his dealing, I always reckon’d him a
very honeft juft Man: I have dealt with him for
great Sums, and always knew him very juft and
upright.

L. C. F. Jones. Your Obfervation of him, asto
the Government,

Mr. Cook. I never knew any thing to the con-
trary, but that he was always very Loyal.

‘M. Cornifh. Mr Fobn Kuap.

L.C. ¥, Jones. Mr., Coraifh, 1t 1s not impofii-
ple for you to produce Men enough, that fhall
fay, they know nothing againft you, concerning
the Government, and that you have been a Loy-
al Man, fure thofe you chufe, will fay {o, you
have chofen them 3 and, perhaps, if it were the Bu-
finefs of the King’s Counfel, they could do con-
trary : you are not accufed touching your general
Converfation, but concerning a particular Falt.

Mr, Cor. It is improbable I fhould be a Per-
fon ever concern’d in thefe matters 3 if you con-
fider, you find Cernifb mentioned only about be-
ing there.

L. C. F. Jones. Does not Mr. Rumfey tell you
the meaning why ?

Mr. Cor. It 15 very ftrange a Man fhould ba
at fuch an Hellifh Meeting, and I fee him over
and over fo many times, and never fpeak of it
again. )

L. C. ¥. Fones. Mr. Cornifh, do not you know
that Goodenough could not be produced, till the
Rebellion in the Weft ¢ |

Mr. Cor. Is 1t probable that I fhould entertain
any Treafonable Difcourfe with Mr. Goodenongh,
when I had fo-much oppofed him in coming into
the Office ?

L. C. F. Fones, But you let him in.

Mr, Cor, It 15 known to hundreds in this
Town, that I was impofed upon by an unreafon-
able Man 5 my Innocency 1s as great as any Man’s
and my Virtue (hould be confidered, when I have
been under thefe Impofitions : I have been Loyal
and Dutiful to my Prince, and Faithful to the
Government in all refpects; I have oppofed all
manner of Heats, as much as any Man whatfoe-
ver; I can bring hundreds to fhew, that where I
heard Heats I allay’d them, and it 15 ftrange I
fhould be fuch a'Man as I am reprefented here.

X L.C. ¥
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I. C. F. Jones. Have you done, Str ?

Mr. Corn. My Lord, 1 have thus much fur-
ther to fay, that I do think there 15 no proba-

bility that I could be at this Meeting ; though a
man {hould have a care how he takes God’s Name
in vain, 1 have faid it, and Ido in the prefence
of the great God of Heaven declare it, 1 was ne-
vet at the Debate about thefe Affairs s I take

the great God to Witnefs, I would not do 1t for
a whole World, if I were not innocent. My

Lord, it is moft improbable what Mr, Runfey

fays. '
L. C. . Fones, It is a probable thing that Rus-

Jey thould forfivear himfelf, it 1s probable thing
that Gosdenongh fhould forfwear himfelf, who have
taken the great God to Witnefs 10 the Truth
of what they fivear againft yous but It Is Im-
probable that Mr. Coririfh fhould rot fpeak the

Truth.,

Mr. Cora.
your Lordfhip pleale,

M. Kiap, 1 ever found him a far,

mafter. ‘
Mr. At Gen. He calls you for his Loyalty.

Did you never hear him fpeak any thing againit

r :
the Government ¢
Mr. Knap. 1 have not been in his Company

but now and then.
Mr. Corn. Did you ever know me fpeak any

thing againft the Government ?

Mr. Knap. No, Sir.
L. C. ¥. Fones. I marvel that you who have been

an Alderman a great while, don’t call fome of
the Aldermen; you have call’d Sir Williain Tur-
ner, a very worthy Alderman, I wonder you
don’t call fome others of your Brethren, that
are known Perfons.

Mr, Corn, M. Carleton.

Mr. Carleton. 1 have been acquainted with my
Coufin Cornifb ever fince the Year 61, when, be-
ing a Merchant, trading in Cloth, 1 began my
acquaintance with him, and afterwards, he re-
commended me to the Party I married, and being
Relations, we had great intimacy together 3 1 have
been feveral times at his Houfe, he did always
alfure me of his Loyalty : I have told him what 1
have heard People fay abroad, but he did affure
me he was Loyal, and I do hope the very fame
of him. |

L.C. . Fones. But you remember you have
heard that he was not a Perfon of fuch eminent
Loyalty. .

Mr. Carleton. That was upon the account, my
Lord, of his being in with Betbel 5 but he did al-
ways affure me of it.

Mr. Corn. My Lord, I hope your Lordfhip
will confider what temper the Man was of that I
was to be with, and how obftinate he was; and I
hope T fhall not anfiver for his Crimes.

Mr. Juft,——Mr. Corz. why did you qualify
yourfelf to ferve with him ? for you were not at

firlt qualifed.
Mr. Corn. 1 had been travelling up and down

in the Country.
Mr. Juft.—At that time to qualify your felf to

be an Officer, then you could lay afide all your
Scruples, and receive the Sacrament.

Mr, Corn.  Fofeph Smart, Elq;

Mr. Smart., 1 have known Mr, Cornifb above
thefe twenty Years, and dealt with him con-
fiderably, I never knew him but a very faw
Dealer,

I will call fome other Friends, if
to prove my Loyalty.

good Pay-

f

Trial of Henry Cornith, Efy;

1 Jac. 11,
Mr. Corn. Mr. William Crotich.

Mr. Crouch, 1 have had acquaintance a great
while with Mr. Coraifb, and have had feveral Deal-
ings ; I found him a very honeft Dealer, and a
good Pay-maiter,

| L.C. . Fones. What know you of his Loy-
alty ?

Mr. Crouch. For his Loyalty, I took i1t as the
Town did, though I never knew any Difloyalty
from him. t

Mr. Corn. Mr. Fames IVl

L. C. ¥. Fones. Do you think you profit your
felf with this Teftimony ¢

Mr. Coin. I would not oftend you.

L. C. F. Fones. No, no, you don’t offend, I
would gladly hear you, if there were any thing
pertinent to your Dectence.

Mr. Jaft. #ithins, Mr. Cornifh, you have this
Happinefs, that you will be tried by your Fellow-
Citizens, of very geod Quality and Underftand-

ing, I muft needs tell you.
Mr. Corn. I am fatisfied I have appeared bere

with all the Care and Caution that becomes an
honeft Man 3 I have fpoke nothing but what I have
confider’d as I have been in prefence of the great
God ; I never was at any Meeting, nor never
heard any thing of this till the Trial about my
Lord Ruffel, never heard one Word.

L. C. ¥. Fones., Gentlemen of the Jury, the
Prifoner at the Bar, Mr, Coruifh, 1s indicted, that
knowing that there was an Infurretion intended
to be againft the late King, of bleiled Memory,
he did promife to be aiding and affifting mn 13
this is the Subftance of the Indictment. There have
been two Witnefles produced, Mr. Runifcy, and

Mr. Goodenough :  Rumnfey’s Teftimony (fo far as
I am able to remember, after fo long a Difcourle

and fo much time that hath been {pent) was to
this purpofe ; That the Duke of Moumwonth, the
Lord Ruffel, Fergufour, and others, being in Mr.
Shepperd’s Houfe, there came ar length Mr. Cornify,
and excus’d himfelf for coming late, and faid, That
he was to depart from them very {peedily, becaufe
he was to go to attend the Bufinefs (as I take it)
of the Charter, where the Prefence of an Alderman
was neceffary, and none like to be there but him-
felf 3 That Fergufon pull’d a Paper out of his Bo-
fom, fo fays Mr. Rumféy, and upon the defire of
the Company, it was read to Mr. Goruifs, and
Shespard held the Candle; there were thele two
Points, Ramféy fays, they had agreed on in that
Paper, when the Rifing thould be, they would
declare for Liberty of Confcience, and for the
Reftitution of thofe Lands, Bifhops Lands, and
King’s Lands, to thofe Perfons from whom they
had been taken after the King’s Reftauration.
This Paper being read to Mr. Corwifh, he faid,
He did like it very well, (thefe were the very words
of Rumfey) and with that poor Interelt that he
had in the World, he would join in the Affiftance
of them, for thofe Ends and Purpofes that were
mentioned in that Declaration. Then comes Gooa-
enongh, and he tells you, that he came to him in
his Parlour, when he was Sheriff, faid, Now there -
was no Safety, no Defence atall by Law, all
was gone, there muft be fome other Courfe taken,
for the Law would not {ufficiently protect them :
Why, fays Mr. Coruifh, T marvel they are fo
flow in the City, when they are fo ready in the
Country. Ay, but fays Geodenough again to him,
there hath been fomething done in the City 5 this

was after the time thar the City -had been put
1nto



:to feveral Divifions, I don’t fee there is any
Teftimony from Mr. Goodenotgh, that Mr. Corinifl
knew any thing of that 3 but {’ays he, thE:r:?, is fome-
thing done here, the Tower 15 to be feiz’d, there

is the Magazine, and that 1s to be fciz’d upon,

and then we fhall be able to do fomething @ fays
he, I will do what good I can 5 or, fays he, what
Tcan: heisnot confident whether of thefe Exprefli-
ons he did ufe, I will do what good I can, or I will
do what I can. Afterwards he meets Mr. Cornifh up-
on the Exchange: here, I confels, it 1S not fo cxprelsly
to be applicd to this Purpofc, that 1t doth faften
dire&tly upon the point in the Indiétment 3 but l"a_ys
he, Flow do Affairs go? How_ do our ...fiifalrs
go ? fays he, very well: Thiss the Teftimony
given againft him. If this be trug, notwithftand-
ing Mr. Coraifi’s Proteftations of his Innocency,
fure there is nothing doth more plamly prove this
Indi®ment, than chis Teflimony. He fays 1t is
improbable, very improbable that 1 i my Cir-
cumftances, that I thould fay fo; it is improbable,
becaufe Mr. Rusmfey had Acquaintance with me
for fourteen Years together, that I have dealc with
him for valt Sums, and that I fhould fay it in his
prefence never but once 5 and that Rumfey does
fay, He never heard him fpeak any thing to that
purpofe, but that one time 5 and therefore it Is
mighty improbable I fhould fay fo. But what s
the Reafon, fays he, that this was not difcover’d
before ? To this Rumfey gives a pofitive Anfwer,
Truly fays he, Mr. Coruifs, 1had more Compai-
fion for you, than for my felf, I have fuffer’d for
it, you have not fuffer’d for my f{ilence, Then
Goodenongh ought not to be allowed to be a com-
petent Witnefs, becaufe when Mr. Coririfh and Betbel
were chofen Sheriffs of the City, Mr., Coriifh was
much againft receiving Goodenongh to be his De-
puty, and Goodenough muft fay all this malicioufly

againft him, becaufe he fo much oppofed his being

Under-Sheriff to him and Bethel.  He hath pro-
duced feveral Witnefles to that Purpofe, and they
fay there was fome reluftancy in him to the re-
cetving Gooaenorgh to be his Under-Sheriff 5 but it
is plain and clear to you all, Gentlemen, and
every body 1n the City knows that Goedenough was
his Under-Sheriff, and how well he ferv’d him,
and to what purpofes, I believe many of you very
well know. Another Improbability is, that he
fhould admit Goodenough to come into his Parlour
alone, a Man that he had fo much difpleas’d ; bat
if fo be he was once againft him, he did after-
wards take him not only to be his Under-Sheriff,
but employ’d him to be his Attorney, and then
he might very well admit him into his Parlour
alone, to difcourfe of his Bufinefs as an Attor-
ney, and this might fall in among other Dif-
courie. Gentlemen, there are feveral other Wit-
neflfes produced concerning the Honefty of his
Dealing, and the Honefty of his Converfation,
that they have nothing atall to fay againft ; but
Gentlemen in a popular City, where he is, and
hath been {o well known, 1t is a very eafy mat-
ter t0 bring miilions of Men to give the very
fame Teftimony, and certainly he will bring none,
having the choice of them, but fuch as thall fpeak
1n his Favour ; but he fpeaks in the Prefence of
God, he fpeaks from the bottom of his Heart,
that he never had any fuch difloyal Thought en-
- ter’d into his Mind. Gentlemen, hath no body
any Seofe of the Prefence of God but Mr. Cornifh 2
Hath not Remfey call’'d God to be a Witnefs to
his Oath? and Gopdewough hath done the like ?
Vo IV,
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Why is it malicionlly againft the Life of Mr.
Cornifh 2 for I don’t know he does, in the deaft,
Objt& any thing Eg:&inft Ruﬂ.ﬁ_}’, that there was
ever any Difpleafure between: them two Why
fhould he deliver this Teftimony, if it were not the
Teftimony of his Heart ? and that which he fays
himfelf, he had too long concealed our of the
Compaffion he had for him. Gentlemen, if a
oreat many Proteftations and Affeverations fhould
make a Man as innocent as confident, no Man
fhould dic by the Sentence of the Law ; itis an
caly. Matter for any Man to take up the fame
Affurance and Confidence that he hath done : And
for his being fuch a Church-man, as he now pre-
tends himfelf to be, for that is one thing by which
he would argue the Improbability of the thing,
and he would have you believe very much of his
Loyalty from 1t ; Gentlemen, all the Evidence
he hath given, 1s but of two Years ftanding,
and fince the Trial of my Lord Ruffel ; and fuch
a Man as he, and many Men that were con{cious
to themfelves of their Guile, did think it very fic
to purge themfelves that way, to gain themfelves
a good Opinion that they were loyal to the Go-
vernment. But it 1s not deny’d by Mr. Coruifb,
that before that time he did not frequent the Church,
nor recelve the Sucrament.

Mr. Cornifh. Thefe feven Years, my Lord.

L. C. . Founes. Who did fay {fo? Sure no body
faid {fo yet. I repeat the ILividence truly, all
you faid of that was out of the mouth of Dr.
Calamy.

Mr. Cornifb. Dr. Calaszy came 1n but lately, and
his Predeceffor Dr. Whitcheot 1s dead.

Mr. Jult. #ithins, Sir, you were not qualified
for your Office if you had not took the Sacra-
ment.

L.C. ¥. Fones. You did lay afide all your Scru-
ples to qualify your felf to be Sherff by re-
ceiving the Sacrament, which otherwife you could
not have been. Others that have fpoken of your
Converfation likewife fay, that the Report was
abroad, that you were not fo loyal and Airm to
the Government as you ought to have been. Gen-
tlemen, vyou have heard the Ewvidence ; I have
done my endeavour to repeat it faithfully : If you
believe that he did promife to aid or join, or
agree with that Rebellion or Infurrection, then
you ought to find him guilty of this Indictment.
Mr, Coraifb, I am as innocent as any mortal
Man. '

Then the Jury withdrew, and after a confide-
rable time veturn'd.

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord, I hope I may have
one Word.

Mr. Juft. #ithins, No, not till your Verdict.

Mr. Bar, Gregery. No, no, Mr. Cornifh, we
can’t,

Mr. Cornifh. T had a ‘Wimefs more that was
very material, but I would not offend your Lord-
fhip : Mr. Remfey faid Mr. Sheppard held the
Candle. *

Mr. Jult. Withins, Why did not you call him 2
You calP’d a grea: many impertinent Witneffes.

Mr. Cornifb. 1 was not come to him, I would
have call’d them in Order.

Mr. Bar. Gregory. Why did not you produce
him then ?

Mr. Cornifh. Becaufc your Lordfhip feemed to
be angry.

Mr. Bar. Grégory. No, not atall,

X 2 Mr.
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Mr. Cornifb. 1 did forbear purely upon that Ac-
count, I pfay, my Lord, let him be call’d.

Mr. Bar. Gregory. Here were eight Judges and
my Lord Chief Juftice, and now here is only two :
Do you think we will defer things of this Nature ?
It i3 néver afked. Apply your felf to the Judges:
It is a ftrange thing,

Mr, Juft, Withins. 'Thisis only to delay Time.

My, Bar, Gregory,  If he does fo, the Jury muft
g0 out agatn.

Mr. Juft, Withins. After the Jury hath been
out an Hour, we muft have ncw Allegations.

Mr, Cornifh. 1 was tender of offending.

Mr. Juft, Withins. That 1s 2 Reflection upon
the Court ; under favour, Mr. Cernifb, 1 told you
my felf over and over to call your Witnefies.

Clevk. Elizabeth Gannt, hold up thy Hand.

Mrs, Gaunt. My Lord, I befeech you, hear
me, you won’t take Advantage I hope ot me.

Mr. Juft, Withins. 1 declare my Opinion freely,
1t ought not to be done.

Recorder. 1 think fhe ought to have it as well

as t’other,
Mr. Bar. Gregory.,  You call never a Witnefs,

Mrs, Gaun?.  No, Sir, I could not tell, I have
fome to call,

Mr. Jult. Withins. Iam of that Opinion you
ought to take the Verdict,

The Judges came again upon the Bench, and the
Jury found Mrs. Gaunt guilly,

L. C. J. Foires. Is Rumnfey come in ?

Captain  Richardfen. 1 have fent for him, he
wiil be here prefently.

Mr. Cornifh, My Lord, I muft pray your Lord-
fhip, to confider my Tendernefs in offending you,
which made me omit calling Mr. Skeppard ; 1 had
him in my Paper, heis in my Paper.

L. C. F. Fones. Don’t you begin your Preface
fornething untowardly, as though the Court would
not do you all the Kindnefs poflible ; half a dozen
Times you were admonith’d to call for pertinent
Witnefits, You did call, T am fure, a great many
impertinent Witneffes. Had you Mr, Sheppard’s
Name in your Paper ?

Mr., Cornifh,  Yes my Lord, but I was tender
of offending; pray my Lord, be pleafed to re-
member Mr. Rumfey’s Evidence.

L.C.F. Fones. Is Mr. Rumfey here? Sir,
hold your Tongue. |

Mr. 4t Ger. 1 would acquaint you, my Lord,
1 fent a Subpeena for Mr, Sheppard, but could not
find him, but I underftand that Mr. Cornifi’s Son
was with him yefterday, and he has abfconded ;
this T will give an Account of upon Oath: This
my Lord, is a dangerous Pratice after Examina-
tion, and after the Jury is withdrawa.

Mr. Cornifb. 1 pray do not aggravate the Matter.

Mr, At Gen. T muft do my Duty for the King,

Mr. Cornifp. My Son went to him, and found
him at Church, |

Mr, 4t Gen. Now Mr. Atterbury is gone, 1
defire you fhould have all your right, but not have
"Iricks put upon the King’s Evidence.

Mr. Coraifh. His Evidence was, Mr. Sheppard’s
holding the Candle.

Mr. Juft. Levinz. For God’s fake, could you
cxamine {fo many to ‘your Reputation, and forget
an Evidence that was material ? but I muft tell
you, 1f you will ‘bring Nir, Sheppard to be exa-

pray
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mined, fure it is repuifite, that the Witnefs that
fvears what you did there, fhould be face to face
with him; therefore Mr, Rumfey fhould be here
certainly,

Mr, Jult. WWithins. It 1s fit to have Atterbury
here, to enquire if he did abfcond; if Mr. Cor-
2if’s Son was with him, and he abiconded upon
that Account, it I1s very material. ‘This is a meer
Trick put upon the King’s Evidence.

L. C. Baren. Mr. Cernifb, 1t you intend to pro-
duce Mr. Shepperd for that, to contradit Rum-

Jey’s Teltimony, I wonder that you fhould mifs
him, without you have had fome Notice fince,

Mr, Coruifp. My Lord, I was not come to
him: my Lord, though I have fuch a vile Charge,
I am perfetly mnocent.

Mr. Juft. 7thizs. Now you may fee what we
have got.

Mz, Cornifb, T befeech you, my Lord, confider
me, 1t 1s as improbable a thing as any In the
World.

L.C.F. Fones. 'Thisis running over the fame
thing twenty Times. Where is Sheppard ?

Mr. Coragfb, He was here within this quarter
of an Hour.

Mr. Jult, Withins. Mr. Cornifh, 1s this fairly
done, when you fard Lie was upon the Spot ?

My, At Gen.  He was {ubpoena’d by you, he
would not be found to be fubpeena’d by the
ng,

Mr, Jult. Levinz, To make the Court conie
down, and then to have no Notice of the Perfon
at all; fure you may give the Court leave to take
Notice, that they are not civilly dealt with.,

L.C. ¥, Fones. \Who told you he was here ?

Mr. Cornifh, This Gentleman fays, he {aw him,
Pray, my Lord, don’t be offended.

L C.F. Foues. 1 never aw fuch a thing, the
Time was, you and your Partner would not have
allowed 1t, s

Mr., 4%, Gen, 1t he comes, I will give him his
Oath,

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, here is Major Richard-
foir can bear Witnefs, I faird I muft fubpcena
Mr., Sheppard ; 1 named him before Major Ri-
chardfon again and again, and faid, I muft not
onut him.

Mr. Juft. Levinz, Sir, I tell you what 3 you han’t
fhewed fo lictle Skill ro-day here, but that you could
maintain fo long a Difcourfe with Mr. Rumfey as
you were allow’d to do, and fhould not ofter to call
Sheppard to contradiét him ; you dwelt half an hour
upon i,

Mr. Bar. Gregory. And relied only upon the Im-
probability of the thing,

Mr. Rumfey. There is another Gentleman In
the Tower, the late Lord Grey, that was in Com-
pany when the Declaration was read.

Mr, Bar. Gregory, Flave you been in Company
at Sheppard’s ?

Mr. Cornifb. Thave been at Sheppard’s very often.
Pray, my Lords, don’t bz offended, my Life wiil
do you no good, I don’t know but here 1s a Gen-
tlernan that hath been 11 my Company forty Tines
over fince that Bufinefs. |

Mr. Ruinfey. Pardon me, Mr, Ceipifh, not above
three Times fince, and then there was other Com-
pany. . ¢

Mr. Juft. 7itkins, It is impoflible for any, but
thofe ‘that were Complices with you, to give fuch
Evidence 5 and, becanfe they were your Complices,
now you wor’t belizve them,

L.C 7.
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L. C. ¥. Fones. Areyou fubpeena’d by Mr Cor-
yifh ¢
w};ﬂr. Sheppard. 1 have a fabpeena from the King,
L.C. ¥. enes. But were you fubpeena’d by

Mr, Cornifh ¢

Me. Sheppard. Yes.
Mr. At Gen. When? | ‘
Mr. Sheppard, Laft Night; this Morning I was

not at home, | .
Mr. ¢ Gen. Was Mr. Cornifi’s Son with you

yefterday in the Afternoon:
Mr. Sheppard. Yes, Sir,
Mr. ¢, Gen. And what Difcourfe had you with

his Son ¢
Mr. Sheppard. He was very prefling and urgent

with me to be here to-day, and I told him, I

could not tell whether I could or not.
Mr. At Gen, 1s there any Account between you

and Mr, Cornifh ¢

Mr. Sheppard. Yes, Si.

Mr. At Gen. To what Sum?

Mr. Sheppard. We were always Trading.

Mr. At. Gen. That s very true, you were Tra-
ding—~—To what Value ?

Mr. Sheppard, About ane or two hundred Pounds.

Mr. At. Gen. Who 1s Debtor?

Mr. Shepperd.- 1 am Debtor.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr. Sheppard, lince when did you
contract that Debt?

Mz, Sheppard. Since when, Sir

Mr. Sol. Gen. Ay.

Mr. Sheppard. 1 believe it was fome fix or eight

Months ago. *
Mr. Sel. Gen. For what was it ? Upon what Ac-

count ¢

Mr, Sheppard. For Cloth, Sir?

Mr, Sof. Gen. Was there no Morey lent ?

Mr. Sheppaid. Money lent me?

My, §ol. Gen. Ay, Sir.

Mr. Sheppard, No, Sir.

L. C. . Fones. Is the Debt due to Mr, Cornifh 2

Mr. Sheppaird, My Lord, the Debt is due to him.

L. C. J. Jones, Or fome body for whom he is a
Factor ?

Mr. Soeppard. 1 am indebted to Mr Corwifh, for
whom it is I can’t tell,

Mr. Sol. Gen, Did you leave Word, whither you
went, when you went out yefterday ?

Mr. Sheppard. No, Sir.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Which Subpeena was ferved firlk
upon you @ |

Mr. Sheppard. Mr Cornifl’s yefterday.

Mr. Sof._Ger, What time was it ferved upon you?

Mr. Sheppard. Prefently after I came out of
Church in the Afternoon, Sir,

L. C. F. Fones. What have you to fav ?

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, Mr, Rumfey was pleafed
to give in his Evidence, that 1 had been at 2 Con-
fult or Meeting at Mr. Sheppard’s Houfe, where
Mr. Fergufon thould pluck out a Declaration out of
his Bofom, and fhould read it by the Candle, and
Mr. Sheppard thould hold the Candle to him while
he read it.

L. C. J. Fones. Do you remember Mr, Cornifh
was ever at your Houfe ?

Mr. Sheppaid. At one of thofe Meetings that was
at my Houfe, Mr. Cornifh came into the Houfe to
fpeak a few Words with the Duke-of Monmonth,
- or {ome other, I can’t be pofitive in thar, it is o
many Ycars ago, and did not ftay hulf a quarter of
an Hour in the Houfe 5 I came up Stairs, and went
out with him, and there was not one Word read,
and no Paper féen while he was there, - '

for High-
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Mr, Juft, Levinz, Was Mr. Coraifhin the Room
with the Duke of Aoumouth and thofe others? .

Mr. Sol. Gen. Wir. Sheppard, do you remember
that the late Duke of Mouimouth, the Lord Ruffel,
the Lord Grey, and Sir Thomas Arinftrong were there
together, and the Declaration read @

Mr. Sheppard. 1 remember there was a Decla-
ration read, Fergufon pulPd out a Declaration out
of his Shoe, he pull’d off his Shoe, and pull’d ic
out there.

Mr, Sof. Gen. Do you remember Mr, Corusfh was
by, any Time that Night?

Mr., Skeppard. ‘Truly I can’t fay whether it wag
that Night when the Paper was read, but I do po-
fittvely fay, that there was no Paper read, for he
was not looked upon to be of the Company : Mr,
Ferguforr told me pofitively, there 1s the Dyke of
Monmouth, my Lord Grey, my Lord Ruffel, Sir
Thownas Adrinflrong, Col, Rumfey, my {elf, and you.

Mr, 8o/, Gen, 'Who did Mr. Corntfb come to fpeak
with, when he came to your Houfe ¢

Mr. Sheppard. Truly 1 don’t know whether it
was with the Duke of Midwouth.

Mr. §ol. Gen. How came Mr Cornifh to know the
Duke of Monsouth was therc?

Mr, Sheppard. ‘Truly my Memory will not call jt.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Did his Coach ftand publiclly at
your Door !

Mr. Sheppard. Whofe Coach ?

Mr. Sol, Gen, The late Duke of Menmon!iss.

Mr. Sheppard. No, Sir, they all came private,
there was no Coaches at the Dooras I faw, I let
none of them in.

"My, Sol. Gen, Was Mr. Cornifb but once there,
when the Duoke of Monmouth was there?

M. Sheppard, But once.
Mur. Sol. Gen. Did he call the Duke of Menmwonth

out to him,

Mr. Juft, Street. How came you to earry him up
to the Duke of Monmonth, it he were none of the
Company ?

Mr. Sheppard. Mr, Coranifb did go up into the

Room and f{pake to the Duke of Mowmouth, or fome
other Perfon, but I think the Duke of Monnouth.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Do you remember he was there in
Company, when Col. Ruifey was there ?

Mr. Sheppard, No, 1 can’t remember that,

Mr. Ruwmfey. My Lord, when I came to M.
Sheppard’s Houle, Mr. Sheppard came down and
fetch’d me up, and I deliver’d my Mefiage I had
to the Duke of Mboumoenth, and to the Company,
and indeed I was not a quarter of an FHour there,
I believe; but by that Time I had {poke my
Words, fome-body knock’d at the Door, and Mr.
Sheppard went down, and immediately brought up
Mr. Corifh into the Room, without afking a Que-
{tion of any body : and when he was come into the
Room, Mr. Cornifh {aid, he could not come {ooner,
becaufe he had Bufinefs 3 and could not ftay, becaufe
there was a Committee for the Management of the
Charter, to meet thar Night, and there was a Ne-
ceflity of his being there, becaufe there was never
another Alderman in Town, and there muft be an

Alderman there,
Mr. At Gen. Mir. Sheppard, do you remember

any thing of that? '
Mr. Skeppard. No, Sir, I do not remember 1t

TIl afiure you, o
Mr, Sol. Ger. Did you let him 1n at the Door?

Mr. Sheppard. No, Sir, I had Word brought me
up Stairs, that Alderman Cornifb was bglow 3 and I

went down, and brought him up.
Mr. 'Sel,
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Mr. Sol. Gen. Did you afk for Mr. Cornifp to
come up? _ |
Mr. gb@pard. I don’t remember I did: When
Mr. Cornifb was there, there was not above three

Perfons.
Mr. Sof, Gen. Who were they ¢

Mr. Sheppard. There was the Duke of Meaarouth,

and there was Mr. Fergufon, and truly 1 can’e telk
whether tother was my Lord Ruf/ or my Lord

Grey. |

Mr. Juft., Levinz. You acknowledge now, Sir,
you did carry the Prifoner up to the Duke of Mon-
mouth and thofe Perfons : Did you ufe to carry all

Perfons up there?
L. C. ¥. Fones. There wasa Cabal of Rebels met

together, and you go and bring up this Man to
them, without any leave or licence from them ;
which is incredible cettainly, unlefs you knew him
to be one of the Company, and equally engaged
with them.

Mr. 82/, Gen. Mr. Sheppaid, you fay, when Mr.
Coruifly came up, there was not half the Company
there. Had they been there, or were not they yet
come ?

Mr. Juft. #ithins. Look you, Sir, it 15 marvel-
lous how Mr. Cernifh, if he were nonc of the Parties,
fhould have notice that the Duke of Meimonib was
there, who came in privately at the Back-Door, and
came to {peak with lum there.

Mr. Sheppard. My Lord, I have no Back-Door.

Mr. Juft, Withins. He came in privately.

Mr. Juft. Levinz, Mr, Sheppard, 1 think I heard
you fay; they came privately without their Coaches.
Mr. Sheppard. Yes, Sir, they had no Coaches,

Mr. Juft, Lsvinz, They came privately, 1 fup-
pofe, that no body fhould know they were there.

Mr. Sheppard. 1 {uppofe fo, Sir.

Mr., Juft. Levinz., Why then did you carry M,
Cornifb up ? If you were below o the Houle, he
might come about your own Bufinefs ; but to be
carried into the Chamber where they were, looks as
if it were about their Bufinefs.

Nir, Cornifb. 1 never heard any thing of the Bu-
finefs, my Lord.

Mr, At Gei, So far, Gentlemen, you remember
he confirms what Mr. Rumfey fays; that Gentle-
man denied he was there with the Duke of Moa-
siotth,

Mr. Coruzfh. Pray Mr. Atterney don’t {tram, I
have Dealings with Mr. Sheppard, and have often
been there, but never at any Meeting,

Mr. 4t Gen, He fays, you fpake with the Duke
of Monsiouth.

M, Cornifb. 1 never faw the Declaration, he de-
clares it.

L. C. . Fones. Had you any Dealings upon ac-
count with the Duke of Moumouth 2

M. Cornifh. Never for a Farthing,

Mr. Jult, Withins, What Bufinefs had you with
him then ?

Mr. Cornifh. 1 don’t know but I might enquire
for him 1n other Places.

L.C.F. Founes. Your own Witnefs cartied you up.

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, if he did, I did not ftay ;
he fays Mr. Sheppard held the Candle.

Mr, Juft. Withins. Mr. Cornifh, he confirms great -

part of what Mr. Rumfey fays.

Mr. Cornifb. Not one Tittle, for he declares I
was not of the Company.

L. C. ¥. Fenes. He fays no fuch thing,
Mr. Sbeppard. My Lord, to my Knowledge, I

can fafely fay, he knows nothing of it.
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L.C. 7. Jones. And yet you could bring him

up among them.

Mr. Sheppard, My Lord, I declare I never fpake
any thing to him in my Life about the Bulinefs, nor
never in any Company.

Mr. Juft. Withins. It is plain, Mr. Rumfey fays
he was the Man that brought you up : How fhould
Mr. Rumfy know that ?

Mr. 4t, Gen. M. Sheppard, 1 will afk you this
Queftion: Had you order from that Company not
to bring up any Perfon? Do you remember you
{wore fo at a former Trnal?

Mr. Sheppard. 1 remember when I was there,
they defired I would let none of my Servants up,
and that 1 would go down and fetch up what they
wanted, and I feteh’d vp Wine and what they
wanted.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr. Sheppard, why were none of
your Servants to come up?

Mr. Skeppard. Becaufe they were in private, Sir.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Were Strangers to come up there-
fore ¢

Mr. Sheppard, 1t 1s fo long ago, I cannot re-
member.

Mr. Jult. Levinz., They came privately, without
Coaches, becaufe none fhould know they were there,
and you carry Mr. Cornifh up to them.

Mr. Corzifh. I think this Witnefs is confronted,

L. C. 7. Fenes. Hold your tongue, Sir, he hath
not donc vet.

Mr. Ruinfey. My Lord, as foon as Mr. Cornifp
had made his excufe for his not coming fooner, and
that he could not ftay, 1 could not make that, and
Mr, Cornifp can’t fay 1 would do any thing mali-
croufly or fpitefully again{t him 3 my Lord, as foon
as he had done, all the Company went about him,
and fome-body did tell him, They would tell him
what they had done: they told him the Declara-
tion had been read 5 that Mr. Fergufon had prepa-
ved it, and they faid, Look you, Mr. Ceriifb, you
fhall hear it read ; and with that, this Gentleman,
though he denies it, did take the Candle, and held
it: they did not come to the Table, but the Com-
pany flood round while Mr. Fergufon pull’d it out
of his Bofom.

Mr. Jult. WWitbins, Mr. Sheppard, you are very
forward.

Mr, A4t Gen. My Loid, I would atk Mr, Shep-
pard a Queltion.

Mr. Rumfey. My Lord, the Declaration was
read, and Mr. Cornifh did approve of it, and did
fay, with that fmall Intereft, or little Intereft,
or Words to that effet, that he had, he would
affift.

Mr, At Gen. T wonder why you did not give
me notice when you came in the Morning. Why
did not you give notice

Mr, Sheppard. 1 was here attending from eleven
a-clock till half an hour after three.

Mr. At Gen, Did you fend in any Word ?

Mr. Sheppard. 1T could not tell who to fend in:
I was here expeting to be calld.

Mr. Juit. Streer, You have had a favour that no

Man ever had.
Mr. Sol. Gen. Gentlemen, there hath been a very

great Indulgence given to the Prifoner, and it is

to fhew you what Tendernefs a Court of Juftice
hath, and always will have, of the Lives of the
King’s Subjects: After a full Evidence, though
he had negleted his Defence, yet you were again
fent for into Court, to hear what further Evi-
dence he had to offer to you. I cannot but ob-

I fcrve,
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like a fubtile Corittivance on the
you fee what Endéavours have

been made by Mr, Attorney-GenE:raL to ‘have
had him here a Witnefs for the Kings; you have
obferved he told you he had a Subpeena for him,
byt he was abfent 5 in what Company he was ab-
fent yefterday he hath told you, with Mr. Cor-
aifi*s Son: this Morning he was not to be found,
after he had received this Subpcena, :_and a Sub-
poena from Mr. Cornifb; he ftays WItl?our, and
gives NnoO_ROLICe, but when you are withdrawn,
can fend Intelligence to M. Car:rzf/b_, that he hath
fomething to fay, that he hopes will excufe him :
now what that is, I muft beg you a little to ob-
ferve. Truly 1 am very glad for the Satisfaction
of all Men, that Mr. Sheppard hath now been
here, and he is {o far from invalidating any one
part of the Teftimony, that by_ all tl_w Circum-
{tances you can collect fror_n this jEvldence that
is oiven, it is a Corroboration of it. Mr. @‘ar—
?Jfﬂ;j was accufed of being prefent at Confultnt:}nns
that have been held againft the Life of the King,
and for raifing Rebellion at Mr. Sheppard’s Houfe 3
his excufing his not coming there is a fufficient
Arcument to prove he was privy to their Meer-
ing; he hath gone on further, and proved to you
the reading the Declaration. Nm'v what fays Shep-
pard to this Witnes? Mr. Cornifp, by the way,
I muft obferve to you, before did deny his be-
ing there; he had been fometimes in company
with Fergafon, but he did not like the Man, he
fays, becaufe of his Morals: now the Witnefs he
hath produced hath given you this Teftimony,
that Mr. Corsffb hath been there 1 that Com-
pany, that he came in fuch a Manner, that no
Man but muft be fatisfied he was privy to their
Defigns, ‘and did know of their Meeting, for
he comes when the Duke of Mouiionuth, and the
reft of the Confpirators were there met in pri-
vate, with a direct charge to Mr. Sheppard, that
is the Witnefs, that they fhould be fo private,
that no one Servant fhould come up into the
Room : yet Mr. Sheppard tells you, that when
Mr. Coruifb came he carried him up into the
Room, without fo much as acquainting any one
of the Company that Mr. Cornifb had a.defire
to corme, but brings him up as if he were (and
I make no doubt but you will imagine, he was)
one of the Company. When he comes there, he
{ays his Bufinefs is with the Duke of Moninonth,
the Head of that Confpiracy, and he himfelf tells
you he never had any Dealings with the Duke of
Mbonmenth in his Life.  'What can a Man imagine
of that Man that had no Dealings with the Duke
of Mowinsuth, to find him out in a place, where
no Mortal could know, and none was to know,
and coming to him at that Time and at that
Place, under thofe Circumftances of Concealment,
no Man almoft but out of his own Mouth muft
believe that he was privy to that Confpiracy :
therefore though this Witnefs doth feem to forget
fome Part of the Evidence, the reading the De-
claration, and holding the Candle; yet thefe are
fuch Circumftances that in themfelves do carry a
Proof of the Charge, and do confirm all the reft
that the Witnéfs hath faid; and this muft be a
great Satisfaction to you, that he was there prefent

and privy to that Defign, And fo I leave it to
-your Confideration,

{erve, this looks
Prifoner’s Yarts

Their the Jury withdrew for ¢ fhort time, and re-
turiing, brought My, Cormith in guilly, and found

for High-Treafon.

3
Oné¢ Hundred aird Forty Pounds for the King i
M, Sheppard’s Haids.

Glerk, Set Elizabeth Gaunt to the Bar,
| [ Which was done.

Cryer, O-Yes, all Manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep filence, whillt Judgment is giving,
upon Pain of Imprifonment, |

Clerk. Elizabeth Gaunt, hold up thy Hand, thou
ftandeft guilty of High-Treafon, &e.

Recorder. You Elizabeth Gaunt, you have here
been indicted for that great Crime of High-Trea-
fon, and that particular Part of it, for harbouring,
and comforting, and affifting, and cherithing " of
Trattors, more efpecially of one Burtoi 3 you have
had your Trial, and a very fair Trial, and upon
that, the Jury have found you Guiley: It is the
Duty of my Place to pronounce the Sentence the
Law hath provided for fuch high Crimes as thefe
arc, and that 1s no other but this :

That you are to be carried back to the Place fross
whence you came, from thence you are to be draton upor
o Hurdle, to the Place of Execution, and there yor
are to be burnt to death 3 and the Lord bave Mercy
upon your Sol,

Mrs. Gaunt. 1 fay that this Woman did tell fe-
veral Untruths of me. |

Recorder. 1s that all you have to fay ?

Mis. Gaunt, 1 don’t underftand the Law.

Clerk, Bring Henry Cornifh to the Bar. Henry
Coruifh, hold up thy Hand, &,

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, now the Law hath paft
upon me, I do humbly pray your Lordthip, and
this honourable Bench, that you will be pleafed
to intercede for me with his Majefty, I fhall lead
a peaceable, quiet, and dutiful Life : and I hope,
when you come to reflect upon what hath been
faid to-day, that perhaps you will be of another
Mind, and have more Charity for me than you
had upon my Trial 3 for in the Simplicity of my
Heart, and in the Prefence of ‘God, I do declare,
I am innocent: and if your Lordfhip, and this
honourable Bench, intercede with his Majefty, it
will be an eternal Obligation upon me, and 1
thall live faithfully, peaceably, and loyally as long
as I live, I prefume to beg this, and T promife
myfelf, and hope it will ftir up the Hearts of fome
Perfons, that they will not leave me deftitute of
Friends in fuch a Cafe as this; having a Wife and
feveral Children, it will be an A¢t of Charity.

Recorder, The Court does give you your Re-
queft, and if there be any Mifery brought upon
your Family, it is done by yourfelf *.

Clerk. William Ring, hold upon thy Hand, .

Mr. Ring. 1 had no notice given me, an’t pleale
your Lorafhip.

Recorder. Where is the Executioner, 1s he here?

Lxecutioner. Yes. ‘

Recorder, Why don’t you do your Duty to Mr.
Cornifh 2

Clerk. Fobn Fernley, hold up thy Hand; thou
ftandeft conviéted of High-Treafon, for traitoroufly
harbouring one Fames Burton; what canit thou fay
for thyfelf? {J.

Mr. Fernley. It is very hard meafure I have had,
I have nothing to fay; but the King’s Mercy.

Recorder. Is that all you have to fay

Mr, Fenfey. 1 have nothing but the King's
Mercy,

Recorder,

* See State Triale, Vol. YIIL p. 437,
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Recorder. ‘Tie him up then, tie him up.
Cryer. O-Yes, all manner of Perfons are com-

manded to keep filence, whilft Judgment 1s giving,
upon pain of Imprifonment.

Recorder, You, the feveral Prifoners at the Bar,
you have been feverally indicted here of the high
Crime of Treafon. For you, Mr. Cornifh, 1 ap-
ply myfelf firft to you, your Crime is for Trea-
fon that was committed in his late Majefty’s Lafe-
time, being one of thofe notorious Confpirators
that defigned to raife Rebellion, and others fome
of them immediately defigned the Life of his Ma-
jefty that then was, and his prefent Majefty, that
was the Defign of fome of them ; and others, they
had another part, that was to raife Rebellion, and
particularly fome of them in and about this City,
and it was carried on fome time before it was dif-
cover’d, may be a Year or more, under Colour
and Pretence of Law : For fo did they invade the

Government firft of all by packing of Juries, there
was the Foundation laid whereby to bring on that

Bufinefs, which they had at laft defign’d, when
they could bring it to a ripe Head. Too many
Perfons in that bufinefs, 1 believe, were very buly,
meddling with that they had not to do with;
clubbing and caballing how to bring their Defigns
about, 1n oppofition to the Government, not to
fupport it in the leaft, but to overthrow it if it
were, poffible: But then, at laft, they muft take
another Courfe, for no longer could they carry
it on by pretence of Law, as you have heard to-
day: Now we muft tke other Meafures, and
take down-right Blows, This is the Bufinefs, Mr.
Cornifb, that you have been indited for; and, I
muft tell you, whatever Apprehenfions you have
to the contrary, and may pleafe yourfelf in, I am
forry to {ee fuch a fort of Pleafure in your Coun-
tenance, as if you had had no Favour fhewed you.
T believe the Court hath fhewed you more Favour,
and had more Patience with you, than ever any
Man that ftood in your Place had; for calling a
Witnefs after the Jury hath been out, is a thing I
never faw a Precedent for: And I am glad 1t was
done, for I think it hath clear’d the thing beyond
all manner of Contradition ; before it looked fome-
thing dark for want of Sheppard, and fo it 1s a
Flappinefs that that Man was called to convince
you,of many things that you protefted fo {olemn-
ly againft, which I am forry to fee in you, in this
Condition that you arc, to make {uch folemn Pro-
teftations, and afterwards call a Witnefs to con-
front you in them, For the other two, here is
Mr. Ring, is very notorious for harbouring a cou-
ple of Traitors, knowing from whence they came;;
and if it were not for fuch Perfons as thefe are,
that do harbour them when they fly, 1t may be
there would not be {fo many bold Attempts to con-
" mit fuch Crimes as thele are: To provide for them,
and nourith them, and comfort them, after they
have committed their Villanies, this does encou-
rage them to commit their Villanies as they do,
and fo I reckon Harbourers to be worfe than
Traitors themfelves, they are like Receivers to
Thieves ; there would not be {fo many Traitors,
if there were no Harbourers: You have been con-
vifled of thefe great Crimes; 1t 1s too late, and not
fitting to fpend time any longer, but to pronounce
the feveral Sentences againft you, which is this:

You muft, every one of you, be had back 1to the
Place from whence you came, from thence you muft
be drawn 1o the Place of Execution, and there you
st feverally be banged by the Necks, every one of

# L] ]
" Fernley avas afteyavard; exteuted at ‘Tyburn,
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yor by the Neck Uil you are almoft dead s and thes
you muft be cut down, your Intrails muf be jakes
out and burnt before your Faces, your [everal Heads
10 be cut off, and your Bodies divided into four Parts,

and toofe 1o be difpofed of at the Pleafure of the Kiye -
and the Lord have Mercy upon your Souls f g s

Fernley ™ and Ring were reprieved, but Cornifh and
Gannt were ordered for Execution ; accordingly
four days after, viz. Offober 23. Henry Cornifly was
drawn on a Sledge to King’s-fireet end in Cheapfide,
where a Gibbet was erefted on purpofe, at which
Place he fpoke as follows

“ ¥ Am come here this Day, condemn’d to die s
‘< but God is my Witnefs, the Crimes laid to
“ my charge were falfely and malicioufly fworn
‘“ aganft me by the Witnefles ; for I never was at
“ any Confult, nor any Meeting, where Matters
“¢ againit the Government were difcours’d of : I pe-
““ ver heard nor read any Declaration, nor ever aét-
‘“ ed wiliully any thing againft the Government, I
“ confefs, through the Juftice of God, my private
* Sins have brought me to this infamous End ; yea,
“ 1t were jutt with God, not only to deprive me
““ eternally of his Prefence, but to condemn me to
““ eternal Torments; but thro’ Chrift, I hope to be
“ eternally blefs’d : Yet, as to the Crimes for which
““ 1 fuffer, on the Word of a dying Man, 1 am al-
“ together mnocent. I blefs God I was from my
““ younger Years brought up in, and have for fome
“ Years continu’d a Proteftant, in the Communion
«“ of the Church of England 3 in which Communion
« I now die. 1 have often partaken in the Ordi-

“ nances, the bleffed EffeCts and Comfort thereof

«“ I now feel in this my Agony. I blefs God I was
““ born under a Government, in the Conftitution of
¢ which I dia ever acquiefce, and in which I was
¢« once a Member ; at which time I did, accordine
‘“ to the beflt of my U:iderﬁ:mding—-[ﬁera be fwa?
c« juterrupted by the Sheriff.]—I blefs God T was
““ born 1n a Land of Light, wherc the Gofpel hath
““ been preach’d in Power and Purity; he micht
« have brought me forth in a Land of Darknefs and
““ Ignorance ; but blefled be God for Jefus Chrift.—
< Then be intiealed the Sheviff lo intercede with bis
¢ Majefly to be kind to bis poor Wife and Childrer -
< The Sheriff pronifed him to wait on his Majefly the
« next Day abont it. He reply’d, Mr. Shenff, I
““ thank you, the Lard reward you a thoufand fold s
¢ the Lord put it-into the Hearts of you to be kind to
 the Widows and Fatherlfs 5 it is your Duty : The
< Lord put it into the Hearts of all gosd People 10
‘< pray for 1.’

More could not be taken, by Reafon of the Noife:
of the People, and Interruption of one of the Sheriff,

When he had made an end of Speaking, the Ex-
ecutioner did his Office; his Head was afterwards
fix’d vpon the Guild-Hall. His Attainder was re-
verfed by Act of Parham, firlt of /770, &2 Afar
and the Witnefles lodg’d in remote Prifons,

The fame Day Elizabeth Gaunt was executed
according to her Sentence.  She left the following
Paper.

Newgate, 22 Offober, 1685,

< O'T knowing whether I thould be fuffered
T or able, becaufe of Weakneffes that are
“ upon me, through my hard and clofe Imprifon-
“ ment, to fpeak at the place of Execution, I write
« thefe few Lines, to fignify I am well reconciled
“ to the Way of my God towards me, though it
“ be in ‘Ways I looked not for,. and by terrible

“ things,

+ Ser State Trials, Vel VIIIL p. 18,



«« things, yetn Righteoufnefs 3 for having given
« me Life, he ought to have the Difpofing of it,
«« when, and how he pleafeth to call for it 3 and I
«« defire to ofter up my Allto hlm, 1t being but my
«¢ reafonable Service; and alfo the firft Terms that
¢« Chrift offers, that hethat will be his Difciple, muft
o« forfake all and follow hum. And therefore, let
«¢ none think it hard, or be difcouraged, at what
¢¢ hath happened unto mc 3 for he doth nothing
e+ \gichout Caufe, in all that he hath done unto us 3
« he being Holy 1n all his Ways, and Righteous
¢¢ 1 all his Works 3 and it 1s but my lot in com-
¢ mon with poor defolate Sioiz at this day : neither
« do 1 find in my Heart, the leaflt Regret of any
«« thing that I have done, in the Service of my Lord
« and Mafter Jefus Chrift, in favouring and {uc-
« couring any of hispoor Sufferers, that have fhew-
¢ od favour to his righteous Caufe 5 which Caule,
« though it be now fallen and trampled on, as if
i 5 had not been anointed, Yet it fhall revive,
¢« and God will plead it at another rate, than yet
¢ e hath done, with all its Oppofers and malicious
«« Haters : and therefore let all that love and fear
¢ him, not omit the leaft Duty that comes to hand,
¢ or lieth before them, knowmng that Chnft hath
« peed of them, and expects that they thould ferve
« him. And I defire to blefs him that he hath made
¢« me ufcful In my Generation, to the comfort and
« velict of many diftrefled ones, that the Blefling of
¢ thofe that have been ready to perifh, hath come
« ypon me, and I have been helped to make the
« Heart of the Widow to fing ; and I blefs his holy
¢« Name, that inall this, together with what I was
s chareed with, I can approve my Heart to him,
¢ ¢har T have done his Will, though I have croficd
¢« Van’s Will ; and the Seripture that fatisfied me
¢ init, is the 16th of Jfa. 3, 4. Hide the Ount-cafts,
«« Detray #ot him that wendereth s let sy Qut-caffs
¢ Jeyoll with thee. Obadiahver. 13, 14, Thou fEouldft
<< ot bave given up bim that efeaped, in the Day of
< Diftrefs. Bur Man faith, You fhall give thern up,
« or you fhall die forit. Now whom to obey,
¢« judge ye. So that I have caufe to rejoice and be
¢ ‘exceeding glad, in that I fuffer for Righteoufnefs
fake, and that I am accounted worthy to {uffer
« for well-doing, and that God hath accepted any
¢« Service from me, that hath been done in Since-
¢ yity, though mixed with manifold Weaknefles
« and Infrmities, which he hath been pleafed for
« Chrift’s fake to cover and forgive. And now,
« a5 concerning my Fa@, as ’tis called, alas, 1t 1s
<« but a little one, and might well become a Prince
« 1o forgive ; but, He that fheiveth no Mercy, fhalt
« fird none : and I may fay of it, in the Language
<« "of Fonathen, 1 did but tafte a little Honey, and
¢« lo, I muft dic for it 5 I did but rehieve a poor,
<« ynworthy and diftreffed Family, and lo, I moft
¢« die for it. I defire in the Lamb-like Will, to
« forgive all that are concerned 5 and to fay, Lord
« lay it not to their Charge; butI fear and be-
« lieve, that when he comes to make Inquifition
s for Blood, mine will be found at the door of the
* Wit «« furious * Judge, who, becaufe I
ithins. - : _

could not remember things, through

« my Daantednefs at Burtoi’'s Wife and Daughter’s
«« Witnefs, and my Ignorance ; tcok advanfage
¢ thereat, and would not hear me, when I had
¢ called tomind, that which I am fure would have
« invalidaced their Evidence 3 and tho’ he granted
< fome things of the fame nature to another, Yot
« he granted it rot to me. My Blood will be

« alfo found at the door of the unrighteous Jury,
Vor. IV,

™

&

™
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<« who found me guilty upon the fingle Oath of an
¢« outlawed Men 5 for there was none but his Oath
¢ about the Money, who is no legal Witnefs, tho’
« he be pardoned, his Qutlawry not being recall’d :

‘¢t and alfo the Law requires two Witnefles in point

e« of Life; and then, about my going with him
¢« to the Place mentioned, it was, by his own
«« Words, before he could be outlawed, for it was
¢« ywo Months after his abfconding 3 and though
¢« in a Proclamation, yet not High-Treafon, as ]
« have heard : fo that I am clearly murdered by,
«« you. And alfo bloody Mr. Aterbury, who fo
« infatiately hunted after my Life 5 and tho’ it is
«« no Profit to him, yet through the Ill-will he
« hore me, left no Stone unturned, as I have
«« ground to believe, until he brought me to this;
« and fhewed favour to Buwrfon, who ought to
¢« have died for his own Fault, and not to have
< bought his Life with mine. And laftly, Richard-
« fon, who is crucl and fevere to all under my Cir-
e« ‘cumftances, and did at that time, without all
«« Mercy or Pity, haften my Sentence, and held up
«« my Hand that it might be pronounced ; all which
¢ together with the * Great one of all,
«« by whofc Power all thefe, and mul-
«¢ titades of more Cruelties are done, I do heartily
«« and freely forgive, as done againft me : But as’us
« done in an implacable Mind againft the Lord
« Chrift, his righteous Caufe and Followers, Lleave
< it to him who is the Avenger of all fuch Wrongs,
« and hath faid, I hewe raifed up one from lhe
< Nezth, aid be foall come npon Princes as upois Mor-
< tar, and as the Potter treadsth Clay, I, xl1. 25,
< ¢ fball cus off the Spirit of Prinecs, cid be fei-
«« pible 1o the Kings of the Eailh, Plal, Ixxvi. 12,
¢« And know this alfo, that tho’ you are feemingly
¢« fixed, and becaufe of the Power 1n your hands,
¢« qnd a weighing out your V iolence, and dealing
« with defpiteful Hand, becaufe of the old and
«« new Hatred, by impoverifhing, and by every
«« way diftrefling thofe you have got under you 3
« yet unlefs you fecure Jefus Chritt, and his holy
¢« Angels, you fhall never do your bufinefs, nor
«« your hands accomplifh your Enterprizes 5 for
« he will come upon you €’er you are aware, and
« therefore, O that you will be wife, inftructed,
¢ and learn, 1s the Defire of her that finds no

«« Mercy from you,

* K. James IL

Elrzabeth Gaunl,
POSTSCRIPT.

cc UCH as it is, you have it from her, who
¢ hath done as fhe could, and is forry fhe can
« do no better ; hopes you will pity and cover
« weaknefs, fhortnefs, and any thing that 1s want-
« ing, and begs that nonc may be weakned or
¢ humbled at the lowlinefs of my Spirit; for God’s
«« Defign is to humble and abafc us, that he clone
«« may be exalted in this Day : and 1 hope he will
« appear in the needful time, and it may Lo re-
« frves the beft Wine till Tat, and he hath done
« for fome before me ; none goeth to Warfare ac
¢ his own Charge, and the Spirit bloweth, not
¢« only where, but when it lifteth ; and ir becomes
«« me, who have fo often grieved, quenched, and
¢ yefifted it, to wait for and upon the Motions of
«« the Spirit, and not to muimur but I may
« mourn, becaufe through want of ir, I honour
¢« not my God, nor his blefied Caufe, which 1 have
«« {o long loved and delighted to love and repent
¢ of nothing, about it, but that I ferved him and
¢ it no better.

Y The
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CXXXVIL The Trial of CaarvesBarTesan, Surgeon, at the Old-Bailey,
for High-Trealon, December 9. 1685. 1 Jac. II.

H E Seffions of Peace, Oyer and Termi-

sier, and Goal. Delivery of Newgate,

for the City of Loudoiz and County of

Middlefex, beginning at Fuftice-Hell in
the O/d-Bailey, on the gth of December, 1685.
Charles Bateman, againft whom an Inditment of
High-Treafon had been found, for confpiring the
Deathof the late King, &¢. was broughtin the Cufte-
dy of the Keeper of Nezwgale in order to his Arraign-
ment; and being ordered to hold up his Hand,
he defired that he might firft fay fomething for
himfelf, in order to put off his Trial, but was told
by * Mr. Recorder, he muft plead be-
fore he could be heard, Whereupon
defiring to know whether he might
have the fame advantage after his Pleading as
before, as to gain longer time for his Trial; and
being anfwered he might, he held up his Hand,
and then the Indiétment was read.

Mr, Bateman pleaded not guilty, and defired his
Trial might be put off, faying, He was wot pre-
pared 1o make bis Difence, and therefore prayed
1 longer time, faying, He bad deci clofe Prifoner
for the fpace of ten Weeks, and wwas over and aboye
very ek indifpofed 5 and further alledged, be had
had o Notice neir Pancl of the Jury. As for Norice
of Trial, he was anfwered, that it was not
ufual to give any in that Court, but that he ought
to have expefled i, and prepared for it accord-
ingly ; and as for the Pannel, it was not deny’d
him, Then he pray’d a Copy of the Indiétment,
but was told it could not be allowed; and upon
his further alledging his unpreparednefs and no
notice of Trial, and the like, the King’s Counfel
*urged that he had Opportunity enough to rake
notice of his Trial, for that it was upon an In-
ditment of the precedent Sefiors.  Then he afked
what time he might have between his Arraignment
and Thial; and was anfwered, as much as would
ftand with the conveniency of the Court: and
after feveral Hours refpite, he a fecond time was
brought to the Bar, and then upon his humble
Requeft, Pen, Ink, and Paper was allowed him,
and his Son to affift him; and then were fworn
to try the Iffue,

* 8r Thomas
Jenner,

Rickard Aley Efq; | Edward Rbedifl
Richard Williains | George Lilbur
Fobn Cannum Daniel Fouls

Patrick Barret
Fobn Palner

Fames Raynoy

Peter Floyer
Lawrence Col
Tebir Cooper,

And he making no Exceptions to them, then
the Indiétment was read.

The Jurors, &,

T Y1 AT Charles Batesnan, late of the Parifh

_ of St. Duuflan in the Wep, in the Ward of

Fariugdon Without, Loidon, Surseon, as a falfe

raitor, againft the moft illuftrious and excellent

Prince, Charles the Second, late King of Eng-
I

land, Scotland, France and Ireland, Defender of the
Faith, and his natural Lord; not having the
Fear of God in his Heart, nor weighing the Du-
ty of his Allegiance ; but being moved and fe-
duced by the Inftication of the Devil, the cor-
dial Love, and true, due and natural Obedience,
whicha true and faithful Subjeét of our late Lord
the King, towards him fhould, and of righe ought
to bear, altogether withdrawing and practifing,
and with all his Strength intending the Peace
and common Tranquillity of this Kingdom to
difquiet and difturb, and War and Rebellion .
gunit our late Lord the King, within this King-
dom to ftir up, move, and procure; and the
Government of our late Lord the King, of this
Kingdom to fubvert, and our faid late Lord the
King, from the Stile, Title, Honour, and Kingly
Name, of the imperial Crown of this Kingdom to
depofe and deprive, and our faid late Lord the
King to Death, and final Deftrudtion to bring;
and put ; the zoth Day of Aday, in the 35th Year
of his Reign, and divers other Days and Times,
as well before as afterwards, ar the Parifh apd
Ward aforefaid, faliely, maltcioufly, cevilifhly,
and traitoroufly, with divers other Rebels and
Traitors to the Furois unknown, did confpire,
compafs, imagine, and intend our fhid late Lord
the King, then his fupreme and natural Lord ;
not only of his Kingly Swmte, Title, Power and
Government of his Kingdom of England, to de-
prive and depofe, but alfo our faud late Lord the
King to kill, and to Death to bring and put,
and the ancient Government of this Kingdom to
change, alter, and fubvert; and a miferable Slaugh-
ter amongf(t the Subjects of our faid late Lord the
King to caufe and procure, and Infutre@ion and
Rebellion againft our faid late Lord the King
to procure and affift. And the fime moft wicked
Trealons and traitorous Conlpiracies, Compaffings,
Imaginations and Purpofes aforefaid to effect, and
bring to pafs; he the faid Charles Bateian, as
a falfe Traitor, then and there, (to wit) the faid
goth Day of May, in the g5th Year aforefnid,
and divers other Days and Times, as well be-
fore as afterwards, at the Parith and Ward afore-
faid, falfely, unlawfully moft wickedly, and trai-
toroufly, did promife and undertake to the fiid
other falfe Rebels and Traitors then and there
being prefent, That he the faid Charkes Boterran
world be afifting and aiding, in the iaking  and
apprebending the Peérfon of our foid late TIord the
King, eid in toking aud feizing the City of Lon-
don, and th: Tower of London, 1ke Savoy, and
thz Royal Palace of White-Hall, apainft th¢ Drty
of bis Allegiance, againft the Peace, &c. and a.
gainft the Form of the Statute in this Cafe made
and provided, &c,

Mr. Phipps. Counfel for the King, opened the
Nature of 1t, and was feconded by Mr. Serjeant
Selby and Mr. Charles Moly 5 after which, M.
Joftas Keeling was fworn, whofe Evidence was, that

he
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he had been at divers Meetings and Confults, where
the Methods had been propofed for the Purpo-

(s aforefaid 3 and more particularly one time with
Rumbold the Maltficr, fince executed for High-

Treafon, and that then, three Papers were pro-
duced by Rambold and opened, containing the Mo-
del of the Defign, todivide the City into twenty
Parts, and to raife five hundred_ Men 1 each P:J.r{f,
to be under one Chicf, ard nine or ten Subordi-
nates whom he fhould appoint, the I\Tamte: of E!IG
Lanes and Sircets of each Divifion being likewife
mferted therein 5 and at that time Rumbold pro-
pofed the bufinefs of the Rye-Houfe, faying, He
bad o Houfz wery convenient to plant Men 1n, to feize
the King in bis refuin from New-Market, but that
he fomewhat boggled about the killing of the
Poftillion, which had been propofed the better to
ftop the Coach, becaufe 1t looked too much like
an Exploit in cold Blood. He further depofed,
that he had been at divers other places where it
had been difcourfed to che fume Effe®, and chat
Mr. Bateinen was looked upon as a Perfon fit-
ting to manage one Divifion in order to an In-
furre@lion, to feize the Jower, City, &c. This
being the Sum of Mr. Keeling’s Lvidence 3 M.
Batesian nd, that what he had fworn, did not
affe€t or charge any Treafon upon him 5 and was
anfwered by the Court that it did not, and bid the
Jury take notice, that what My, Keeling had {worn,
was only to the Confpiracy in general, and did
not affect the Prifoner m particular,

Then Thouras Lee was {worn, and gave Evi-
dence, That he betng made acquainted with the
Deign by M. Grodenaygh, &c. and how the City
was to be divided into twenty Parts and managed 4
and being afked who was a fit Man to nanage
one part, he nominated Mr. Bateiian, and there-
upon was defired to go to him, and fpeak wich
him about tt as from Mr. Geodenongh 5 and when
he came to difcourfe him about that Affair, he
apprenended very plainly, and that he was no Stian-
ger to i, nor boggled to give his Affent, and
feeni’d much defirous to fpeak with Mr. Goode-
#oxen about 1t: That he likewife went one day
to the late Duke of Mmmentlh’s Houfe with Mr.
Bateinan 3 and Mr., Bateman, after he had had
fome Dilcourfe with one of the Duke’s Servants,
came to him and told him, the Duke was willing
to engage 1 the Bufinefs, and affurd him, thar
he had divers Horfes kept in the Country, to be
in a readinefs when matters thould come to Fax-
tremity 5 and from thence he went with him to
the Ring's-Head Tavern, and there had difcourfe
to the fume ceffe@t : and from thence they came
to the Dzvil-Tavern within Temple-Bar, where M.
Beteinan propofed the feizing the City, Tocwer,
d.zvey,  IWhite-ball, and the Perfon of the late
King, and promifed not to be wanting therein.
At another time, he met him at the Holf-Moon-
Tavern in Ablerfate-fireer, where difcourfing a-
bout the Condition the Confpirators were in,
as to the intended Infurrection, he faid, If be
conld Out fee a Clond os big as a Mow’s Hand, he
would not be wonting to employ bis fatereff + and
that there were other Difcourfes tending to the
Infurretion, but were broke off by the coming
in of one Fobn Aligger, before whom Mr. Bate.
mair woukd not difcourfe, becaufe he knew not
of his coming,.

Mr, Lee ocing atked the Defign of thar Meet-
ing, reply’d it was upon the account of CaATyINg;
on the Confpiracy, and that Mr, Bateman had

VYou. IV,
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told him, that he intended to take a Houfe
near the Tower, to place Men in, in order to fur-
prize it, and that "he had held divers Conferences
with fome Sea-Captains on that Affair 5 and that
he had been with them at Coffee-Houfes, &c. at
funary other times ; but there, to prevent difcovery,
they {poke of the Defign at a great diftance,

To this Evidence, Mr. Bateman objected, that
if he had becn confcious of what was laid to his
Charge, he was fit for Bedlam 5 faying, He woi-
aer’d if be bed beard bim [peak fuch cords, he had
0t aceufed bim fooner : but was anfwered that Mr,
Goodenough was not to be had till after the Re-
bellion in the /7¢f 3 and that Lees fingle Tefti-
mony n Cafe of High-Treafor in o high a na-

ture, was not fufficient.,
Then Mr. Richard Goodenough was called, wha

ting fworn, depofed, thar being in Company
with Mr. Bateman (to the beft of his Remem-
brance) at the King’s- Head Tavern in St. Swithin's-
Aty near the Royal-Exchange, and having fome
Difcourfe about the intended Infurre€tion, and of
Wade and others that had engaged to pro/mote 1t ;
Mr. Batemair not only approvid of the Difigu, but
prowmifed to ufe bis Intereft in reifing Men 5 and not
only to be affiffing in the Divifion allotted biz:, but
s farprizing the City, Savoy, (e, and i driving the
Gitards ont of Town. To this he objefted, that
he was not at the King’s-Head, with Goodenongh 5
to wiich Mr. Goodenough reply’d, He had ot fwory
pofitive to the place, though be werily belivved that
was the place 5 but bowever, as 1o the Difeourfz
aid Werds ihen fpoken by Mr. Bateman, bz awas
pofiive.

The Lvidence being thus full againft Mr, Bafe-
mait, and Liberty granted him to make what
Defence he could, he defired that Sir Robert Adams
might be heard, in relation to a falfe Report the
fud Mr. Lee had raifed of Sir Roders and others 4
and Sir Robert being in Court, gave Evidence that
there had been a Report abroad, fuid to be rai-
fed by Mr. Lee, that he (viz. Mr. Lee) bad beater
three Kights, and thet My, Lee came to bim and
asced bis pardon, acknowledging the thing in it felf
was altogether falfe.

To the fame purpofle Sir Simon Lewis was cal-
led, but appeared not.

Amos Child being called by Mr. Bateman, to
teftify his Knowledge of Mr. Ler, and being afked
what he could fay againft him, declared, Thas
he knew anothing ta the contrary, but Mr. Lee was
aip boneft Man, |

One Baker being called by Mr. Bateman, to
teftify that Mr, Lezz would have fuborned him
again{t him to his Prejudice, fome Years fince,
of which he had made an Affidavit before Sir
William Turncr, and the faid Baker not then ap-
peartng in Court, he defired Siv William Turner
to give fome account of Baker’s Examination,
which the fad Siv #illiam had taken; bat it being
about two Years fince, Sir William declared, He
could not charge bis Mewory with auy of the Pay-
liculars contained thirein.

Mr. Tomphins, Sir lilliam Turner’s Clerk, being
called, and afked what he could fay concerning
any Examination of Baker’s taken before Sir J7il-
liam, that related to Leey he faid there svas an
Exaiination teken Anno 1683, wherein Mr, Lee
was mentioned s but 1o the beft of bis Remembranee
it was returned before the King and Comncil, aud
be conld not give any aeceunt of the Payticulars.

“
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Then Mr. Batéwai defiréd to know upon what
Statute he was indiCted, and was informed by the
Court, Thdt the Treafon wherewith ke flood charg-
ed, was comprebinded within the 25th of Edward
the Y11, and thé ¥3th of Car. 1. by Overt-Act 4 and
having little more fo fay in his own Defence, af-
ter a favéurable héaring of all he had maternally
to offer, dnd his -Son having been allowed by the
Court t6 affift him, in locking over his Notes,
and calling his Wimefles, by reafon he through
ficknefs pretended himfelf incapable : ‘Then the
Lird Chief Fuftice of the Kiug’s Bench fumny’d up
the Evidence ai lafge, and omitted nothing that
might b for thé advantage of the Priloner, where-
by the matter was fairly, fully, and clearly left
to the Jury; and thereupon Mr. Baleinan wa
taken from the Bar.  After which the other Pri-
foners being called and tried, and the Jury ready
to go forth to confider of then Verdict, Mr. Base-
man’s Daughter come 1n and befought the Court,
that Baker, whemn fhe faid fbe bad found out, might
pe beard againft Mr. Lees but Mr. Lee being gone
and the Trial alread: over, the King’s Counful
oppoled it, unlefs Mr. Lez could be found (which
he could not be at that time) and the Court ha-
ving deliver’d their Opinton that it was not con-
venient to examine any Witnels after the Jury had
received their Charge, 1t being a very 11l Prece-
dent and of dangerous Confequence ;3 yet fome
of the Jury defiring 1t, the Court, to prevent any
Objections that might be made, confented, and
Baker had leave to fpeak @ whofe Evidence was,
that being in Compeiry with M. Lee, fose tiie in
the Tear 1683, and difcousfing about divers matters,
bhe bid bim go to the Sigin of the Deacock, aid 1o the
Angel aind Crown, fo o Surgeon and e Linnen-
Draper whon: be naiised, the feriner of which be re-
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William Turuer 5 but this being nothing to the pur-
pofe, but was rather looked upon as a Defign Mr.
Lee had to make a difcovery of the Confpiracy, if
he could have procured further Evidence to have
corroborated his own, and Baker being looked
upon as a broken Fellow, and that he lodged near
the Sefons-Houfe, and yet came not in before,
though often called 3 the Conlideration of the whole
matter was left to the Jury, and an Officer being
fworn to attend them went out, and after abour
half an Hour’s debating that, and what cife was
before them, gave in their Verdift, that Charles
Bateman then at the Bar, was Guilly of the High-
Treafon as laid in the Iudiffment 3 which Verdiét
was accordingly recorded, and the Prifoner re-con-
veyed to Newgafe : And being agam brought to
Tuftice-Hall, on Fridey the 11th of Deceinber, in
order to receive Sentence ; and upon holding up

his Hand, being atked WWbat be conld fay forr bisii-

felf, awhy the Court fhould not give Fudgincnt againft

bim according to the Law 3 be defired to knowo wihe-
ther Mr. Goodenough wwas fully pardened, and was
told, that as for the Out-lawory e was pardoned,
and that bis Pardon bath becin allowed and approved
of in that Court, aud iz the Court ¢f King’s-
Bench, and for any thing clfe be was not profecuted.
Then he fard Dis Opinion was altogether for Monar-
chy, and that be heped be fhorld have an Advocate
with the King 3 but had nothing more material to
offer.

Then Mr, Recerder, after having {poke feveral
things in aggravation of that great Crime, where-
of, after a fair and favourable Trial, he was con-
victed, advifed him not to flatter humfelf with
hopes of Life, and thereby delay his Repentance
neceffary for his future Happinefs 5 pronounced the
Sentence, which was, Tdat be fhould returs lo the

meibred to be ihe Prifoncr, and to infinnate bimfelf  place from whence be came, frown ithence be drazvn

into their Company and difeourfe thein 5 and when be
dewmanded of Mr. Lee to what end he fhould do if,
or about what be [houls diftonrfe thein, be told him
it amight be about State-Affairs, and by that means
be wwould find a wey lo uiake bim a great Man
and <oben ke excufed bis aticipling o intrude into
fuch Company as awas above biiny, be being but a
Shoe-maker, My, Lee told bim be knew that be kept
Compairy with fuch and fuch Men, and why conld be
not as well do it with thofe be had mentioned.  And of
this he faid his Examination was taken before Sir

to the Place of Execution, there fo be Dang’d by
the Neck, and whillk slive be cut down and bis
Bowels 19 be taken out and lurnt 5 bis Head to be

fever'd from bis Body, aund Lis Body divided into
Ffour Parts, and that bis Iead and Quarters be .

difpofed at ihe Plzafure of the King.

Upon this he prayed a Divin: might have leave
to come to him, as likewife his Relations 5 which
bemg allowed, he departed tac Court, and was
on Friday the 18th of Dezensber, cxecuied ar Ty-
bura according to the Sentence,

Remarks
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Remarks upon the Trials of Edward Fitzharris, Stephen Colledge, Cownz Coningf-
mark, the Lord Ruflel, Col. Sidney, Henry Cornifh, a#d Charles Bateman ;
as alfo on the Earl of Shaftelbury’s Grasd ury, Wilmer’s Homine Replegian-
do, and the Award of Execution againft Sir Thomas Armftrong. By 8ir John

Hawles, afterwards Solticitor-General.,

HE ftrange Revolution which hath of

Jate happen’d in our Nation, naturally

leads onc into the Confideration of the

Caufes of it.  The Danger of fubverting
the eftablifhi’d Religion, and 1nvading Property,
alone could not be the Caufes. For if it be
true, that the fame Caufes have generally the
fime Effeé; it is plain, that in the Reign of
a precedent Monarch, the Subverfion of the
eftablifh’d Religion was as much defigw’d, or at
lealt was believ’d to be o, as of late; and it is
not material whether what was {ulpefted was true,
or not; and Property was as much invaded as of
late, by impofing Ship-Money, and other Taxes in
the Nation, bur mere efpecially Ship-Money;
which at firft was light and eafy, but in Progrefs of
Time was increas’d, according as 1t was found the
Nation would bear it,  And at length it was feared,
as there was Juft Reafon {o to do, that it would be-
come as burdenfom s what 1s now impofed on the
Fiench Nation by the French King s and yet, when
the War broke out, if the Hiftory of thofe Times,
or the Perfons who lived about thofe Times, are to
be believ’d, the Majority of the Nuation took part
with the King. There was therefore fome other
Reafons for the Difaffetion of the Nation to the
late Government, and they may be rank’d under
thefe {ix Heads.

Exorbitant Fines; cruel and illegal Profecutions s
outrageous Damages 5 feizing the Charters ; difpen-
{ing with the Teft and Penal Laws; and undue
Profecutions in criminal, but more efpecially in ca-
pital Matters.

For the Iurft, I fhall only obferve, that when the
Houle of Commions, 1n the Parliament 1680, took
that Matter into Confideration, and intended to
impeach feveral Perfons for the fame, the higheft
Fne, atthat Time complain’d of, was but 1000 /.
and yet in few Years they werc heighten’d to

| p—

10,000 L. 20,000 /. 30,000/, and 40,000 .

For the Second, the Punifhment of Oates, Day-
gerfield, and Mr, Fobufonr; and the clofe Imprifon-
ment of Mr. Hampden, Siv Sammel Barnardifion, and
of feveral other Perfons, as they were againft the
Law, fo they were without Precedent, |

For the Third, tho’ the Damages given to Bol/~
worth were the firlt outrageous Damages given,
which were taken Notice of, and in Truth were
fuch; yet 1 little Time Damages for Matters of
like Kind were quickly improved to 10,000 A
20,000 /. 40,000 /. nay 100,000 /. the Truth of
which a great many living Witnefles, to their Sor-
row, can teftify.

For the Fourtn, the feizing the City, and other
Charters, upon the Pretences on which they were
queftion’d, was without Example,
~ For the Fifth, the difpenfing with the Teft and
Penal Laws, was as mifchievous as it was illegal 5
it making Perfons capable, who were incapacitated
by Law of being in Places, of exercifing Offices,
for whom the Perfons who had Power to confer or
beftow the fame, had more Affe&ion, than for the
Perfons who at that prefent enjoy’d them: The
Confequences of which were quickly feen, in turn-
g out the prefent Pofleflors, to make Room for
others 3 which was the Thing, which, as a Scotch
Bifhop faid of another Matter, ot the Kilu a-fire.

Of thefe five Particulars fomething hercafter may
be {aid 3 at prefent, this T'reatile is only to confider
how far the Proceedings in capital Matters, of late
Years, have been regular or irregular : And as to
that, I fhall not at all confider how far the Per-
fons hereafter mention’d were guilty of the Crimes
of which they were accus’d, but how far the Evi-
dence againft them was convincing to prove them
guilty, and what Crimes the IFacts prov’d agpinft
them 1n Law were,

Remarks on Fitzharris’s Trial.

HE firft Perfon T fhall begin withal {hall

be Fitzbharris 3 and that it may not be
wonder’d, that the Trial and Condemnation of
a Perfon who was confeffedly an [rifh Papift,
fhould be complain’d of 5 znd one whofe Crimes
- were fuch, thatif the Law declar’d had not made
Capital, it had been juft, in refpe@ of the Male-
faltor, for the Legiflative Power to have enad-

ed, that he thould {uffer the fevereft Puntfhment

2

ufually inflicted for the highelt Crime @ yet, in re-
fpedt of the common Good, it had been juft and
fit ro have pardon’d him, if he would have con-
fels’"d who were his Confpirators and Setiers on
for I am apr to think, that if that Matter had been
thoroughly. look’d into, fome Perfons, afterwards
Witnefles in the Lord Raflel’s, Colonel §idusy’s,
and My, Hompdew’s Trials, had either never been

produc’d, or had not been credited if produc’d ;
' nor
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nor would my Lord of Effex’s Throat have been cut;
and my Lord Ruffel, and Colonel Sidney might
have worn their Fleads on their Shoulders to this
Day.
All will agree, that there was a great Struggle
berween the /Fbigs and Tories, as they were then
call’'d, for hanging or faving that Man : Both a-
giced he deferv’d to be hang’d 5 the firlt thought
it their Advantage to fave him 1f he would contels,
the laft thoughe it was fit to hang him for fear he
would confefs. And to explain the Matter, 1t 1
fit to go a little higher: 1t cannot but be remem-
bred, that before the breaking out of the Popifh
Plot, Mr. Claypole was imprifon’d in the Tower for
defigning to kill the King, in fuch Place and qu-
ner as Oales afterwards difcover’d the Papifts in-
tended to do it.  In Triuizy Term, 1648, he had
- an Habeas Corpus to the Kiig’s Bench, and was
brought thither in order to be bail’d, and produced
Perfons of Worth to bail him 3 but the Penaley
of the Bail fer by the Court was {o hugh, and the
Court fo aggravated the Crime for which he was
committed, and the Likelihood of the Truch of it,
that the Bail refus’d to ftand, and Clayzele was re-

manded to the Tewer,  But the Term after, when
the Matter, of which be was accus’d, appear’d
bare-fac’d to be the Defigh of other People, he
was let go, for fear the Examination of it fhould
ap further in proving the Popifh Plot, than any
thing at that time dilcover’d.  And if 1t were now
difcover’d, upon whole and what Evidence he was
commited, it would go 2 great way 1n dilcovering
the Truth of many Matters, as yet in the Dark,
(but that Defign mifcarry’d, becaufe the Intrigue
was difcover’d before it took Efiect; and yer a like
Defion was flill carried on, and many of the Cler-
oy of the Church of Eaugland had been prevaild
with to cry the Popifo up as a Fanatick Plot.) The
Papifts and the Clergy of the Church of Eng-
lnnd being in the late Times equally Sufferers, and
opprels’d by the Fanaticks, they naturally grew to
have a Kindnefs for cach other, and both join’d in
hating the Fuiraticks ; and theretore pretended, at
leaft, that they did not believe any thing of the
Popifs Plat, bui that Report was given out by the
Faonaticks, whilt they themfelves were defigning
fomething againft the Church of Euglond,  The
Papifts having fo great a Part of the Clergy of the
Church of Eigland, ready ro believe any thing of
a Fanatick Plot, which they thould forge, and ob-
ferving thar that which gave Credit to the Popsfh
Plot, was Writings concurring with Oral Tefti-
mony, which it did; for very little of the Truth
of the Popifh Plst depended on the Credit of Oates,
Bedloe, or any other Porfon, moft of the Fadts of
that Dcfign, when difcover™d, proving themfelves:
To inftance in oney Oates difcover’d Coleinan had
Intelligence with Le Chaife, of a Delign on Eig-
land, and that Coleian had Papers teftifying as
much ; when thofe Papers were feiz’d, and own’d
by Colesiiair, and the Purport of them was what
O ~tes faid they were, it was not material, whether
QOates was a Mun of Truth or not, the Papers,
without Oates’s further vidence, fufficiently provd
the Defign : I fay, the Papiffs, having oblerv’d what
the Evidence was which gave Credit to that Plot,
refolv’d o purfie the fame Steps, and theretore
Dangerfiel! was made ufe of to leave Papers in Colo-

cl Aanfels Lodging, who was an Acquaintance
of my Lord §leftesimry’s 1mporting a T Plot;

5

t Burnes's Hiftory of his own Times, 7o/, 1. p. 475.
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but that was {o foolifhly carried on,
and the then * Aorney-General, who
had the Examination of that Matter,
not being qualify’d with the Affurance his Succef-
for had, to carry on a Thing that had neither Senfe
nor Honefty in it, made fuch a feurvy Report of
the Matter to the King and Council, that they
were enforc’d to vote Manfe/ Innocent, Dangerfield
Guilty, and that 1t was a Defign of the Papifls to
lay a Plot to the Diffenters Charge, and a further
Proot of the Popifb Plot. But that Atterucy-Gene-
ral being remov’d to a Place of more Honour,
though of lefs Profit, and * another
put in his Place, the Papiffs refolvid
to carry on the fame Delign ; and no
Perfon a fitter Inftrument than Firzbarris, in re-
Ipect of his Religion and his Acquaintance ; but
before his Defign came to Perfection, it was difco-
ver'd,

He was firlt imprifon’d m Newpare, where fome
Perfons (amongft whom Mr. Coruifh, as I remem-
ber, then Sheriff, was belicved to be one, and it
was not the lealt of his Crime, that he endeavour’d
to look mto that Areanum) went to (xamine him as
to the Particulars of that Defign 5 which was quick-
ly taken Notice of, and the Prifoner, in Briach of
the Habeas Corprs Act, remov’d from thence to the
Tower, where he was kept clofe Prifoner,

The Parhament at Oxford meeting foon after
Futzbarris’s Apprehenfion, and the Houfe of Com-
mons being inform’d of as much of his Defign as
was then difcovered, they thoughe themfelves high-
ly concern’d to examine him; but how to do it
they knew not: only they refolv’d (upon a Re-
port which one of their Membezrs made them of
one Hubert, who contelied Limiclf guilty of firing
the City of Lendoir, upon which it was refolv’d to
examine him m the Houfe of Commons the next
Morning, but belore the Houle fat Hudert was
hang’d) that Fitzbarris thould not be hang’d with-
out their Knowledge and Confent 5 and to effedt ir,
they remember’d a Defign to try the five Popifh
Lords in the Tower upon Indictments; whereup-
on, if they fhould be acquitted, it was thought that
thofe Acquittals might be pleadable to Impeach-
ments, o prevent which, the Houfe had exhibit-
ed general Impzachments of tligh-Treafon againit
them in the Houfe of Lords ; which had fuch Suc-
cefs, that the Lords were never, and the Judges
oave theit Opinion, that they could not be tried
on the Indictments, as long as the Impeachments
were in Beings for which Reafon, the Houfe of
Commons exhibited a general Impeachment of
High-Treafon 1n the Houle of Tords againit Fitz-
berris, which was receiv’d 5 afrer which the Houle
of Lords made an Order, that Firzharyis micht or
fhould be try’d in the King’s Buch for the fame
Treafon : {uddenly after which, that Parliament was
diffolv’d.  Whether Fiishoriic's Bulinels was the
Break-neck of that Parliament, I know not, but
it was fhrewdly fufpected it was.

There was at that Time a* Chief
Juftice in the King’s Berch, who was
himfelf under an Impeachment of
High-Treafon, and had not, for that Reafon, fat
in Court for fome Terms preceding ; and the
Trial of Frtzberiis being generally leok’d upon to
be as illegal as it was odious, it was thought con-
venient to carry 1t on by a Perfon of » Francis
better Credit; whereupon * one who  Pemberton.

had

* Sir Crefyveel
Levinz.

* Sir Robert
Sawyer,

* S William
JCroges.
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had Leen a Puifne Judge of that Court, and had

behaved himfelf very plaufibly, and had gained
Credit by being turn’d out, was thought to be the
firtelt Perfon to undertake it and accordingly the
then prefent Chief Juftice was remov’d, and the
other was preferred to his place.

It being refolv’d that Fiszbarris fhould be try’d,
the Bufinefs was how to get Witnefles to give Evi-
dence to 2 Jury, and how to get Juries to find the
Bill, and to convict the Prifoner, which were dif-

ficult Preliminaries.
A #* Perfon who had been one of the

* & Willam 11540 of Commons, which had ex-
Waller. hibited the Impeachment, was a prin-
cipal Witnefs; but if he fhould give Lividence on
the Indi@ment, he knew not how far he might be
hereafier queftionable and punifhable for it, when
a Parliament fhould fit again 3 but at laft that Per-
fon was prevail’d upon to give Evidence, but by
what means is beft known to himfelf. And as for
the Juries, Grand and Petty, they were fatisfy’d
with the Direction of the Coure, that they not on-
ly might, but ought to find the Bill, and Verdict,
according to their Evidence, And I think the Court
was fo far in the right.

That Matter being adjufted, a Bill of High-
T'reafon was found againt the Prifoner ; whercup-
on he was prefently arraigned, and after much Con-
teft and Declaration of the Court, that they could
hear nothing till he had pleaded in chief (which if
he had done, the Plea he afterwards pleaded, which
was the JurifdiGtion of the Court, had come too
late) he had Leave given him to plead the fpecial
Matter of the Impeachment; and accordingly
Counfcl were aflign’d him to draw up and argue his
Plea put in to the Jurifdiction of the Court 3 which
was, That be was impeached i a fuperior Conrt for
the fame Treafon.

Great Endeavours were ufed to have the Plea
over-ruled, without fo much as hearing the Prifo-
ner’s Counfel for the maintaining 1t. The Pretences
were, that the Prifoner on his Plea ought to have
produced the Record of his Impeachment, and
that the Plea of the Impeachment for High-Trea-
fon 1n general was nawght, without {pecifying what
the High-Treafon was, for which he was im-
peack’d; for an Impeachment, or an Indi€tment
of High-Treafon in general was naught; that the
King had power to proceed on an Impeachment
or Indictment for the fame thing, at his Elettion:
Thar the Allegation, that Fitzharris was impeach'd,
wolch Linpeachient flood in full force, not having
mention’d an Impeachment before, was naught,
But afterwards the Atforney-General demurred, and
the Prifoner join’d in the Demurrer,  And then a
Day was given to argue the Pha till Saturday the
7th of May, at which tme the Aterney added to
the Exceptions he took to the Plea, Whethera Suit
n 2 fuperior Court can take away the Jurifdiction
of another inferior Court, who had an original Ju-
rifdiction of the Caufe, of the Perfon, and of the
Faét, at the time of the Fadt committed ?

To maintain the Plea, the Counfel for the Pri-
foner alledged, that an Impeachment differd from
an Indiékment; the firft was at the Suit of the Com-
tnons of Kugland, and was like an Appeal, or ra-
ther an Appeal refembled an Impeachment; that
the Proceedings were different in the Trials: In
the fcft, the Trial s by the Houfe of Lords; in
the lalt, of a Commoner, by a Jury of Com-
mons, In the faft, but little time was allowed for
giving or confidering of the Evidence 3 in the firft,
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a much longer time. That this Matter was never
practifed before ;- that the King may pardon a
Criminal profecuted by an Inditment, but not by
an Impeachment, no more ‘than if profecuted by
an Appeal. If he thould be acquitted on the In-
dictment, 1t might be a Queftion whether that may
be pleaded in Bar to the Impeachment; and if
not, the Prifoner fhould be brought twice in jeo-
parcy of his Life for the fame Crime, contraryto
the Rule of Law,

To the Objection, thatthe Pla was not certain ;
it being pleaded as an Impeachment of High-
Treafon, not fetting forth the High-Treafon in
particular ; 1t was anfwer’d, that an Impeachment
differ’d {from an Indi€tment: For by the Cuftom
of Parliament, which is the Law of the Land, fuch
a general Impeachment is good ; but by the Law,
a general Indictment of High-Treafon, without
{pecifying what, when, where, or how, is not
good ; and thercfore the Pla of an Indictment and
an Impeachment is variant,

To the Objection, that there was no Impeach-
ment mention’d before the Averment of gue gui-
dem impetitio, it was frivolousy for it was before
mention’d that he was impeach’d, and then by a
neceflary Confequence there was an Impeachment.

As to the Objection, that the King might, in
which Court he would, profecute for High-Trea-
fon, it was little to the purpofe; for the Cafe did
not come up to it, the Impeachment being the
Suit of the Commons, and not of the King; and
that the Courts of 77eflminfler-Hall had refos’d to
meddle with matters relating to the Parliament,
That though the Impeachment was general, yet
it was made certain by the Averment; that it was
for the fame Crime for which the Indi¢tment was:
‘That the Atreriey-General might have taken Iffue,
that there was no fuch Impeachment as was plead-
cd; or elfe he might have faid, that the Im-
peachment was not for the fame Treafon for which
he was indicted 5 but having demurr’d, he had con-
fefs’d both to be true. That at common Law, if
an Appeal of Murder had been brought, the King
could not proceed on the Indi¢tment, till the Ap-
peal was determin’d; that the Judges, whereof
fome were then in Court, had given their Opinions
to the King and Council, concerning the five Po-
pith Lords, that they could not be try’d upon In-
dictments, {o long as general Impeachments were
depending for the fame Treafon: and yet their
Cafes and this differ’d 5 there the Indiétniznts were
found before the Impeachments preferr’d, and here,

after the Impeachment.
In the reply to vitiate the Plea, 1t was whifted,

that it did not conclude ff Curic procedere deleat as
well as vuft, as was ufual for Plas of that nature
to do; that perhaps this Matter, if the Prifoner
had been acquitted upon the Impeachment, might
have been pleaded in bar to the Indi€tment, burt it
was not pleadable to the Jurifdition ot the Court;
that in the Cafe of the five Lords, the Indictments
were removed 1nto the Houfe of Lords; that Ap-
peals in Treafons are taken away by the Firlt of
Henry the IVths that in the Plea it ought to be
averr’d, what Lev & Confuetudo Parl. ave; that
till Articles carried up, no Man 1mpcach’d 1s ob-
lig’d to anfwer: that i all Cafes of Appeals, a
Man is put twice in jeopardy of his Life, if he be
try’d upon an Indiétment within a Year.

To take a thort Review of what hath been re-
cited, it was thought the King’s Counfel run the

Court wpon a Rock, and it was hard for them to
ot
L]



163
‘get off. The Court had advis’d them to take time
ro confider what Courfe they would take 3 but the
King’s Counfel were hafty, as they always were
when they were refolved to carry a Matter right
or wrong ; and having three bad Ways, they chofe
the worlt.

If they had taken Iffue on the Record,_ or the
Averment, that the Impeachment and Indictment

were not for the fame Treafon, they might have
pretended that the Journal of the Houfe of Lords

was not 2 Record, or that the Dzbates in the Houle
of Commons were not good Evidence; or1f they
had reply’d, the Order of the Houfe of Lords for
trying the Prifoner in the Kiiig's-Bench, to the Plex,
they might have infifted on the Power of the Houle
{o to do: but having demurr’d, they confeffed the
Truth of 2ll the Matter of the Plea, and wav’d
the Benefit of that Order, and ftood upon Poinis
of Law, either conceded by the Court, or refolv’d
by the Judges before, or fuch necefiary Inferences
{rom them as were impoffible to be deny’d.

It could not be deny’d, but a general Impeach-
ment of High-Treafon, by the Cuftom of Parlia-
ment, was good; it could not be deny’d, but,
by the Refolution of the Judges in the Cale of
the Lords in the Totwer, a general Impeachment of
High-Treafon flopt Preceedings upon an Indict-
ment for the fame Matter, It did not differ the
Cafe, that the Indi@ments 1n tie Aiug’s-Burch a-
gainfl the Lords were remov’d into the iHoule of
Lords; for every onc knows new Indiétments mighe
have been preferred againft them for the fame
Crimes. And 1f that had been the Realen of the
Judges Refolution, why did not the Judges then in
Court, all, or meft part of whom were Judoes at
the giving that Opinion, deny the Opinion, or the
Reafon allede’d, which they did not? It was not
a Reafon to difallow the Plea, becaufe particvlar
Articles ufe to follow general Impeachments, and
the Impeach’d are not bound to anfwer ull the par-
ticular Articles were exhibited, which is true s for
by the fame Reafon, a Defendant cannot plead an
Aion depending agunit him for the fame Mat-
ter in a fuperior Court, unlels the Plantiff hath
declar’d againft him in the fuperior Court, which is
not true. It was not a Reafon that all Records in
inferior Courts muft be pleaded paruicalarly, as In-
diétments, and the likes Dbecaufe fuch Records
muft be certain and particular, or elfe chey are
erroneous, and cannot be pleaded 5 butan Impeach-
ment may be general.

Where the Matter of a Plea 1s naught, no IForm
can make it good ; though where the Mater of a
Plea 1s good, an ill Form may fpoil 1, If there-
fore a general Indictment or Record 1s naught, as
in all the Cafes cited againft the Plea, it was no
{pecial Averment to reduce it to a certainty, or any
Form can make 1t 2 good Plea: But a general
Impeachmert 1s good, and thercfore it may and
muft be pleaded gencrally 3 and pleading 1t fpeci-
ally, would make 1t falfe, 11" there were no {ubfe-
quent Articles, as in this Cale there were not, to
afcertun it,

It is to no purpofe to run through all the Ram-
ble of the Counfel or Court againft the Plea, when
they all faid the Matter of the Plea was not in
queftion, but the Form; and yet when {o often
afl’'d 1n what of the Form 1t was defective? they
were not able to anfwer, It 1t be agreed that the

1
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Matter of a Plea is good, but it 15 defective 1t
Form, they always fhew how it ought or might
have been mended, which mn this Cafe was nevep
done. And as this Cafe was new in feveral Parti
culars, fo it is i this, that in rcading all the Ar-
guments of this Plea, no Man knows, by whac
was atfcours’d, what was the Point in queltion.

Aiter the Arguments, the Chief Juftice, infhew
at leaft, very favourably offers the Prifoner’s Coun-
fel liberty to amend the Plea, if they could 3 which
they (apprechending as they had Reafor, for I
think none can thew how 1t might have bzen mend-
ed, rather a Catch than a Favour) refus’d to do;
whereupon the Conrt teok time to confider of i,
and on tie 11th of Aday, there being a great Au-
ditory, rather to hear how the Judges would bring
themiclves off, than to know what the Law of the
Plea was, the Chici Juftice, without any Reafons,
deliver’d the Opinton ol the Court, upon Conle-
rence had with other Judges, that his Brothers,
Soites, Ragmond, and himfelf, were of Opinion that
the Plea was infuflicienty his Brother Dolben nor
refolv’d;, but doubting concerning 1, and there-
fore awarded the Prifoner fhould plead to the 1a-
diCtment, which he did, Noz Guiley 5 and his Trial
order’d to bz the next Term.

Fehmlo it would puzzle any Perfon to fhew, if

ver a Court of [i7flminflor-Hell thoushe a Mar-
ter to be of fuch difficulty as fit to be arga’d, that
tacy gave thar judements aficrwards without the
Reafons @ °Tis true, that the Courts of Civil Law
allow Debates amongft the Judges to be private a-
mong themlelves s but the Procesdings ar Com-
mon Law always were, and cught tobe, v apie
cuita *, Had this Pradtice taken place heretofore, 4
as 1t hath of late (but all fince this Precedent) no
Man could have known what the Law of Fuplond
was, for the Year-Books and Reports are nothing
but 2 Relation of what is {uid by the Counfel ard
Judges in giving Judgment, and contain the Rea-
lons of the Judgment, which are rarely cxprefs’d
mn the Record of the Judament sy and it is as much
the Duty of a Judge to give the Reafons why he
doubts, as itls of him whois fatisfied in the Jude-
ment. Men jomctimes will bz atham’d to offer
thofe Reatons in publicic, which they may pretend,
fatisfy them, if conceal’d; befidcs, we have a
Maxtm in Law urndeniable, and of ayeat vfe, thar
any Perfon whatever may re€ify crinform a Coure
or Judge publickly or privately, as dwicns Curie,
a Iriend to the Court, or a Friend to Juftice: Bus
can that be done, if the Sianders-by know nor the
Reafon vpon which the Court pronounce their Judg-
ment? Had the three Judegs, who were clear iy
their Opinion, given their Reafons of that Opi.
nion, perhaps fome of the Standers-by might have
fhew’d Reafons unthought of by them, to have
made them ftagger in, it not alier that Opinion ;
or if Jufvice Dolben had given the Reafon of his
Poubt, perhaps a Stander-by mighit have thewn him
a Reafon unthought of by him, which would have
nude him politive that the Plea was or was not a
oood Plea.

If a Man fwears what is true, not knowing it to
be true, though it be logically a Truth as it is
diftinguifh’d, yetitis morallya Lye; and if a Judes
give Judgment according to Law, not knowing it
to be fo, as 1if he did not know the Reafon of it
at that time, but bethought himflf of a Reafon

for
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for it ﬂfterwards,.thougl} the Judgment be legal,
yet the pronouncing of it 1s unjuik,

Judges ought to be bound up by the Reafons
given in publick, and not fatisfy or make good
their Judgment by after-thought of I}enlo}ns. How
very ill did it become the Chict Jultice Pophasn, 2
Perfon of Learning and Parts, mn the atainting
Sir Walter Rakeigh, cf which Trial all fince th}t
time have complain’d? when he gave his Opini-
on, that the Afidavit of the Lord Cobbam, taken
in the abfence of Sir Walter, might be given in
Evidence againft him, without producing the Lord
Cobhamn Face to Face to Sir WWalter (which was de-
fird by him, altho’ the Lord Cobbani was ghen forth-
coming). When he fumm’d up t!}e Evidence, ke
faid, * Fuft then it came into bis Mind, why the de-
cufer fhould wot come Face 1o Face o the Prifoner,
Lecanfe be wifght veiraél bis Ezideice : a:r:_d when be
fhould fee bisfelf winft die, be wonld think it beft that
his Fellow fhould live 1o conmint! the like Treafon, a:zﬁd
fo it foine fort feek Revenge, Which befides that 1t
is agsinft the common Law, and Rcafon,‘, 1t 15 a-
gainft the exprefs Statute of Edw. VI, which takes
care, that in Treafon the Witnefs (hall be brought
Face to Face of the Perfon accus’d.

Did it become a juft Man to give his Opinion,
and bethink himfelf of a Realon aiterwards? And
I am miftaken if it will not herein ‘appear, that
many Perfons complained of, have not been guilty
of the fame Weaknefs or Injuftice, call it which
you will ; {o foolifh are the beft Lawyers and plau-
fible Speakers, when they refolve to carry a Point,
whether juft or not: However they may deceive
the Ignorant, yet they talk and argue very abfurd-
ly to the Apprehenfion of the majority of Man-
kind. And they had been fooner difcover’d, but
that the Dilcoverers were quickly fupprefs’d and
crufhed, as Scandalizers of the Juftice of the Na-
tion, And I think this may be juftly called the
firft mute Judgment given in Weftminfter- Hall,

But to return to Fiizbarris’s Trial, which came
on the gth of Fuse; and then the King’s Coun-
{c] made ufe of their Arts in managing the Jury.
Ard firlt, there were a great many Perfons for
Jurors to whom Mr. Attorney had no ftomach ;
fome challenged for Caufe, for that they were no
Frecholders, as Fobin Keut, Giles Shute, Nathaniel
Graitheiz, and feveral others; and the Challenge
allow’d to be a good Challenge by all the Court ;
for though the Chief Juflice only fpoke, yet all
the Court affent to what one Judge fays, if they
do not fhew thar diffent. I do not take notice of
this, as complaining of it, for I think it is a good
Canfe of Challenge in Treafon 3 but then I cannot
but wonder at the Affurance of the fame King’s
Counfel, who dcnied it to be a good Caufe of
Challenge in the Lord Reffef’s Trial. It is true,
that was a Trial 1 the City, but that Matter had
no Confideration 1n the Judgment; for after the
Lord Reffel’s Counfel had been heard, all the Judges
deliver’d their Opinions, That at common Law, No
Frechold was no Challenge in Treafon 3 and thac
the 1 and 2 Pbil. (3 Mar. had reltord the Trial
in Treafon to be what it wasat common Law : Of
which Number of Judses, Siv Francis Pesberton
and Siv Thumas Feaes were two 3 nay, Sir Froucs
Peinberton olPQ Mr., Pollexfon, Whether be found
ciy Relolution at conmnon Law, that po Freehold
wes e Challiige ir Treafen.  And that Juigment is
afterwards cited in Colonel Sideey’s Trial, as the
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Opuion of all the Judges of Eupland, That #o
Iieebold was no Challenge to a Juror in Treafon
at common Law; .and Colonel 8iduey’s Trial was
in a County at large.

But if it was not a Challenge at common Law,
I would know how it came to be a Challenge in
Fitzharris's Cafe ? There was no intervening A of
Parliament to alter the Law Dbetween the two Tri-
als, that I know of,

Another Artus’d, was to challenge for the King
without Caufe, where no Caufe could be fhewn,
fuch Jurors as they did not like,

The Prifoner was troubled av this, and appeals
to the Court, whether the Attorney-General was
not oblig’d to fhew his Canfe of Challenge; but
is anfwer’d by the Court, that he need not till all
the Pannel was gone through, or the reft of the
Jurors challeng’d, which 1s true; but had the Pri-
foner been advisd to challenge the reft of the Ju-
ry, as he would have been it he had had Counfel,
the Attorney muft have wav’d his Challenge, or
put oft the Trial. - And fince he was not allowed
Counfel, why fhould not the Court, according to
their Duty, as they have faid it is, advis’d him fo
to do? fam fure, in Count Coningfinark’s Trial,
when Sir Francis Winnington challenged a Juror
without Caule, for the King, the Court prefuntly
all’d the Caufe; and fuch Anfiwer was made by
the Profecutor’s Counfel as was made to Frizhai-
715 ;. Whercupon the Court told the Count, that
the way to make them fhew their Caufe of Chal-
lenge, was to challenge all the reft of the Jury
and thereupon the Challenge was waved.  They
were different Pralices, tending to different Ends ;
and accordingly .it fucceeded, Firzharyis was con-
vifted, and the Count acquitted.

Upon the Trinl the Evidence was this 3 Fitzhariis
was, the 2ift Day of February, 1681, with Eve-
rard, and gave him Heads by word of Mouth, to
write the Pamphlet in the Indi&tment mentioned,
to {candalize the King, raife Rebellion, alienate
the Hearts of the People, and fet them together
by the ears ; the Libel was to be prefented to the
French Ambaflador’s Confeffor, and he was to pre-
{ent it to the Freneh Ambaflador; and it was to
fer thele People together by the ears, and keep
them clafhing and miftrufting one another, whilft
the French fhould gain Flanders, and then they would
make no bones of England : For which Libel Eve-
rard was to have forty Guineas, and a monthly
Penfion, which fhould be fome thoufands of Pounds.
EFyerard was to be brought into the Cabal, where
feveral Proteftantsand Parliament-Men came, to give
an account to, the Ambaffador how things were
tranfacted, Ewverard afked what would be the ufe
of the Libels ? Fitzbarris faid, we fhall difperfe
them we know how ; they were to be drawn in the
Name of the Noucouformiffs, and to be put and
fathered upon them., This was the Sum of Eye-
rard’s Evidence,

Mr., Smith prov’d Fitzharris’s giving Inftructions
to Everardy and Siv William Waller and others
prov’d the Libel, and the Difcourfe about gain-
ing Elanders and England : Other Witneffes were
exanun’d to preve Fitzbarris’s Hand,  Tor the
Prifoner, Dr, Qates faid, Euveirard told him the Li-
tel was to be printed, .and to be lent abou: by the
Penny-Poft to the protefting Lords, and leading
Men of the Houfe of Cominoss, who were to be
taken up as foon as they had it, and fearched, and
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to have it found about them. He faid the Court
had an hand in it, and the King had given f/z-
Barris Money for it already, and would give him
more if it had fuccefs.

Mr, Coriifp faid, when he came from Newgale
to the King, to give him an account in what Dif-
pofition he found the Prifoner to make 2 Difco-
very ; the King faid he had had him often before
him and his Secretaries, and could make nothing
of what he did difcover; that he had fgr near
three Months acquainted the King he was n pur-
fuit of a Plot, of a Matter that related much to
his Perfon and Government, and that 1n as much
as he made Proteftations of Zeal for his Service,
he did countenance and give him fome Money ;
that the King faid he came to him three Months

before he appeared at the Council-Table.
Colonel Manfe! faid, that Sir 2 illiam IWeller gave

him an account of the Bufinefs in the prefence of
Mr. Hunt, and feveral others ; and faid, that when
he had acquainted the King with it, the King fad
he had done him the greateft piece of fervice that
ever he had done him in his Life, and gave him
a great many thanks: But he was no {ooner gone,
but two Gentlemen told him, the King faid he had
broken all his Meafures, and the King would have
him taken off one way or other; and faid, that
the Defign’ was againft the Prote{tant Lords, and
Proteftant Party. Mr. Hunt confirm’d the fame
thing, and added, that he faid the Defign was to
contrive thofe Papers into the hands of the Peo-
ple, and make them Evidences of Rebellion ; and
appealed to Sir Willini I7aller who was prefent,
whether what he faid was not true, Mr, Bethel
faid, Everard before he had feen Bethel, or heard
him {peak a Word, put in an Information of Trea-
fon againft him, at the Inftigation of Betbel’s mortal
Enemy ; which Information was fo groundlefs, that
tho’ 1t was three Years before, yet he never heard
a word of it till the Friday before.

Mrs. Wall faid, Fizzbarris had 250/ 2007 or
1501 for bringing in the Lord Howard of Eferick ;
fhe added, that Fitzbarris was looked upon to be
a Roman Catholick, and upon that account it was
faid to be dangerous to let him go near the King,
that he never was admitted to the King.

The Lord Coirway faid, that the King had de-
clared in Council, that Fitzbaryis had been employ-
ed by him mn fome triflling Bufineffes, and that he
had got Mor-y «f him 5 but added, as of his own
Knowledge, that the King never fpoke with him
till after he was taken, which was the 28th of
February laft,

All the Evidence being over, 1t was fumm’d up
by the Counfel, That upon all the Circumftances
of it, Fitzharris was the Contriver and Direttor
of the Libel; that it was a treafonable Libel, and
a Jefuitical Defign; that the Excufe he made, as
if Everard drew him into it, or trepanned him in-
to 1t, was vain, nothing of that being prov'd.
That Everard could do nothing alone, and there-
tore Str Williain Waller muft be 1n the Contrivance ;
but that was unlikely: That the Prifoner would
infmuate that the King hi’d him to do it, becaufe
the King gave him Money, but that was out of
Charity 5 and therefore concluded, with a great
many Words, that an Euglifh Proteftant Jury of
swelve fubftantial Men, could not but find the Pri-
foncr Guilty. ,

The Cr_:aurt added, that though Dr, Oates faid,
Everard fad 1t was a Defign of the Court, and
wis to be put on fome Lords, and into fome Par-
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liament-Men’s Pockets 5. yet Luererd was ther
upon Oath, and teftified no {uch thing in the World ;
and for the Impeachment in the Lords Houfe, thex
were not to take notice of it .

After which the Jury inform’d the Court, thar
they heard there was a Vote in the Houfe of Con:-
mons, that the Prifoner thould not be try’d in any
inferior Court: To which the Chief Joftice faid,
‘That that Vote could not alter the Law, and that
the Judges of that Court had Conference with all
the other judges, concerning that matter; and it
was the Opinion of all the Judges of Eugland, thar
that Court had a Jurifdiction to try that Man.
After which, Juftice Jones was of Opinion, that
if he were acquitted on that Indictment, it might
be pleaded in bar to the Impeachment; and Ju-
{tice Raymond deliver’d his Opinion to the fame
purpofe. It is flrange that all the Judges [fhould
be of that Opinion; yet before it was faid, Ju-
ftice Dolben doubted. It 1s more ftrange, that
if Juftice Dolbesr was not of that Opinion, he would
hear 1t faid he was, and not contradiét it, "It is
moft ftrange, that if the Judges of that Court were
of that Opinion, they had not declar’d fo, in the
arguing or giving Judgment on the Plea; for
that was the Matter of it, being pleaded to the
Jurifdiction of the Court, that they had not power
to try the Prifoner for that Crime, fo circum-
[tanced.

If the Plea had been over-rul’d as to the Mat-
ter, none would have been {o impertinent, as to
o about to mamtan the Form of it

Now to fay truth in behalf of the Publick, and
not on behalf of Frizhariis, the Lvidence was un-
fairly fummed up, for Filzbarris never pretended
Lverard drew him 1n, or was to trepan him: It is
true, he alk’d Everard what the Defign of the
Pamphlet was, and whether he was not put up-
on it to trepan others? who anfwer’d, he was not,
But afterwards being too nearly preft by the At-
torney-General, he faid, Fuzhairis told him the
Ule of the Libels was to difperfe them he knew
how ; that they were to be drawn in the Name of
the Nonconferniffs, and put upon them. And Oates
faid, Ewerard faid the Libels were to be printed,
and f{ent abroad by the Penny-Polt to the protaft-
ing Lords, and leading Men of the Houfe of Com-
mons, and the Perfons feiz’d with them in their
Pockets ; which is all ftrong Evidence that the Li-
bel was defign’d to trepan others, and that was
all along the Import of Fitzharris’s Queftions,
tho’ cunningly not anfwer’d by fome of the Wit-
nefles, and as cunningly omitted in fumming up
the Evidence.

It 15 true, the Chief Juftice faid, Ewverard faid
no fuch thing as Oates had faid ; but why was not
Everard, who was then prefent, afk’d, Whether
he faid what Oates had given in Evidence ?

There cannot be fhewn any Precedent where 2
Witnefs contradifts, or fays more or lefs than a
Witnels that went before him, by the hear-fay of
that Witnefs ; but the firft Witnefs is afk’d, what
he fays to it. Why was not Siv William Waller,
who was alfo prefent, afl’d what he faid to the
Evidence of Mr. Maufz! and My, Hunt 2 And
who it was that inferm’d Sir #73/liain what the King:
faid ! It was no way in proof, nor pretended by
Fitzharris, that any Perfon was concern’d in that
matter, vut Everard and Filzoarris, though it was
fhrewdly fufpected by the Houfe of Commons 3 and
rno Man that reads the Tral, but believes there
were many more concern’d, not yet difcover’d : But
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the Counfel might have brought in any Judge of the fupreme Authority. That this Crime, upon

the Court by the Head an_d“ShouIders to b'e a Con-
federate, as well as Sir iliiam IValler, wio was 2
Yack-a-lent of their own fetting up, In order to
knock him down again. | | |
It was not pretended by Fitzbairis that the King
aave him any Ivioncy to frame that, or any other
iihcl; there was Ewvidence, that he had got Mo-
ney of the King for fome little matter he was em-
loyed in, perhups, for bringing in Libels difperfed
abroad, or difcovering Plots. | |
Upon the whole Evidence,‘ it was pl;}m that Fifz-
barris was an Lrifb Papift 5 1t was plain he was the
only vifible Contriver of the Libel; who were be-
hind the Curtain is not plain, and to know them,

was the Defign of the Impeachment.

It was plain it was a devilith Jefuitical Defign, as
the Court and Counfcl, in fumming up the Evi-
dence, agreed it to be; it was plain, that the Li.

ef was fuch, that if difpers’d with intention to &ir
up the King’s Subjects againft bhim, ic had been
High-Treafon within the Statute ?f the 13th of thc_
King : But what the Intentton of the contriving of
the Libel was, was not very certain 3 and therefore,
confequently what the Crime of 1z was, was uncertain.

To take the Lvidence all the ways, as to the De-
fign of the contriving of the Libel, it is capable of
being interpreted ; the eafielt Conftruction is to fay,
he fram’d a Libel with intention to pratend to the
King, that he had intercepted a Libel privately
difperfed 5 and to make it more likely, it thould
be framed 1n the Nonconformifts Naines, to make
his Report the more credible (for of Papifts or
Church-men it could not be believed) to get more
Money of the King; and that martter, by all his
Queftions to the Witnefles, he moft drovear: and
that would at moft be but a Cheat.

A more criminal, but lefs credible Conftruttion,
1s to believe he defign’d to difperfe them, to excite
and prevail upon the Difcontented to take up Arms.

For what Efiet had that Pamphlet, when it
was (for it was afterwards) difperfed, upon the Minds
of the People ? Or what Effe&t could any Man of
Senfe think it conld have ? For though it was a vi-
relent, yet it was as joolifh a contrivid Libel as
ever was writ; yet I own, if it had been writ and
difperfed with that Defign, it bad been High-Trea-
fon within the Statute of’ Ed. 111,

But the moft natural Conftruction of the worft
Defign of it, was to trepan the Parliament-Men,
and make the Libels Evidences of a rebellious Con-
fpiracy : This Everard confefles Fitzbarvis told him
was the Ule to be made of them; and Everard
could not know the Defign of them, but by what
Frtzbarris told him,  And Oates well explains what
Everard meant by the Words, in his Evidence, put
the Libel on the Nonconformifts, by what Everard
told him.

But yet even that, though in itielf the higheft
Crime a Man can be guilty of, next to putting it in
execution, is but a Confpiracy 3 which was mudly
punt’d in Lage and Kuox cheir Cafe, though this
exceeded that ;. that being a Defign only againft one
Perfon, this againft many.

Yet thovgh this was of no higher Crime by the
Law, x8 now eftabiif’d, than a Mifdemeanor, it
was fit for the Legiflative Power to have punifh’d
it 10 the manner it was punifld 5 which yet the
Leglﬂaltive Power ought to refent as an Injury, for
an inferior Court’s foatching the Excrcife of that
Yower cur of their tdands, which only belongs to

Vor. IV,

conltruction of the Evidence taken in the bef:
senfe, s no Treafon ; though the Libel fhould
in all probability incite the Subject to lvy War,
which it was not likely to do, or if in Fa& it
had been the caufe of a Rebellion, yet if i was
not defigned by the Contriver to that purpof,
it was not Treafon by the Swmtute of Edward
the Third, or Chailes the Second 5 for in the lait
Statute, it 1s defigning to levy War, and in the
Statute of Kiward the Third, it is a Grained
Conftruction, to make defigning to levy War,
T'reafon 3 yet none ever pretended to ftrain
the Senfe of thiat Statute farther than defigning to
do it

If the ill Efic@ts the Libel did, or might pro-
duce, made it Treafon, then Sir Same/ Affrey, who
read 1t in Court at the Trial, and the Printer, that
afterwards printed and publifh’d 1r, and Sir J#/-
liain [Zallery who read it te Mr. Iunt, and others,
were guilty of Treafon; for the Libel carried no
Venom or Charm with it the more, for belng
fram’d by Fitzbarris or Everard, or for being pub-
hih’d by cither of them, than if publifhd by an-
other Perfon.

The difference i1s, Affrey read it aloud, as ki
Duty 3 the Printer printed and publifhed it for Gain ;
Sir Williein Weller publif’d it as u Novelty; and
it Fitzborris contriv’d ir, to put it vpon the Non-
conformifts, or Parliament-Men, and notio fiir p
a Rebellion, though it tended to all the i1l Confe-
quences mention’d in his Indi€tment, yer it was not
Treafon.,

But it will be wrged, how fhali Firzlariis’s In-
tention be proved ? Je was 2 Queltion which made
a mighty {putter in arpuing the Plea.  How fhall
it be proved, that the Impeachment was for the
fame Treafon for which the Indidtment was ? Bug
n the Trial of Fitzbariis, that Quellion was fully
cleared 5 for it was proved there, that the very Li-
bel then produced in Court, was the fame Libel
read i the Houfe of Commons, upon which the
Impeachment was voted.

And to fay truth, nothing can be put in Iffue,
but is capable of Trial: Quo aiiiro a thing is done
in all Overt-Adts of a Defign, is one of the main
Queftions 5 * or to {peak in Law Phrafe, whether
done proditerié or not, an Adverb of ereat Ufe and
Senfe, though heretofore flighted 5 and under which,
} believe, a great many Perfons will bz enforc’d 1o
fhelter themfelves from being punifhed by the Law
eftablifl’d,

No Man will pretend thac Libel did any Man
muichief but the Contriver; nor in probability
could have done, if notufed to the purpofe Eve-
rard fnd to Oates,  Yet other Per{ons have been
suilty of as illegal AQs, of worfe Confequences in
prolpedt, and much worfe in effeét, and it did not
amount to Treafon. I dare fay, the Allegation,
that they difturbd the Kingdom by their Ads,
and War cans’d to be mov’d againft the King, is
true of them, and they are guilty of all the Aggra-
vations us’d in IndiCments of Treafon,

"To inftance in {ome of many; Did it not make
a mighty heart-burning in the City againft the Go-
vernment, and rais’d great Jealoufies between the
King and People, when the Sheriffs, Nortdh and
Rich, were impos’d on the City # Did not the k-
ing away the City’s Right of elefling Sheriffs, and
the fulpicions for what end it was'done, befides the
[llegahivies that- followed ¢ If what Sir Edward

VAR Herbert

© 8 Thial of Wocedburne, Siate Trials Vol, V1. p.222,
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Herbert fays in his late Vindication, Fol. 16. be
Law, as it hath an afpect as if it were, that Grand-
Juries return’d by fuch as are Sheriffs in fact, but
not in right, are illegal, and Convictions on their
Prefentments are illegal and void, give great di-
fturbance : and that Opinion feems to be counte-
nanc’d by my Lord Ceke’s third Iuffiz. Fol. 32. 1n
his Comment on the 11th of Henry the IVih, and
confequently my Lord Ruffel’s, and other Atr:;ain—
ders void? Did it not add to the heart-burning,
the punifhing thofe Citizens as Rioters, who werc
at Guildball, innocently contefting their Right of
eleCting? Was it notan increafe of the Miichief,
the bringing the Quo IVr:i‘i'ﬁf;!a againft the City,
whereby the Credit of the City was loft, and ma-
ny Orphans farved, :1_nd more 1mp0ver!ﬂled, be-
yond the poffibility of recovery f And it was yet
heighten’d by the Judgment given in the higheit
Cafe that ever camie into Wefiminficr-Hall, by two
Judges only, and that without one Word of Rea-
fon given at the pronouncing, according to the Pat-
tern of Fiizhairis’s Cale, and was the fecond mute
Judgment. Did it not fright all honelt Men from
being on Criminal Juries, when 777/ was {o ille-
oally profecuted for not giving a Verdidt againft
his Confcience, by an Femine Repligionds, and In-
formation ¢ Anrd did not that make all Merchants,
who had Tranfaétions beyond Sza, afraid to fend
their Servants thither, for fear they might be laid
by the Heels till they fetch’d them back again ? Did
it not flartle the Lords, and the leading Men of
the Houle of Commons, mention’d {o often n Fitz-
boriis’s Trial, when the Barl of Effex;, Lord Ruf-
fel, Colonel Sidnzv, My, Hempdenry, and feveral o-
thers, were clapp’d up clofe Prifoners in the Tower ?
Did it not deter an honeft Man from appearing to
witnefs the Truth, when Siv Paticice IV erd was con-
victed of Perjury? Did it not provoke two great
and noble Families, when the Lord Rzffe/ and
Colonel Sidney were fo illegally and unhandlomly
dealt withal, as fhall be hercafter declar’d? Did 1t
not provoke all the Nation, except the Clergy and
Soldiery, when all the Charters of Euglond were
feiz’d, and not re-granted, but at exceflive-Rates,
to the ftarving the Poor, who fhould have been
fed with the Money which went to purchafe the
new Charters, and referving the difpolition of all
the Places of Profit and Power, within the new Cor-
porations, to the King, but which indeed the Con-
federates fhar’d ammong themfelves ? Nay, the very
Election of Burgefles, the freenefs of which is the
oreat Fundamental of the Government, was mo-
nopoliz’d, and put mtoa few hands. Did not the
unreafonable Fines, and cruel Punithments infliced,
opprels many, terrify all, and confequently made
the Government odious to the Subject? Did not
the Cruelties acted in the /7¢f, enrage above a
thied part of the Nation? Did not the turning out
many of the Soldiery and Clergy, without any
Reafon; and for that purpofe erefting arbitrary
Courts, and granting Difpenfations to Perfons by
Law difabled, to enable them to have and enjoy the
Places and Offices of fuch as were illegally turn’d
out, and of all who thould be i1n like manner turn’d
out? And was it not feen what the Confequences
of thole thing would be, by all who did not wink
their Iiyes, or who were not blinded by the Profic
they made of fuch illegal and cruel Aéts ? Was
not the King at laft fenfible, that the Confequence
of what is before recited would be what afterwards
happen’d 2 And did he not in lefs than 2 Month’s
rime, when too late, throw-down all that Badel of
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Confufion which had bzen fo long a building ? and
did all in his power, and would have done more if
he could, to have {ct things as right as they were
before the Iarliament of Oxon; for from thence
the Extravagancies may be dated. Butalas! more
Mifchief can be, and was done by weak Brains,
than the beft Wits can retrieve; thofe that were
dead could not be brought to life ; the reltitution
of the Citics Charters was but in fhew a Relief.
How fhall all thofe defend themielves who have
acted under all the tllegal Sherifls conflitured, and
not cleted ¢ How fhall thofe defend themfelves,
who have alted under Officers apmointed by the
new Charters, which by the reftitution are gone as
if they never had been ? Tow fhall Sheriffs, Goal-
ers, and other Officers, who have had, or now
have Cuflody of Prifoners, and having not taken
the Teft, trult to the Validity of a Difpente, be-
have themfelves 2 Shall they continue to keep their
Prifoners in coftody, orlet them go? If the laft,
they are fubject to Actions of Efcape; if the firfl,
they are liable to falfe Imprifonment.  Thele, and
a great many more Mifchiefs, not yet fcen, are the
natural refults of thefe illegal A&ions.

I never reflect on thefe things, but I remember
Tully, in his Offices, lays down as a Rule, that no-
thing is profitable but what is horeft, and gives
many Reafons for 1t but nothing fo convincing,
as the Kxamples he brings in publick and private
Matters,  And tho’ the Empire was vaft, and he
bore a great IMigure in it, and was very knowing,
and  was wdl read in the Greek and Reman Hi-
ftorics, yet he was not able to bring a hundredth
part of Examples, to prove his Polition, as have
been in this little Ifland in the fpace of eight Years,
And the Perfons, by whofe Advice thefe things
were tranfacted, are the more inexcufable, If it
be truc what a certain Nobleman (who bore a con-
fiderable Character in the two late Kings Council)
once faid to me was true, He was complaining
that the King was mifled by the Advice of his Law-
yers. I afk’d him whether the King put his Judges
and Counfe! upon doing what was done, without
confidering whether 1t was legal, as the common
Vogue was he did; or that his Lawyers firft ad-
vis’d what to be done, was Law ? He anfiver'd me,
on his Honour, the King’s Counfel at Law firft
advis’d, the King might do by Law what he would
have done, before he commanded them to do it.

Yet I agree, none of thole matters, though fo
inconvenlent and grievous, are Treafon by the Sta-

tutes of 4 III. or Car, 11,

For Profit in fome Cafes, Revenge in others, the
endeavouring means to efcape Punithment, and a
natural propenfity to Cruelty in many, were the
true ends driven at; and not the bringing their
Prince into the hatred of his Subjects, though that
was a neceffary confequent of all recited, and of
many more matters omitted. And let Fitzbarris’s
Crime, and thofe recited, be but examin’d, his was
but a Peccadillo to the leaft of thofe ; though this
was aCted by an Irifh Pepifft, and thele by Englify
Protefiants, Sons of the Church of Euglazd as by
Law eftablilh’d, as they call themfelves; though T
doubt, not fincere Proteftants, as my Lord Reffel
faid 3 Words which were matter of Laughter to
thofe who brought him to the Block.

But, though ncither Fitzbaryis’s Crime, taken in
the laft Senfe, nor the above Crimes, were High-
Treafon by any Statute; and the Judges have not
power to punifh any other Treafons: yet in all
times the Parliaments have pradtifed, and it is ne-

ceflarily
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ceffarily incident to all fupreme Powers, in all _Go-
vernments; to enact or declare extravagant Crimes
to be greater than by the eftablifhed Law they are
declared to be, not by virtue of the Clanfe in the
Sratute of Edward the Third, whereby fome have,
by miftake, thought that a Power was referved to
the Parfiasacat to declare otber matters Treafon,
than what is therein exprefs’d: For admic that
Claufe had been admitted, there are none can doubt,
but in Point of Power, the Parliament could (how
far in Juftice they might, s another Queftion) have
declar’d any other matter to be Trealon ; and the
Words of that Claufe are very improper Expref-
fions, either to velt or ferve a Power in cthe Par-
licinen! 5 tor the Words are only prohibitory to the
Judges to adjudge any other matters Treafon than
thofe exprefs’d in the Act, though they were fome-
whar like thofe cxprefs’d 3 and therefore might be
fuppos’d Treafons 3 and it is a fort of monition to
Offenders, that they fhould not prefume to be zuilty
of epormous Crimes, upon prefumption that they
were not Treafons within that A¢t, For in the Pre-
amble ’tis faid, becaule many other like Cafes of
Trealon {(which mn Senfe are Cales hilze Treafon de-
clared in that A&) may happen in time to come,
which could not be thought of or declared at that
prefent ; therefore 1t any fuch fhould happen be-
forc any Juftice, the Jultice fhould tarry, and not
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preceed to give judgiiient of Treafon on i, till it
{hould be judg’d-in Parliament, Treafon or Fe-
lony. How well the Judgss, in late days, have
obferved this prohibitory Law, It the World
judge ;5 and moft ceriainly the Parliament might
have declar’d in Fitsbarris’s Cafe, as they may in
thofe other, that thé Crines were Trealon, Felony,
Mifprifion of Treafon, Trefpafs, or what other
Crimic known in the Law, ahd inflit what Punifh-
ment they thought fit: and it is no injuftice for
the {upreme Power to punifh a Fact in a higher
manner than By Law eftablifhed, if the Fa& in its
nature 15 @ Crime, and the Circum@tances make it
much more heinous than ordinarily fuch Crimes ate,
It was not injultice in the Parliament of the fecond
and third of Plifip and Mary to enaé&, that Smith,
and others, who were fuppos’d to be guilty, as Ac-
ceflaries, to a barbarous Mitder, and were equally,
it not more guilty than the Principal, to énaét; as
they did, that if they thould be found guilty as
Acceflaries, they fhould not have their Clergies,
which at the time of commitiing the Faft Accéf-
faries to Murder were allowed to have. It is true
to declare or enaét a Fa&, after it is Ccommitted,
to be a Crimie, which when committed was in it
felf none, fuch as tranfporting Wool beyond Sea,
and the like, would be high Injuflice.
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UT to return whence I have digrefs'd, Fi/z-

bariis being executed according to his Sen-

tence, though there was great grumbling a-
mongft the Proteftants, that thole who fet him on
work were, conceal’d, and never like to be difco-
ver’d now he was dead 5 yet all was quiet, and the
Confpirators, who refolv’d, though Fitzbarris mif-
carried in his Defign, yet the Plot thould go on
but what it fhould be, or where the Scenc of it
fhould be laid, or who the Pltsers thould be, they
were not well refolv’d.

Great Noile of Warrants being iff'd out there
was, but at laft all center’d in an inconfiderable
Eellow, one Stephen Colledge, a Joyner by Trade,
who for his Honour, as a Prifoner of State, was
committed to the Tower for High-Treafon, At
firll 1t was defign’d to lay the Scene in London, and
accordingly a Bill of Indictment of High-Treafon
was exhibited to the Grand Jury (whereof Wikuer
was Foreman) at the Seffions-Houle : Bu: the Bufi-
nefs of Fitzharris was fo new, and {mel: (o rank,
that the Bill could not be digefted, but was {pew’d
out with an Jpaorains 5 for which Wilmer was
aiterwards forc’d to fly his Country.

Then 1t was refolv’d the Scene fhould be at Ox-
Jord, and accordingly the King’s Counfel, with I-
rifo Witnefles, at the Affizes, poft thither, and
prevail with the Grand-Jury to find the Bill ; but
by what Arts is not known, for he was privately
fhut upby them : and 1 fhould wonder, if he, who
frequently, in the hearing of thofe: who under{tood
better than himfelf, had Affurance enough to 1m-
pofe upon the Courts, fhould feriple in private to
impofe any thing on an ignorant Jury,

I know not how long the Prad&ice in that Mat-
ter of ﬂdmittiﬂg Counfel to a Grand-Jury hath

been 3 Iam fure it is a very unjuftifiable and un-
{uiterable one. If the Grand-Jury have a Doubt in
point of Law, they ought to have recourfe to the
Court, and that publickly, and not privately, and
not rely upon the private Opinion of Counfel, efpe-
cially of the King’s Counfel, who are, of at leaft
behave themfelves as if they were Parties.

It is true, it is faid they are upon their Ouaths ;
and though it be not exprefs’d in their Oaths, that
they fhould do Right between the King and Sub-
jeéts, yet that is imply’d in the Oath, Iagree. But
have they behav’d themfelves as if they were under
an QOath? Befides, alt Men are not capable of giv-
ing Advice to be rely’d on in fo great a Matter as
Life ; but the Manner of doing it being in private,
can never be juftify’d, Tknow, in Fitzbarris’s Cafe,
the King’s Counfel were cajoling the Grand Jury in
private for fome Hours : but I did not think fit to
take notice of it in that Trial, becaufe Ithink both
the Grand and Petty-Jury did very wéll ; they acted
according to the beft of their Undeftanding, which
1s all that God or Man requird of them ; they
ask’d pertinent Queftions, they were over-rul’d in
fome, not fully anfwer'd in others ; not that I
think either of them gave a Verdiét according to
Law upon the Fa®, as it appear’d upon the Evis
dence ; but that was rot tlie Fault of the Jury, but
of the King’s Countt], and of the Court, who mif-
led the Jury. I thought it more pfoper to také
notice of it in this Trial, wherein the firlt Bill was
rejeCted by an underftanding Jury, and all Men
wonder’d how the fecond came to be found Bilis
Vera s and for that Reafon, one of the King's
Council boafted at Court, of his Service and cun

ning Management in thi¢ matter,

The
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The Bill being found, the next matter was to
bring the Prifoner to his Trial: and as he had
more IHonour than what ufually is beftow’d on fo
mean a Man to be committed to the Tower, tho’
in truth it was to keep him from all means of De-
fence ; fo to carry the matter on, he was allow’d
to have, by order of the King and Council, a
Counfel and Sollicitor to come to him, and ad-
vife him for his Defence at all Events 3 a Favour
deny’d to Fitzbariis, for his Counfel was to advife
to the matter of the Plea only ¢+ but that Iavour
in fhew was only to betray him, as fhall be fhewn.
And a third Favour he had, which no Man of his
Quality ever had ; there were then three of the
King’s Counfe! fent from Leudoir, and all the Coun-

fel that could be pick’d up upon the Spot, which
were three more, and no lefs than four judges to

profecute and try him; but dhat was to make

fure work of him.

The 17th of Augefi, 1651, he came to his Trial ;
his Inditment, as to part, was in comrmon Form
for Treafon, but particularly for defigning to leize
the King’s Perfon at Oxferd, mixt with Words he
fhould fay, as, That there was no good to be ex-
pected from the King, he minded nothmg but
Beaftlinefs, and that he endeavour’d to cftablifh
Arbitrary Power and Popery.  To wiich being
requit’d to plead, he defir'd a Copy of the In-
di¢tment, a Copy of the Jury, to krow upon what
Statute he was indified, and Counfe] to advile him
whether he had any cung vleadable m Dar;  all
which were deny’d him.  Then hedefir'd he mighe
have his Papers, which were taken from him after
he was brought from the Priloen, and before he
came nto Couri, ar an Houte over-againft the
Court 5 for fo it feems the King’s Countel had or-
der’d the mateer, that the Goaler Merrel, and the
Meflenger Sawel, aiter they had him out of the
Prifon, fhould run him into an Houfe, and wke
away all his Papers, which they believ’d were the
Inftruétions, as in truth they were, of the Coun-
{el affign’d him when in the Tz, and bring the
Papers to them ; whereby they would not only
difable him of his Dzlence, but they could be bet-
ter inftruéted how to proceed 1in a way for which
he had not provided himfelf of any Defence.

Murrel and Sewe! did as the King’s Counfcl di-
reCted them. Much wrangle there was whether
he fhould have his Papers or not ; all the Court
agreed he fhould not have them ull he had plead-
ed Guilly, or Not Guilty 3 and atterwards he fhould
have the Ufe of fome, and not of others, becaufs
they did not appear to be written by himfelf, but
by fome Counfel or Sollicitor 3 and as they faid,
none is allowed 1n Treafen, unlefs affiened by the
Court. The Chief Juftice North faid, they were
not taken away by him 5 but, fays Cofledge, they
were taken away by the Keeper, under pretence
of bringing them to his Lordthip. The Court
faid they knew not what Papers he meant, and
knew nothing of it: he faid, the Indiétment men-
tion’d {fomething of Mifdemeanor, as well as T'rea-
fon, but he knew not how to make his Excep-
tions without his Papers. 1 have thought fit to
mention all thefe things, becaufe this Trial was
the Inlet to all that followed, and gave Encourage-
ment to {pill nobler Blood. The Injuftice of the
Violence us’d to the Prifoner, muft be meafur’d
from the Reafons given for it, that the Papers were
Inftructions from Counfel and Sollicitors, and none

in Law was allow’d in Treafon, °Tis true, no

Remarks on Colledge’s Trial

Counfel are allow’d for the Prifoner in a T'ral
upon an IndiCtment oi any Capital Matter 3 but
in an Appeal for Capital Matters, Couniel are al-
low’d even on the Trial.  The Reafon given, that
the Indiétnient s the Suit of the King, and no
Counfel or Witnefs 15 allowable in a Capital Mat-
ter againft the King, 1s foolith, as fhall be here-
after thown ; and as vain 1s the Realon that the
Judges are Counfel for the Prifoner, which they
ought to be: - but I doubt it will be {ufpected,
that in this Cafe, and many others, they did not
make the beft of their Client’s Cafe; nay, gene-
rally have betray’d their poor Client, to pleale,
as they apprehended, therr better Client, the King :
for {o they fay they are to be Counfel hkewife tor
the King in Indittments, that 1s to {ay, they are
to be indifterent and upright between both, fo cer-
tainly they are to be in Appeals; therefore that
s not the Reafon wiy no Counfel 1s allowed the
Prifoner in the Indictment @ but the true Reafon
in probability 15, that the Prifoners in Indictments
are generally fo very poor that they could not
be at the charge of havieg Counlel, and fo Non-
ufuage gave colour of a Law.,

The other Reafon my Lord Cokz gives for it,
vz, that much of the Truth may be difeern’d by
the Prifoner’s Behaviour, or Anfwers, which would
be conceal’d 1f he fpoke by another, 1s not fatis-
factory ; for the faime 1s to be faid m an Appeal.
As to the Publickk, ’us not material whether a
Man 15 profecured and punifi’d by an Indictment,
or an Appeal;  and that Appeals are lefs frequent
than Indidtments, 15 only that the firft is more
chaigeable than the laft 3 for though we hear not
of late of any Appeals but in Murder, yet they lie
in Robbery, Burglary, Felony, and mn all Crimes
at Common Law punifhable by lofs of Life or
Member ¢ but though the Rule in Indictments s,
That no Couniel 1s allow’d, yet 1t 1s confin’d to
the Trial. No Law, Common or Statute, norany
Ufage, fays, a Prifoner fhall not have Counfel to
advile him before or after the Tral; and in Mur-
der, and all other Crimes, 1t Is always admitted ;
and why not in Treafon 2

In Treafon, fay fome, ’tis criminal for one to ad-
vife or follicite for the Prifoner; and the King’s
Counfel faid, he had known one inditted for being
a Sollicttor for one m Idigh-Treafon ; and fays the
Court, it1s cruminal forone to be Sollicitor or Coun-
fel in Calus of High-"T'reafon, unlefs affign’d by the
Court: and whether 1t be fo or no, 1s worth Inquiry.

Firft, No Law-Book as to this Matter makes
any difference between Treafon, and other Crimes ;
and Advifing and Solliciting 15 {poken of in genc-
ral Terms; which being reduc’d to Particulars,
will thew the Abfurdity of it.

Suppofe I, obferving the Indictment on which the
Prifoner was arraign’d, was erroncous, and {hould
therefore advife him to move and quafh it for thar
Error: for, fay I, if you thould be t:y’d on this In-
dictment, and found guilty, uniels you movein Ar-
reft of Judgment, you will be attainted, and then yos
can take no advantage of that Error 5 and if you be
acquitted, you may be indicted agnin, and ty’d
again, becaufe the firft Indiiment was erroncous.

If this be Law, as none can deny 1, s it not
lawlul to advife him 5 and 1t isnot fit for the
Court to quafh the Indi¢tment faulty, notwith-
ftanding all the Cant of Dilatories, Subterfuges,
and defending him{cll by plin Matter of Fadt ?
Or fuppofe I advife tn Facl, that T hear thar {uch

A Wit-

t 2. Co. Inff. 158,



Remarks. on Colledge’s. Tral.

enefs is come againft him, I know he is hired
iﬁ;};ltt?le Jobb, and%will prove it on him, z_f call’d_:
Or fuppofe I tell him, I know fuch 2 Witnefs is
convic of Perjury, and if he will call me, I will
produce the Records of his Conviction ; can any
Lawyer fay thefe things are criminal # Buot if I
thould advife a Prifoner to _cfcaPe out QE: Prifon,
thewing him the Way of doing it, it Is crlmmal.‘

Tn all Cafes comforting a Traitor 15 Treafon *;
but it is meant where you do it to kee_p hl_m from
Jufticet; forelfe feeding a Traitor in Prifon 1s Trea-
fon, which none will affirm§. So that reducing ge-
neral Words to particular Fadls, clears the S?Ehl-—
ftry of them : nor is it criminal to be a Solhicitor
in Treafon, for where there is no pofitive Law, as
in this Cafe there is not, natural Reafon {nu[’c take
place ; and better Reafon cannot be given than
what the Prifoner in this Cafe gave: If a ‘M:m be
coop’d up and not fuffer’d to go about his Bufi-
nefs himfelf, and no Friend muft be employed to
do it for him, how is it pofiible for him to make
his Defence? I know it is faid his Innocency mult
defend him 3 but the Folly of that Saying {hail be
fhewn in another place.  But fay they, The Court
fhall affign him a Counfel and Sollicitor 3 but when,
and for what ? only for a Point of Law. May
not a Prifoner want a Sollicitor for a Matter of
Fac? Suppofe he had occafion fora Witnefs which
he could not readily find, or occafion for a Copy
of a Record, for want of which Mr, Cornifh fufferd ;
was it not reafonable for him to have a Sollici-
tor ? And when fhall the Court aflign him a Solh-
citor ? only when the Prifoner comes upon his
Trial, and then it is too late to have any ufe of
him ; as Colledge was arraign’d at twelve, and try’d
at two a-clock the fame Day ; and as was Mr. Cor-
#ifi’s Cafe. . But, fay the King’s Counfel, they
had known one indited for High-Treafon tor be-
ing a Sollicitor in fuch a Cafe, though I do not
believe it, yet that Authority goes no farther to
prove the Matter, than an Indiciment [ knew a-
gainft a Perfon once, for ftealingan Acre of Land;
and againft another for wickedly and devilifhly
breaking an:Award, whereby two unjuft Arbitra-
tors directed the Prifoner to convey his Land to a
certain Lord, without any Satisfattion or Recom-
pence, prov’d thofe Matters to be Felonies.

But though a Prifoner may be advis’d, yet that
Advice muft not be reduc’d to writing. Then fup-
pofe one Man’s Memory be good, and can bear all
the Advice given him, and another’s Man’s Memory
bad, and cannot do it: Is not the laft hang’d for
having a bad Memory, rather than for his Crime ?
But though it may be reduc’d to writing, yet it
muft be his own Hand writing, and not another’s 3
how ridiculous 1s the Diftinction ? Suppofe the Pri-
foner cannot write, then he is hang’d for his Pa-
rents Fault or Mistortune, for not educating him,
or for not being able to educate him beter,

Which is fomewhat of kin to the late Praice in

. the Weft, where many Men were hang’d for having
old Fewifh Names, as Obadiab, or the like, with a
Jeft, that their Godfathers hang’d them, But, fup-
pofe 1t 1s not lawful in ceneral to be a Counfel or
Sollicitor, with, or to a Prifoner committed for
High-Treafon 5 yet the Profecution being the King’s
he may give a Privilege which the Law of Courts,

“doth not allow, and in this Cafe 1t was fo done :
for, to the Confufion of thofe who did this Inju-
ry, and of thofe Judges who would not do the
Prifoner Right, they have printed the Orders of the
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King and Council, which appointed Mr, 77/ and
Anron Smith to be s Counfel and Sollicitor.,

If it was lawful for the Prifoner to have Counfel,
and to have Advice in writing ;_ it was very unlaw-
ful, and as high a Mifdemeanour in the King’s
Counfel to order his Papers to be taken away, as
they were capable of being guiley of 5 both the Pri-
foner and the Matters of his Defence being under
the Protection of the Court,

It is notan ancient Practice the feizing of Papers,
though of late us’d ; it began, I believe, upon my
Lord Coke, whofe Papers were feiz’d and carried
to the Secretartes Office, - upon the like Pretences
as of fate, and when return’d, were gelt of many
Bonds and other Securities, to a grear many thou-
fand Pounds value, which never came to light.
It was afterwards praflis’d upon fome Members
of Parliament, and, as I remember, voted Illegal,
as undoubtedly itis: for though, fometimes you
may meet with Papers which may be Evidence a-
gamnit the Prifoner; yet it is poffible that other
Papers than the Prifoner’s may be mix’d with his
to make good an Accufation ; nay, which is worfe,
fome of the Papers may be withdrawn, which may
be the only Matter of his Defence, and that hath
been often practis’d. And I cannot but remember
a Story about this Matter : When Siv 27lliaim Fones
died, it was faid, that one from P hitehall offer’d
Sir William Foues’s Servant a great Sum of Money
but to let him fearch his Mafter’s Study, to find a
Paper which would difcover great Matters, A cer-
tain Perfon difcourfing with a Privy-Counfellor a-
bout 1t, the Privy-Counfellor faid, It was not trues
for, fays he, if we had had a mind to have doneir,
could wenotfend a Meflenger on pretence of fearch-
ing for treafonable Papers, and bring all the Study
to Whitehall, and keep what we would of them ?

But though that hath been often pradlis’d, vyet
this was the firft time that ever a Prifoner had the
Inftructions for his Defence taken away from him ;
and the Manner was worfe than the thing, it being
done juft as he was coming to his Trial, relying
upon his Writing, not his Memory, for his De-
fence ;3 befides the Agony fo great an Injury put
him in, when he had fo great a Concern upon him,
as the Trial forhis Life, and he could not but know
by all that Preparation, that it was more than ten
to one againft him: all which is well feen in his
Trial, where he fo pathetically and fenfibly prefs’d
the Court for Juftice in this Matter, which they ex-
cus’d with fuch mean Anfwers, that all Mankind
muft fee they were fatisfy’d of the Injuftice, and
were refolvd not to do him Right: They knew not
which way he came by the Papers, they knew not
but he may be criminal who brought them him 3
they knew nothing of his Papers, they knew not
what Papers he meant 3 that his Lordthip did not
take them away, and fuch like ftoff: asif it was
not the Duty of the Court to relieve the Prifoner
againft the Oppreffion of any fuch Perfons but
themfelves 5 elfe why did they not afk Murrel and
Sawel who ftood by, and were charged with taking
them, for the Papers, and have fatisfy’d themfelves
of them? But in tuth they knew before what they
were. And Colledze was 2 true Prophet, when find-
ing his Life fo befet, he faid, This was a horrid
Confpiracy to take his Life: but it would not ftop
there, for it wasagainft all the Proteftants of Eng-
land. And the Rule the Court made at laft was
as unjuft, That he fhould have the ufe of fome of
his Papers after -be had pleaded not Guilty, but

not
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Dot before 3 for fuppofe there was Matter in them
which could not be made ufe of after fuch Plea, as
a Pleato the Jurifdi@ion of the Court, a Pardon,
otherwife acquitted, and the like, could not be
leaded, or advantage taken of them alter not
Guilty pleaded ; although there was not {uch,  yet
there might have been fuch Pleas tor ought the
Court knew. How unjuft then was it for him to
plead not Guilty before he fhould have the ule of
his Papers ? But there was Matter in them for quath-
ing the IndiGtment 3 and he hinted fo much to the
Court, as that the Indi¢tment contain’d Crunes of
different Nature, as Treafon and Mifdemeanour,
and I think it was good Caufe to quath the Indict-

ment.
In all Civil Matters, two Matters of different

Natures cannot be put into one Action, as Debt
and Trefpafs ; two Capital Crimes of dictment Na-
tures cannot be join’d in one Indifferent, as Mur-
der and Robbery : and for the fame, and another
Reafon, Treafon and Mifdemeanour cannot be

join’d in one Indi€tment; for the Jury may obferve
that one part of the Indi@tment, which in it felf is

but Mifdemeanour, as that he faid, The King
minded nothing but Beaftlinefs, &¢. though charg’d
in the Indi&ment as Treafon, was prov’d, and not
the material Parts of the Indi¢tment, as defigning
to feize the King’s Perfon, e, and finding fome
part of the Indictment prov’d, might find him
Guilty generaily, which extends to every Artice
of the Inditment, and {o the Jury deceiv’d, and
the Prifoner in danger; or fuppofe he was acquit-
ted of fuch an Indiétment, if 1t ought to have been
quafh’d, whether the Prifoner fhew the Error or
not, he may be try’d again upon another good
Indi@tment for the fame Treafon.  If therefore what
he offer’d was an Error, or but like an Error in
the Indi¢tment, by the Law which favours Life,
and the jeopardy on Life, the Court ought not to
have try’d him on that Inditment, but have direc-
ted another Indi¢tment to have been found. Itisa
vain Objection to have faid, That that would have
been troublefome, Is the Mifchief of that compa-
rable to that of putting a Man twice in jeopardy of
his Life for the fame thing? Bur 1t would have
been a delay, 1 fay none ; for there was a Grand
Jury in Court, and within the two Hours time the
Court adjourn’d (to give the King’s Counfel Oppor-
tunity of viewing the Prifoner’s Papers which were
taken from him, and to confider of the Method of
his Profecution by them, which they did, and al-
ter’d it from what they at firt defign’d it} the,
King’s Counfel might have had a new Bill found ;
but peradventure they could not prevail with thae
Grand Jury to have found a new Billy they remem-
bred they had ill luck with the firft Bill at Loadon,
which I believe was the true Reafon : bur T'll do
the Court no Injury, in fuppofing that to be the
Caufe of the Adjournment which wasnot ; *tis true,
in the printed Trial, ’tis pretended they adjourn’d
in order to Dine 3 yet thofe that knew the Adjourn-
ment was by the Direction of the King’s Counfel,
and overheard therr whifpering withthe Chief Jultice
(which is both an indecentand an unjuft thing, and
1s neither better nor worfe thana Plaintiff or Defen-
dant’s whifpering a Judge while his Cafe 1s before
him trying) and I know that the Judges had break-
fatted but a little before, and had no great Stomach
to thew Dinners, and therefore believe, that that

before affign’d, and not what was pretended, was
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the true Caufe : ‘They might better have put off

their Dinner to their Supper, than their Supper to
their Breakfaft, as they did, the Trual lafting till
carly next Morning.

But becaufe all Irregularities of Court and Coun-
fel, 1n all thefe Matters, . are fhifted off and excus’d
by two Sayings not underftood generally 5 the firft
whereof 15, That the Court is to att for the King,
and the Counfel are for the Kinp, and no Perfon
muft come near the Prifoner, to the Prejudice of
the King, asin Fitzbairis’s Cale was often faid 5 a
Witnefs was permitted to go on in an 1mpertinent
Story, of a Tranfaction between him and my Lord
Shafteshury, in my Lord Ruffels Trial, of which the
Prifoner complain’d that 1t was defign’d to incenfe
the Jury; and though the Chief Juftice declard it
was not ividence, vyer a greac while afterward he
went on in a ltke manner : nay, the Counfel in fum-
ming up the Kvidence, repeated the fame Matter,
which was permitted becaufe it was for the King;
and yet, when the Ll of Auglefea began to fay
what the Lady Chaworth told him, he was fnubb?d,
and cut thort; and Mr. Edward Heward was ferv’d
the fame Sauce, becaufe it was agaiuft the King :
It is fic therefore to know what is meant in Law
by thofe Words, No body doubts what the Courts
or King's Counfel of Jate Days meant, but in Law
they are not fo meat: for though many thingsare
faid to be the King’s, as the Protector of his People,
and more concern’d 1n their Welfare than any pri-
vate Perfons; yet they are fo in Prefervation, and
not In Property or Interet. The Highways are
the King’s, in prefervation for the paffage of his
Subjedts 5 and whoever obftruéts them wrongs the
King, as he is hurt when his Subjelts are hurt;
but in Property, the Soil generally belongs to pri-
vate Perfons, The King 1s hurt when his Subje&s
are opprels’d by Force, becaufe he has engag’d to
defend them ; and therefore the Offender is punifh’d
by the King, to deter the Offenders, and others,
from committing the fame Offences; which is for
the benefit of the Publick, But asa Man may be
opprefs’d by open Force, fo he may be opprefs’d
by private Infinuations, and falfe Accufations, and
the King has engag’d to defend his Subjedts from
fuch 5 not that it is poffible to prevent them, but
by confequence, that is, by punifhing fuch as fhall
be found guilty of thofe Crimes, which heretofore
were punifh’d with che higheft arbitrary Punifh-
ments we read of.  The Confequence is, That it is
for the King to punith Offenders, to acquit the
falfe accus’d, and to punifh the falfe Accufers;
that 1s to fay, in all Cafes to do right according to

Law and Truth.

Surely Queen Elizabeth gave the beft Explana-

tion of the * Words, when the Lord Burfeigh, fee-
ing Sir Edward Ceke, the then Attorney-General,
coming towards her, he {aid, Madam, here is your
Attorney-General, Qui pro Domina Regina [equitur.
Nay (fays fbe) Pll have the Words alter’d, for it
thounld be, Qui pro Domina Veritate fequitny.

Tor the Kiug, and for Truth ; they are fynony-
mous Words ; for the King againft the Truth is a
Contradi¢tion.  And the Judges and King’s Coun-
fel having taken an Oath to advife the King ac-
cording to the beft of their cunning, which is ac-
cording to Law and Truth 3 if therefore the King’s
Counfel ufe means, and the Court permit them fo
to do, to fupprefs Truth, or to difable the Pri-

foner from making his Innocence appear, as in Col.
" fedge’s

* 3 Cok. Inf. 79,



Remarks on Colledge’s: Trial
Zdge’s Cafe was done, if they urge things as Evi--

£ the Crime whereof the Prifoner is accus’d,”

dence © ' er is
which by Law are not Evidence, . as in this Cafe,

in the Lord R:,_{ﬂéfjs Cafe, Colonel.Stduey’s Cafe,

" Hamodew's, and Mr. Coraiff’s Cafe, and in ma-
:}ayrmfiﬁjﬁn:; sdid, and as in fome of -them f{hall be

hereafter thewn. I
dence, which 1s not p

rov’d, as inmy Lord Ruffel’s

Trial, that my Lord of Effex kilbd himfelf 5 1f;

they wreft as LFvidence of | the Fa¢t, what in S_epfc
is not fo, as in Colonel Sidugy’s Cafe, the writing
his Book, (nay, for any thing appear’d, 1t was writ
before King Charles the Second came to the Crown)
they are Counfel aginft the King, beingagainit
Truth, as well as againft the Prifoner. *

I think no Man will deny the TrutI_l of t_h:s
Propofition, That it is as much the King’s in-
terelt to have an Innocent accus’d of Trealon,
acquitted, as it Is to have a Nocent accus’d of Trea-
fon, convited. If that be true, then let any one
thew me a Reafon if he can; for there is no
Law againft it, why he may not have the fame
Liberty of clearing his Innocence, as the Profecu-
tor hath of convi®ing him ; I mean by free and
privatc Accefs of all Perfons to the Ejrii_bncr, as
is us’d in all other capital Matters. I it be faid
he may get fome to corrupt the Witnefles againit
him, or fuborn others for him, the fame may be
faid in all other Matters 5 but in Treafon that is
not a likely Matter, for generally the Prifoner
never knows what he is accus’d of, and confe-
quently cannot know his Accufer, nor how to

rovide a "Counter-Evidence, till he comes to be
arraien’d, and then 1t is too late : for generally
he is prefently tried after his Arraignment, as was
the Cafe of Colledge, and my Lord Ruffel, and
Mzr, Cornifp ; and Perfons committed for Treafon
are {o much the lefs able to corrupt or fuborn
‘Witnefles, than any other Crimunals, that they
generally, according to the late Practice, have no
Accufer brought Face to Face to them on their
Commitment as all other Criminals have, who
always are commutted upon an Accufation made
upon Qath i1n their hearing, and their Defence
heard before their Miitimus made ; and whatever
the Pretence may be, yet in Experience, it is found
that more Perjuries are committed in Profecutions
for Treafon by the Accufers, than by the Witnef-
fes for the Prifoner.,

One reafon is, A Witnefs in Treafon is more
difficultly convicted than in any other Crime: For
Trealon 15 an fguis fatuus, °tis here and there, as
Colledge was firlt in Lowdon, then in Oxford 5 it is
not confin’d to place or time, as all other Crimes
arc; in all other Crimes, as Murder, Robbery,
or the like, 1t muft be proved to be -yithin the
County where laid; it mult be of the Perfon
named 1n the Indiétment, which are Evidences
of Fadt, which in fome fort prove themfelves.
-Aund there was but one that I remember (for
Usics 1 do not count one) was ever juftly con-
victed of Perjury in Treafon, and that too was
for want of Cunning, for he foolithly fwore to
Time as well as Place, which a2 Wimefs in M.
Hempden’s Trial would never be brought J0 do:
Befides Malice and Revenge, which in Profecu-
tors .:md Accufers in Treafon are generally the
Mthes, go farther than Money or Kindnefs,
which if ws’d in any Cafe, are the Motives of
falfe Witneffes for the Prifoner.

Now as for the King and for the Truth are the
fame, fo for the King and for the Law are the

Vo IV,

f they infinuate any Fact as Evi-
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fame, . The Laws are the Xing%, a3 he Is to fee
the Execation and Prefervation of them; fo for
the King againft the Law is a Contradiion,

- Therefore to try a Prifoner upon a vicious In-
dictment, as was done in Colledee’s and Colonel
Sidney’s Cafes, is againft the King as ir is againft
Law, for by that means he is in danger to be
hang’d if convitted 5 or tried twice, if acquitred,
which 1s againft Law, |

It is no Salvo of the Matter what the Judges
faid in Colledge’s Cafe, thar the FEvidence of
Mildemeanour is no Evidence of Treafon ; for

“the fame may be faid in an Indi®ment of Mur-

der and Robbery; nor that the Judges would
take care to inform the Jury which was Evidence
of ‘Treafon, which of Mifdemeanour, which they
promis’d to do, but were not as good as their
Words, as fhall be fhewn : for the Court may
forget {o to do, and the Jury may forget what
the Court faid to them of that Matter.

But notwithftanding all this, if the Prifoner
was innocent, there could be no harm done to
him, for his Innocence would defend him : This
was a faying, " and as mortal it was to Fitzharsis,
to Colledge, to Colonel Sidnzy, to Mr. Cornifh,
and feveral others, as was the Letter © amongft the
Greeks, Tt is true, my Lord Coke us’d the Ex-
preflion, but in another Senfe than that of late
practid. I would fain know what they tneant
by the Expreffions Is 1, that no Man will or
ever did fwear falfdly agamlta Prifoner in Treafon ?
If that be tue, how came the fame Perfons to
be fo violent agninft Oates for what he fwore a-
gainlt freland ¢ or do they mean, thar, let an Ac-
culer fwear never {o violently and Circumftanti-
ally againft a Prifoner, yet if he be innocent it
will do him no harm 2 If that be true, I would
fain know how the Prifoner fhall efeape; is it
that his Innocence fhall appear in his Forehead,
or an Angel come from Heaven and difprove the
Accufer? Neither of which we have. obferved,
tho® all have faid, and I believe, that fome Per-
fons have been very innocently executed. O
fhall the Accufer be detefled by the bare Quef-
tions of the Prifoner, that I think will not be
neither 5 and therefore to inftance in the only
Yerfon who hath of late efcap’d in a Trial of
Treafon, where there was a Defign againft his
Life, which was my Lord Delesere, it he had
not had Witnefies to have prov’d the Perfons men-
tion’d to have been with him at the Place and
Time fworn ugainft him to be in other places, it
was not his Denial had ferv’d his turn, but he
would have run the fame Fate with my Lord Bran-
donn. Nay, I am apt to think had he heen tried
by a Jury of Commoners pack’d, as at thar time
they ufually were, he had not efcap'd.

‘The truth 15, when I confider the Pradtice of
late Times, and the manner of Ufage of the Pri-
foners, it is fo very mwuch like or rather worfe
than the Practice of the Inquifition, as I have
read 1t, that I fometimes think 1t was in order to
introduce Popery, and male the Inquifition, which
is the moft terrible thing in that Religion, and
which all Nations dread, feem ealy in refpe of
it. 1 will therefore recount fome undeniable Cir-
cumitances of the late PraGtice: A Man is by a
Meflenger, without any Indi€tment precedent,
which by the common Law ought to precede,
or any Accufer or Accufation that he knows of,
clapt up in clofe Prifon, and neither Fricnd or

Relation muft tome to him 3 he muft have nei-
A a ther
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ther Pen, .
whom he is accus’d 3 he muft divine all, and
provide himfelf a Counter-Evidence, withiout know-
ing what the Evidence is againft him. If any
Perfon advife or follicite for him, unlefs aflign’d
by the Court by which he is try’d, they are pu-
- pifhable: He is try’d as foon as he comes into the
Court, and therefore of a Sollicitor there 1s no
occafion or ufe s if the Prifoner defires Counfel
upon a point of Law, as was done in my Lord
Ruffel’s Trial, the Council nam’d muft be ready
to argue prefently, and the Court deliver their
Judoment prefently, without any Confideration.
The Prifoner indeed hath Liberty to except to
thirty-five of the Jury peremptorily, and as many
more as he hath caufe to except to, but he muft
not know beforehand who the Jury are ; but the
King’s Counfel muft have a Copy of them : He
muft hear all the Witneffes produc’d to prove him
guilty together, without anfwering each as he
comes, for that is breaking in upon the King’s
Evidence, as it is call’d 5 tho’ it hold many Hours,
as it happen’d in moft of the Trials: he mult
not have any Perfon to mind him what hath been
fworn againft him, and forgotten by him to an-
{wer; for if that were allow’d, the Prifoner per-
haps may efcape hanging, and that is againft the
King : There is a Proclamation to call in all
Perfons to fwear againft him, none is permitted
to {wear for him ; all the impertinent Evidence
that can be given is permitted againft him, none
for him ; as many Counfel as can be hir’d are
allov’d to be againft him; none for hum. Let
any Perfon confider truly thefe Circumftances,
and it is 2 wonder how any Perfon efcapes ? it 13
downright tying 2 Man’s Hands behind him, and
baiting him to death, as in truth was practisd
in all thefe Cafes. The Trial of Ordeal, of walking
between hot Iron Bars blindfold, which was abo-
lifh’d for the Unreafonablenefs of it, tho’ it had
its Saying for it too, that God would lead the
Blind fo as not to be burnt if he were innocent,
was a2 much more advantageous Trial for the
Sufpeted than what of late was prattis’d, where it
was ten to one that the Accus’d did not efcape, If
any of thefe things have been legally practis’d,
I have nothing to fay againft it, but I have ne-
ver read any thing of Common or Statute-Law
for it. And I can with better Affurance fay than
any Perfon who hath pratis’d thefe things, that
no Law in Eugland warrants them ; and if nor,
then confider the Unreafonablenefs of thefe Me-
thods.

There is yet one Objection to be anfwer’d,
which being a very great Hardfhip upon the Pri-
foner, gives fome colour of impofing other Hard-
thips upon him, to wit, thata Witnefs cannot be
examin’d for the Prifoner on his Oath in a Tri-
al upon an Indi@ment of a capital Matter. It s
not becaufe the Matter is Capital, for then no Wit-
nefles ought to be examin’d upon Oath for the
Appellee in a capital Matter: Neither is 1t be-
caufe it is againft the King, for then no Wit-
nefs ought to be examin’d on Oath for the De-
fendant in a T'rial upon an Indiétment of any cri-
minal Matter ; yet in Indi€tments of all criminal
Matters, not capital, ’tis permitted to the Pri-
foner.
~ To fay truth, never any Reafon was yet given
for it, or 1 think can be, if you believe my Lord

Ink or I"tper, or know of what, or by
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Coke, 34 Infiit. fol. 79, of wihich Opinion my Lord
Hale1s, 1n his Pleas of the Crown¥*, that that
Praltice is not warranted by any 4% of Parls-
ainént, Book-Cafe, or antient Record,” and that
there 1s not fo much as feintilla uris for it 5. for-
he fays, when the Fault is deny’d, Truth cannot
appear without Witnefles, As for what is pre-
tended, that it 1s {wearing againft the King, and
therefore it is not allow’d of ; *tis a canting Rea-
fon, which put into fenfible Englifh, a Man will
be atham’d to own. And as {light is the Reafon,
that it being a matter of fo high a moment as a
Man’s Life, the Prifoner will be the more vig-
lent and eager, and the Witnefles may be more
prevaild upon to fwear falfely, more than t_hey
would be in a matter of lefs moment : The Weak-
nefs of that Reafon hath been in part, and fhall
be further fhewn, I think none will deny, gbut
the End of Trials in any matters Capital, Cri-
minal, or Civil, 1s the Difcovery of Truth: Next,
tis as neceffary for the Prifoner to have Wit-

nefles to prove his Innocence, as it is for the
King to have Witnefles to convict him of the Crime 2

which Propofition 1s agreed by the Pra&ice, it
being always permitted, that the Prifoner fhall
produce what Witnefles he can, bur they are not
to be upon Qath. In the latt place, fince Truth
cannot appear but by the Confeflion of the Party,
or Tefltimony of Witnefies of both fides, it is
neceffary to put all the engacement as well on
the Witnefles of part of the Prifoner, as of part
of the King, to fay the Truth, the whole Truth,
and nothing but the Truth, as the nature of the
Matter will bear : and as yet no better means has
been found out than an Oath 5 which if denyd 1o
the Prifoner’s Hitneffes, either he is allow’d too
great an advantage to acquit himielf, or he is
not allow’d enough,

If all that his Witnefles fay without Oath,
fhall have equal credit as if they fwore it, then
he hath too much advantage ; for Men may ke
found who will fay falfely, what they will not
{fwear, as 1s plain enough. How often doth a
Defendant fay, ina Plea at Law, that a Deed is
not his, which yet in an Anfwer in Chaicery, he will
confefs to be his ? It Lis Witneffes thall not have
Credit becaufe not fworn, to what Purpofe then
is it permitted him to produce them ? If they fhall
have Credit, but not fo much as if f{worn,
I afk how much Credit fhall be given ? Is it two,
three, or ten Witnefles twithout Oath fhall be equi—
valent to onc upon Oath { And befides, that
Queftion never was or can be anfwered, what Cre-
dit fhall be given them ¢ There 1s an unreafonable
Difadvantage put on the Prifoner, that a Witnefs
produc’d on his part, of equal Credic with the
Witnefsagaindt hiny,thall not haveequal Creditgiven
him, becaufe he 1s not on his Oath 3 whereas he
is ready to deliver the fame things on his Oath,
if the Court would adminifter'it to him: and yet
that Difference was taken in Fitzharris’s Cafe, as
to the Credibility of Ewverard and Oases, the firft
being upon his Oath, the laft not.

I do,not offer this as any RefleCtion upon the
late F¥oceedings, but as a Reafon why Matters
in capital Proceedings ought not to have been
carried further than herctofore they were, againft the
Prifoner by Example of {o unreafonable a Practice.

But to return to the Trial of Colledge, vihich

came on in the Afternoon, when the Attorney 1n-
fifted

@ Tit. Evidence, P. 264 See Hift. P. C, Vol. I1. cap. 37, p.'283«
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gaed that the King’s Witnefles ought not to bz
of the hearing of cach other ; In
which he was over-ruled, but tf}e Rule not obﬁ:r‘{’d,
or was it material : for the King’s Counfel having
the Prifoner’s Writings, and by them obferv’d how.
he intended to make the W itnefies againft him con-

radict themfelves, they did not produce fuch Wit-

neffes as were not inflruéted to concur in the Evi-

dence of the fame matter, but produc’d only fuch
a5 were inftruéted to give Evidence of diftinét mar-
cere. And therefore Degdele was firft produc’d,
who gave Evidence of villitying Words fpoke of the
K’mg at feveral times, at Oxﬁ?rd and London, [3}'
the Prifoner, to himfelf alone ; that he fhew’d the
Witnefs {everal {candalons Libels and Piétures, and
faid he was the Author of them; and that he hada
ailk Armour, a brace of Horfe- Piftols, and a Pocket-
Piftol and Sword 5 that he faid, e bed feveral fiout
Mei to fland by biii, and that be tveeld :;fa.éc ufe of
thew for the defence of the Profeftant Keligion 5 he
faid,  the King’s Parly was _&fu.‘ ai Hand-full lo ‘)5:5
Party. Stevens {wore the finding u:::'i‘~ the Original
of the Raree-Shew in the Prifoner’s Chambers. obis
Smith fwore his {peaking fcandalous Words of the
King, and of his having his Armour ; and that
when he fhew’d it the Witnefs, he faid, Thefe are
things tha! will defrey the pitiful Guards of Rowley ;
that he faid, be expefied the King wonld feize fomne
of the Members of Parliament at Oxford 3 which,
if done, he wonld be one fbould feize the King 5 that
he faid, Fitzgerald, af Oxon, bed made his Nofo
bleed 3 but before long, be boped fo fee a great deal
more Blood fhed for the Caufe 5 that if any, nay, if
Rowley bizmif2lf, came 1o difoym the City, he wonld
be the death of bim, Hayacs {wore he faid, Unlefs
the King wonld let the Parhament fi2 a¢ Oxon, thoy
awould feize him, and bring bim to the Bleck ; and
that he faid, the City bad Oue Thoufand frve bundred
Barrels ¢f Powder, and One bendred houfond Men
ready al ain Howr’s warning,  Turberville {wore, he
faid ar Oxford, that be wifl’d the King would begin 5
if be did pot, they would begin with bim, and feize
bimm 5 and faid, be came to Ogford for that purpofe.

Mr. Meaflers fwore, thatin difcomrfe beeween him
and the Prifoner, he juftified the Proceedings of the
Parlicizent in 1640, at which the Witnefs wondred ;
and faid, How could he yulify that Parlicment that
rais’d the Rebellion, and cut oft the King’s Head ?
To which the Prifonerreply’d, That that Parlicisent
had done nothing but what they had juft caufe for,
and that the Parlicment which fat laft at #Wefbnin-
Sfrer was of the fame Opinion ; that he calPd the
Prifoner Colonel in mockery, who reply’d, Mock
not, 1 may beone in a little ime,

S [P illiain feansiigs {wore as to the fighting with
Firzgerald, and the Words about his bleeding,

Lor thz Prifoner,

Fictinan fud he heard Haynes {wear, God damm
Fisz, he car’d not what he iwote, nor whom he
fwore againft, for it was his Trade to get Money
by fwearing. Mris. Oliver faid, Haynes writ a Let-
ter i her Father’s Name, unknown to her Father,
Mrs. Hall faid, fhe heard Heyies own that he was
employed to pur a [of on the Diflenting- Prote-
ftants. Mrs, Richards faid, fhe heard him Qy the
fame thing, ¥baliy faid, Hayres {tole a Silver Tan-
kard from him. ZLun faid, Haywes faid the Par-
!fmm*nf‘ were a Company of Rogues for not giving
the King Moncy, but he would help the King to
Money enough out of the Fanaticks Eftates.  Cates
faid, Twrberuille faid, alile before the Witnelfles
were fworn at the O/.Bailey, that he was not a
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Witnefs againft the Prifsiér, nor cobld alve any
Evidence againft him: And after he came from
Oxfeid, he faid, he had been fivorn before the Grands-
Jury againtt the Pifoncr, and faid, the Proreftant
Citizens had deferted him, and God domn bia, he
would not ftarve.  ‘That Fobn Sinith aid, God dams
him, he would have Colfedre’s Blood. That he
heard Dugdale fay, that he knew nothing againft
any Proteflant in Euglond 5 and being tax’d, that
he had gone againft his Confcience in his Evidence,
he faid, 1t was long of Colonel /¥arcup, for he
could get no Money elfe 3 that he had given out
that he had been poifon’d, whereas in truth it was
a Clap.  Blaze faid, that Swith told him Haynes's
Difcovery was a Sham-Plot, a Meal-Tub Plot,

Bolron faid, Smith would have had him given Evi-
dence againft Sir Fobu Brooks, that Sir Febu thould
fay there would be cutting of Throats at Oxford,
and that the Parliament-Men went provided with
four, five, fix, or ten Men a-piece; and that there
was a Confult at Granthain, wherein it was refolv’d,
that 1t was better to feize the King than to let him
@0, whereas he knew of no fuch thing: that he
would have Bafron to be a Witnefs againit Colledge,
and told him what he fhould fay, left they thould
difagree 1n their Evidence 5 that he heard Hayaes
fay, he knew nothing of a Ponifh or Presbyterian
Plor, but if he were to be an Evidence, he czr'd not
what he fwore, but would fwear any thing to get
Money. Mowbray fnd, Sinith tempted him to be
a Witnels againlt Colfedze, and was inquifitive 1o
know what Difcourfe paffed betwixe bim and my
Lord Feirfax, Siv Fobu Hewlr, and Mz, Sicrn, on
the Road ; and fud, that if che Parliament would
not give the King Money, and flood on the Bill
of Exclufion, that was Pretence enough to fivear a
Defign to {eize the King at Oxford,

Evcrerd fad, Smith wold himheknew of no Pref-
byterian or Protcftait Plot, and faid, Jullice WWarcnp
would have perfuaded him to fwear againt fome
Lovds, a Presyterian Plot, but he knew of none ;
he faid, Haynes told him 1t was Neceffity and hard
Pay drove him to {peak auny thing againft the Pio-
teftants 3 and being queftion’d how his Teftimony
agreed with what he formerly fuid, anfwerd, he
would not fay much to excule himfelf 3 his Wife
was reduc’d to that neceflity, that fhe bege’d at
Rouf’s Door, and mere Necellity drove him to i,
and Self-prefervation, for he was brought in guilty
when he was taken up, and was oblig’d to do
fomething to fave his Life, and that it was a Judg-
ment upon the King or People 5 the Irifbmens
{wearing againft them was juitly fallen on them, for
outing the frifh of their Eftates.

Parkburft and Symens faid, they had feen at Col-
ledge’s Houle his Arms, about the latter end of No-
vember.,  Yates faid, Dugdale befpoke a Piftol of
him for Colledge, which he promis’d to give Col-
ledge.  And upon Difcourfe fome time after the Ox-
ford Parliament, Zates fud, Colledge was a very
honeft Man, and {tood up for the good of the King
and Government, Yes, faid Dugdelz, I believe be
does, and I kuow nothing to the contrary. Deaconn and
Whitaker faid they knew Colledge was bred a Pro-
teftant, and went to Church, and never to a2 Con-
venticle that they knew of, and thought him an ho-
neft Man, Neal, Rimington, Fanner, and Norris
to the fame purpofe 3 and Norsés, that Smith (in
company where was Difcourfe of the Parliament-

ens being agreed to go to Oxford) faid, he hoped
they would Le well provided to go, 1f they did go.
Ll Hunt faid, *a Porter, in her Mafter’s abfence,
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brought the Prints taken in Colledge’s Houfe eight
Weeks before 3 and faid, Dugdale told h?r, atter
her Mafter was in Prifon, he did not belicve Co-
ledge had any more hand 1n any Conipiracy agamlt
his Majefty, than the Cluld unborn: and he had
as lieve have given an hundred Pounds he had ne-
ver fpoke what he had ; and t}mt he had nothm_g
to fay againft her Mafter, which would touch his
Life. *

Having fummed up all the material part of *thc
Evidence in the order it was given, for or againtt
the Prijoner ; let us {ee whether, upen t}lﬂ whole,
an honeft underftanding Jury could, with a good
Confcience, have given the Veraict the then Jury
did 5 or whether an upright Court could, with a
cood Confcience, have declar’d they were well fa-
tisfied in the Verdi& given, as all the four Judges
in that Cafe did, though the Chicf Juftice Norih
only fpoke the Words, And though it is too lite
to advanrage the deceafed, yet 1t will do right to
the Memory of the Man, to whofe dextrous Ma-
nagement on his Trial, many now alive owe the
continuance of their Lives to this day. It was not
their Innocence protected the Lord Fairfan, Sw 7ol
Brooks, and many others before-mention’d, and
many not named in the Tral, but Coleage’s bat-
fling that Crew of Witnefles, and fo piainly de-
tecting their Falthood, that the king’s Counfel ne-
ver durit play them at any other Perlon bur the
Earl of Shafrcsbuiy, as {hall be thewn 5 and failing
there, they were paud off, and vantfl’d, and nover
did more harm vifibly : what under-hand Practices
they might be afterwards guilty of, I know not.

Who could believe any one of thofe four Wit-
nefles, Dugdales Heynes, Turbciville, and Swith, if
it were for no other Reafon than the improbabiiity
of the thing; for (as Colledge faid) was 1t proba-
ble he fhould truft things of that nature with Pa-
pifts, who had broke their Faich with therr own
Party, who could lay greater Obhgations of Se-
crecy upon them than he wasable to do? That he,
a Proteftant, fhould truft People who had been em-
ployed to cut Proteftants Throats? And netcher
of them cver difcovered any of the tnings they
fwore, till after the Oxferd Parhament, tho’ mott
of them were pretended to be tranfacted and fpoken
before.

Who could believe Dugdale 1n any of his LEvi-
dence againit the Prifoner, when Oates teftified a-
gainft him, that he fard he knew nothing againit
any Proteftants in Fuglend 2 And being tax’d by
Oates, that he had gone aganft his Confcience 1n
his Evidence againft Colledge to the Grand- Jury at
Londenr, he faid, 1t was long of Colenne! Warcup, for
be conld get mo Money clfe 5 which 1s a plain Con-
feflion he had fworn wiong, and of the Caufe for
whicnh he did 1it; and of the Perfon who induced
him to do 1. That he had given out that he was
poifon’d, whercas his Difeate wasa Clap : which
was an 1l thing in him, as it imply’d a Charge of
potfoning him on other Perfons. And when Zli-
zabeth Hunt teflified againft him, that he faid, aof-
ter Celledpe was in Prifon, that he did not belicve
Colledge had any more hand in any Confpiracy a-
gainft the King, than the Child unborn; and that
he had as lieve have given an hundred Pound he
had never fpoken what he had ; and that he had
nothing to fay againft Celledge which could touch
lus Lite: And when 2ases teftify’d againft him,
that when Zates faid Colledge was an honeft Man,
and ilood up for the good of the King and Go-
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vernment 3 2es, faid Dugdale, 1 belicve be does, and
I kuow nothing to the contrary.

Who could beheve Haynes 1n any part of his Evi-
dence againft the Prifoner, when Mrs, Ha// and
Mrs. Richerds faid, he own’d he was employ’d to
put a Plot upon the Diffenting Proteftants 7 when
Whaley teftified againft him that he was a Thief,
and had ftole 770:ley’s Tankard ? when Lri tefti-
fy’d that Heynes fud the Parliament were 2 Com-
pany of Rogucs, for not giving the King Money ;
but he would help the King to Money cnough out
of the Fenaticks Eftates? when Hickman teitiGed
againft him he heard him fay, God demi biir, he
ca’d not what he {wore, nor againft whom he
fwore, his Trade to get Money by fivear-
mg? when Mrs, Ofiver faid, that he had wric 2
Letter in her Father’s Name, without her Farher's
knowledge ¢ when Befron teltify’d acainft him,
that iie fa1d he knew nothing of @ Peplth or a Piv/-
byicrian Plot, but if he were to be an Invidence,
he cared not what he {wore, bat would fwear any
thing to get Money ? when Zuwerard teftified a-
ganit him, that he fad, Neeeflity and hard Pay
drove him to fay any thing againtt the Proteffauts
and being ta’d that his Evidence againft Celladpe
agreed not with what hie had formerly faid, he fid,
be coild ot excufe ity but bis Poverty end Seifpre-
[fervation drove bim to it 2 which was a plain Con-
feflion of the falthood of his Lvidence, and of the
reafon of 1t 5 and added, It wasa judgment upor
tie wing or People, the Jrifbincns fwearing againft
themy, fur outing she Zrifh of their Eltates 1 which
can have no other Senfe, than the Irifbwens for-
fwearing theirfclves againft the Liglifh was a Jude-
ment, &,

How could Tarbziuiie be believed in any pare of
his Evidence againft Colledze, when Oates teftified
againft him, that he fuid, a litle before the Wit
netles were [worn againdt Colledee at the OX- Baily,
that he was not & Witnels egainft him, nor could
give any Iividence againft him ; and yet after-
wards, at Oxes, Turberzille told him he had fworn
againft Colledge to the Grand-Jury, and faild, the
Proteftant Cioizens had defeited him, and Ged dewin
buinn b2 wonld wot flarve ; which Words, I think,
need no Hxplanation,

Andlattly, How coukl Swith be believed in any
part of his Lvidence againit the Prifoncr, when it
was teflified agamft him by Bleke, thar he faid
Hayues’s Dilcovery was a Sham-Plor, a Meal-Tub-
Plot 2 The meaning of the Words, I think, are
weil known: That he would have had Befion fwear
againtt Sir Folir Drosks, the Lord Shaftecluiv, and
Collzdge, Things of which he knew nothing, and
told him what he fhould fwear, left they fhould
difagree i their Evidence,  When it was teftified
againlt lim by Oaves, that he fd, God dawin bin,
he would have Collsdee’s Blood ? when it was tefti-
fied againft him by Mowlrav, that he tempied
Moewbray to be 2 Witnels againlt Colizdoe and Sir
Jebi Brooks, and was very inquifitive to know
what Difcourfe he had with the Lord Foivfar, Si
fobir Hezely, and Mr. Stern, on the Road o Cueir s
and faid,” if the Parkament did nort give the Ling
Money, but ftoed on the Bill of Exclufion, thar
wis pretence enough to fwear o Defign o fecure
the King at Oxon ¢ when Lverard, and many o-
thers teitified he fuid he knew of no Prestyterien or
Proceftant Plot.  Now if Colledye’s Witnefies were
credited, 1t was impoffible the Kine’s Witnefles
could be credited 5 thar was agreed by the Court
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ro be true upon the Trial. The Anfwer on the
Trial was, that the King’s Witnefies were on their
Oaths, the Prifoner’s were nots which was 2 Rea-
fon in Words, but not in Senle.

And furcly what Colleage {fuid on that Maticr,
without any Knowledge in the L'aw, cannot br:_ an-
fwer'd,  J2 is mot fair dealing, faid 1'1'.’.’,' ':.:;z:{; a Hlai
forr bis Life, beconfe the Wituclfes againft bii, upen
their Oaths, deny the things the IVitueffes for hisi
proue s Hherefore the Witnelfes egainft hiis sift be be-
liewed, and the Witnelles for bin dishelieved, twhen
yet the W itucffes for biin were ﬁ:'frz:_’}*, on their Qctbs,
tg inaintain what they faid for bim.

Nor is the Law {o: for taking the Law to be,
that 2 Witnels for the Prifoner fhall not be {worn,
which is only made good by Praétice 4 thF ﬁ}me
Law, that is to fay Practice, 1s, that a W’itncisﬁ wn.zl .
out Oath, for the Prifoner, is of equal Credit with
the Wimels again{t him upon Oaih, and nonz can
fhew the contrary il of 1:1t£i Days.

To give one Lxample of many, where it was ne-
ceffary for the Prifoncr to produce a Witnefs to
prove his Innocency, and where the Witnefs for
him was as much believed as the Witnefs againft
him: There was a Perfon, whole Name I do not
remember, arraign’d (ar the fame time that an In-
diG&ment of Tligh-Treafon was endeavour’d to be
found aeaindt the Lord Shaftesbuiy) for robbing an-
other of Money, and of a hired Horfe, of which
likewife the Perfon was robb’d, "The robbing of the
Money and a Horfe was prov’d by himfelf, and
{everdl otherss but that the Prifoner was the Per-
fon that committed the Robbery, none pofitively
{wore but the Perfon robb’d ; who likewife {vrore,
that the Horfe on which the Prifoner was taken,
was the Horfe taken from him 5 agamft which the
Prifoner prov’d, by the Perfon of whom the Horfe
was agreed to be hired, that the Horfe the Prifoner
was taken upon, was not the Horfe he let to hire
to the Perfon rob’d 3 whercupon the Prifoner was
acquitted 5 and yer the Prifoner’s Witnels was not
on his Ouath, and the Perfon robbad was on his
Oath: which, befltdes that 1t proves the Matter {or
which it 1s brought, fhews the Folly, as well as
Injuftice of the P'radtice of impiifoning Men, with-
out lettine then know for what, and without con-
fronting; them with the Witnefles againft them, up-
on the Commutment, For how could this Man
have known what Witnefies to produce, unlefs
he had known what in partcular he was indifted
for ? and how could he have fent to fuch Witnefies,
unlefs he had had the liberty of fending to the Per-
fons who were to be Witnefles for him? And it
(hews the Folly of thofe Sxyings, that a Man’s In-
nocence mntt defend him, and that the Evidence
aostnft the Prifoner muft be as clear as the Sun at
Noon-day.  All will zgree that the Prifoner in this
Cafe was innocent, and yet that alone, without pro-
ductng @ Witnels to prove his Innocence, would
have flocd him bue in little ftead s and how could
he hove known what {ort of Evidence to have ready,
uiies e knew what he was accus’d of ?

I do not mean what Crime he was accus’d of, as
Trealon, Murder, Robbery, Thelt, or any other
Crimey but unlefs he Inew the Perfon rebbed,
when, where, and other Circumiftances;  which,
fay dome, is not to be permitied in Profecutions of
Fhigh-Treafon s for if {o, then no Man fhall be
hanged for High-Treafon; unlefs thers was as
ftrong Proof agaivlt him, as is requird in any In-
dictment of any capital Matter: and that, they
fay, 1 not to be cxpeded in Treafony for no Man
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will call two Witneffes to be Evidences of his Words
nrﬁﬁétiuns,_ being Overt- Aéts of his Defign of
Figh-Treaton.  The Objeion is too foolith to be
andwer’d ; for it is neither better nor worfe, than
that 1f a Man fhall not be hang’d for Treafon with-
out Evidence, he fhall never be hang’d for Trea-
fon; for no Evidence, and Evidence which the
Law reedls, is the fame in Senfe, though different
in Words: and as the Intent of the Mind is diff-
cult to prove on the Part of the King, fo is the
Prifoner’s  Part of producing Counter-Evidence
much more difficult; and therefore the Law hath
taken care, by the Statute of Edward the Third,
that the Intent thall be proved by an Overt-Alt ;
and by the Statute of Ldward the Sixth, that that
Overt- ACt fhall be proved by two Witnefies,  And
therefore, fince the Law hath taken care that there
fhall be a ftricter Proof in High-Treafon than in
any other Crime, for the Judges to fay a lefs Proof
may bq admitted to conviét. one of High-Trealen
than of any other Crime, is very ridiculous ; un-
kefs they vall ac the fame cime fay, that the Par-
ament, who made thofe S:zatutes, were Men of
hiztle Underftanding, and not to ke reguded. And
certainly, it was a good Counter-Evidence which
was given i behall of the Prifoner, by fome Wit
nefles, though flighted by the Cowrt, and not pur-
mitted by the Court to be given by others, that
there were great Endeavours to fer up Sham-plots,
and charge the Protgffanis with them: For let any
one fhew me a Reafon, why the Evidence of Sham-
plots, though they do rot immediately concern the
Prifoner, is not as good Evidence for him, as the
Lvidence of a real Plot, in which he was not con-
cern’d, is againlt him. The laft was pernitted to
be given n Evidence againft my Lord Reuflel, Col.
Sidpey, and others; though the firft was not per-
mitted to many Wimefles in this Trial, and it was
a materlal Objection which Colledye made, That
thcie was #0 proof of avy Perfons being coicernz.s with
bisn 1 the Difigin of feizing the Kiug.

It was an unadvifed Anfwer the Court gave, that
he alone might be fo vain as to defign 1t alone :
For if {rom thence an Inference 1s made, as was
infinvated by the Court to the Jury, that therefore
he did alone delign 1t, it was an Evidence of his
being a Mad-man, not a Traitor. IMad the Ewvi-
dence been of the mifchiefing the King by mcans
which a fingle Perfon is capable of ufing, as Stab-
bing, Shooting, and the like, the Matter 1s not
impoflible ; but it being by means which 1t 1s im-
poffible for a fingle Perfon to execute, it carries {uch
difbeiief with it, that it is impoflible to find a Muan
in his Senfes at the fame time gty of it.  And a
Man that 13 #oi coimpos Mentis, if my Lords Cole
and Halz 1 are to be believid, cannot be gmlty of
High-Treafon within that Branch of the Statute,
compafling and imagining, &c.

It is troe, a Mad-man may be guilty of Treafon,
in attempting the King’s Perfon; but for that he
is no more faid to be punifl’d, than Bealls of Prey
arc when kill’d 5 which are more properly faid to
be deftroy’d than punif’d for the publick good.
But if fo good a Counter-proof in Cellecze’s Cale
was not made, as ought to have been, fome Al-
lowances ought to be made for the Prijoner’s ig-
rorance of what he was accus’d of, his ufage and
it Imprifonment before his Tral, the ruffling
him ju& before his Trial in the Manner before de-
clar’d, the depriving him of his Notes, the giving
an Evidence of, many Hours long againft him, be-
fore he was permitted to anfwer any part of 1t. A?d

the
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thic ufe of Pen, Ink, and Paper, was but of little
advantage to him; for a Man that hath not been
ufed to do it, cannot take Notes of any ufe. And
in truth, he complain’d he had not taken _Nu_tes _of
half -faid, but relied on the Court to do him juftice
in fomming up the Evidences ; which they promifed
to do, but broke their Words.

It muft likewife be confider’d, that the concern
a Man hath upon him, when he is upon Trial for
his Life, is fo far from fortifying, that it weakens
his Memory : Befides, the foul Pratifhce,nwlthfmt
any Remorle, put upon him and his Witnefles 5
fome of them imprifon’d, that he could not have
them at the Trial 3 others fo threaten’d, that they
durft rot appear for him, and the Cry o the
Auditory againft him and his Witnefles, were
mighty Difcouragements. Al thefe things being
confider’d, how could any underftanding Jury take
it on their Oaths, That the Ewidence epainft tle
Prifeuer, of e Difign to fouze the Niig, &C. was
as clear as the Sun at Neoir-Day ¢ N

As for the Evidence which Mr. Afafiers gave, 1
it weie true, it was no Evidence of Treafon; an er-
roneous Opinion may make an [icictick, but nota
Traitor : 1t is a very diftant Conlequence, that be-
caufe he 2firm’d thae the Parliament in Forty had
done nothing but what was juft in refpect of King
Charles the Firft, therefore the Prifoner was guity
of a Defien againft King Cheiles the Sccond: Be-
fides, that in all Probability, tho’ Mr. ﬂ"fc;ﬁf‘?‘j
might inveigh againit the Parliament, Collige might
only juftify them, by throwing the ill things donc
in that time upon the Papifts, as Colleage in hus De-
fence fays; and Mr. Adafters, after much pump-
ing, recolle€led himfelf, and faid he thought the
Prifoner faid, the Panifts had a hand in thofe
things ; which prov’d the Truth of Colledge’s Af-
{ertion, |

As for the Evidence of Colledge’s faying he
might be a Colonel in time; if he hopud for
what he faid, it was no Crime, or Proot of a
Crime, ’tis no more than what every Soldier hopes
for, and he himfelf had boen onc.

As for the Evidence of Aiterbury, Sawel, and
Stevens, of their feizing the Pictures; adn‘_]it they
fivore true, it did not amount to the Procf of the
Treafon in the Indi@ment, or of any f{ort of
Treafon: And yet if Colledge’s Maid faid irue,
it looks as if the Finders or fome other Perfon
fent them to Colledge’s Houfe, 1 order to find
them there.

Of all Sorts of Lvidence, the finding Papers
:n a Perfon’s Poffefiion is the weakelt, becaule
no Perfon can fecure himfelf againft Defigns upon
him in that kind. And after Daugerfield’s De-
fign upon Colonel Aanfe/, and the Evidence n
Fitzbariiy’s Trial, that the Dcfign of that Pam-
phlet was to convey Copies of it into fome Mem-

bers of Parliament’s Pockets, and then feize them,
that piece of Evidence ought to have been fpar’d,

till thofe and other Pratices of like kind had been
forgotten.

The laft Witnefs was Sir Villiain Fennings, of
Colledge’s faying he had loft the firit Blood mn
the Caufe, but it would not be long betore mote
would be loft; what was that more, than that
he thought more would be loft in the Caule,
which he interpreted the Proteftant Caufe? Sup-
pofe he thought fo without Reafon, and was mi-
ftaken, where was the Crime ? But if he thought
fo upon gocd Reafon, and good Reafon he had
to think {o, there was no pretence of a Crime in

Remarks on Colledge’s Trual.

it. I believe moft Men thought as Coledge did,
from the time of the Bufinefs of Fizharris 5 and
what Imputation was it to him? Why were nor
all the Expreffions he us’d in lus Trial as good
Evidence againft him as that Saying ¢ For he then
fid, 1t was an horrid Confpivacy to lake atway bis
Life, and twould not flop at biim, for if was againft
oll the Proteftants of Kngland, and the hke; which
was his Opinion, and After-times fhewed him a
true Prophet.

One thing was very difhoneftly infinuated, that
the Prifoner was a Papiff, which was only to In-
cenfe the Jury againft him, and 1o had 1ts Jofiedét ;
whereas 1t was very plamn that he was a Protoffart,
tho’ perhaps o Diffenter, and therefore had not
lately come to the pubiick Church; and under
that Notion the Papiffs and fome Profeflants were
contented that Difieniers {houkl be punifhed as
Papifts 5 yer b they could have proved him a
Papifl, no coubt they would have done 1, for
the Deftruction of the Man was the Defign of
the Profecution, and 1t matter’d not for what
Treafon he was convicted, fo he wis convidted.
And he himilr gave a pretry fort of Lividence
againft himfclf, if they could have provid him o
Papift : he prov’d, and confeffed, he was cuauca-
ted a Profyjlents and 1f they could have preved
him reconciled to the Popifh Religion, which was
Treafon, he help’d them a greac deal o their
Proofs: It was therefore very difingenuous in the
Chicf Juftice to reproach him at his Condemna-
tion, that he had not made that Proof of his Re-
ligion as it was expected, when his Religlon was
not the Matter of which he was indicted 5 that was
lily infinuated to exafperate, and no Proof pre-
tended to be made of his being a Pepiff. But
he had more Reafon to complain of the Injuflice
of the Court in fummisg up the Evidence, who
did it in fuch a Manner, that 1f they had been
Counfel for the Prifoner, as they pretended, they
would have becn quitly fulpecied to have taken a
Fee of the other fide to betray their Client,

For, as Celledee readily faid, if the Cluet Ju-
flice had lookcd on his Notes, he would have
tound more Evidence againft Terderville, and Dig-
daley than he had repeated,  And 1t was a Jame
Ixcole for the Chiet Juftice to fay, he relerr’d 1t
to the Memory of the jury, for he could nec
remember more ; when, as [ dare fay, afier a-
bout thirvteen Flours Evidence, the Jury remem-
ber’d no more, than that they were to find him
Guilty.

The Truth 1s, upon the whole, what Celleipe
faid was true; they took away all Helps {rom
him for defending himfelf, and therefere they had
as good hive condemned him without a Trial
Notwithftanding all which, the Courage of the
Man never fainted, but after he was condemn’d,
boldly afked, when be was o be executed ¢ To
which the Lord Chief Juftice reply’d, 1t depended
on the King’s Pleafure; but imcothly fud, in
thofe Cafes of High Treafon they did not uic to
precipitate the Ixecution, it fhould nor be fo
fudden but that he fhould have Notice to prepare
himfelf.  And in truth he had from the eighteenth,
on which he was condemned, to prepare himfelf,
to the one and thirticth of Awenff 1681, on which
he was executed ; a mwuch longer time than was
allow’d my Lord Ruffcl, or Mr, Ceruiffr, and many
others, And the truc Rezfon of fo long a Re-
prieve, was to fee how the Nation would digelt
the Matter, and whether the Man by the Terror

Ol
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of Death could be prevail'd upon to become -2

Tool - to deftroy- other Innocents: But when it

was found that the People were quiet, and that’
the Prifoner could not be prevail’d upon to-do-

an ill-thing to fave’ his Life, his Execution was

der’d ; vet as a fhew of Mercy, his. Quarters
fsfrérc perm%tted to be bury’d 3 a Favour he flight-
ed, with faying that he car’d not whether he was

eaten up with Flies or Worms. The fame Fa-

vour was likewife thewed Fitzharres, but the true

10
Reafon of both wasy, That they had .a wind that

the. Trials and pretended Crimes, for which Fra-
harris and: Golledge were condemned, fhould be
forgotten-3 which would - not be {o foon done, 1f.
theit Quarters weie-always. expos’d to view, But
though all - People were quiet,. yet there was oreat:
orumbling, and moft honeft Men were af;id‘;.'
and the Conftancy of Colledge at his Execution.
was fuch, that it made the moft violent againtt
him relent,

Remarks on the Earl of Shaftesbury;x Grand fury.

B E next Perfon queftion’d was the Earl

of Shaftesbury, againft whom a Bill of High-
Treafon was prefer’d to the Grand Fury, at the
Seffions-Houfe, on the 24th Day of  November
1681. The Evidence was publickly given In
Court, and was this ; Mr, Blathwaite {wore he
found the Papers then produc’d 1n a Velvet Bag
in the great Trunk, which was taken by M,
Gwyune in the Lord Shaftesbury’s Houfe, Mr.
Guwynne fwore all the Papers in the Velvet Bag,
when he deliver’d them to Mr. Blathwaite, were
taken by him in the Lord Shafteshury’s Houle:
Sir Leoline Fenkins {wore, the Paper produc’d was
the Paper deliver’d him by Mr. Blathwaite, and
it was unalter’d. Then the Paper was read, the
Effet of which was a Projeé of an Afociation
figned by no Perfon, and whofe Hand-writing it
was, none knew. Fobn Booth {wore, that he was
engag’d to Captain #ilkinfon, who pretended to
have a Commiflion from the Lord Shaftesbury
and feveral others to go for Carolina; he was
about that time introduced into the Earl’s Ac-
quaintance by the Captain, where was a Difcourfe
about Carolina Bufinefs ; he was four or five times
between Chriftmas and March, with the Earl and
the Captain: that the Captain told him he was
to command fifty Men to be the Earl’s Guard
at Oxon, and would have had him to be one:
That if the King did not confent to feveral Aés
of Parliament and other Things, they were to
purge the Guards and Court of feveral Perfons,
and though the Captain told him that firft, after-
wards he heard the Esi/ fay the fame things,
particularly about a Week or ten Days before
the Parliament fat at Oxon, he gave fome Inti-
mation of this to W alier Banes, and then writ it
down, and fent it to the Council fealed in a Co-
ver. Turberville fwore, that the Lord § baftesbury
faid about Februaiy, there was but little good to

be done with the King as long as his Guards
were about him.  Swmith teftify’d a great deal of

Dilcour{e between him and the Lord Shafiesbury
of {omething faid refle@ting on the King ; and that
he fhould fay, that if the King fhould offer any
Violence to the Perliament at Oxford, he would
meet with a ftrong Oppofition, for that the Gen-
tlemen, who came out of the Country, came well
provided with Horle and Arms to oppofe, and
that they might lawfully do it, if he offer’d any
Violence to them whillt they fat. Haynes fwore,
that the Farl faid if the King did not give Haynes
his Pard?n, he and others would raife the King-
com againft him; that Haynes gave the Farl an

exat Account of Tranfactions fince King Charies
the Fitft’s coming to the Crown, and that the
Earl faid the Duke of Buckingham had as much

Right to the Crown as any Stuart in England.
Jobr Mecnamarra faid, the Earl fuid, the King

was Popifbly affefted, and took the fame Methods
his Father did, which brought his Father’s Head
to the Block, and they would bring his thither ;
and this was faid in the Prefence of Jwey, and
he thought of his Brother; and faid, the King
deferv’d to be depos’d as much as King Richard
the Second, Dennis Macnemarra likewife teftify’d
the laflt Words, and that it was the latter end of
Mayrch, or beginning of April, Ivezy {aid, the Earl
faid, if the King deny’d Hayres a Pardon, they
would rife upon him and force him to give one,
and that they defign’d to depofe him and fet up
another in his ftead, Bernard Dennis faid, he had
a great deal of Difcourfe with the Earl, who bid
him fpeak to his Friends in Jreland to be in a
readinefs to affift the Commonwealth of Eugland,
for they intended to have Eugland under a Com-
monwealth, and extirpate the King and his Fa.
mily.

Then the Court told the Jury the Indi@tment
was grounded on the Statute of King Charles the
Second, but they ought to confider both of that Sta-
tute, as allo the 25th of Edward 111,

The Queftion 1s, whether the Grand Fury
ought to have found the Bill on this Evidence,
Firft it ought to be confider’d, what the Duty of
a Grand Fury 153 and 1 think it is
not what the Chief Fuftice ® faid, to
confider only whether there be pro-
bable ground for the King to call the Petfon ac-
cufed to an account, much lefls do I thmk that
the reafon of finding a Bill by the Grand Fusy
was for the Honour of the King, or Decency of
the Matter, lelt Perfons accufed fhould be called

to an Account by the King, where there 15 no
kind of Sufpicion of the Crime committed by

them, as the Court faid, (which laft Matter was
never affigned as a Reafon of finding a Bill by

* Sir Francis
Pemberton.

the Grand Fury before) but I take the Reafon of

a Grand Fury to be this, that no Man for a
capital Matter fhall ever be gueffioned by the King,
unlefs a Grand Fury take it on their Oaths that
they believe the Matter of the Accufation true;
I puc an Empnhafis on the Words gueffioned by the
King,

I‘E is true, 1t is generally faid, that the Bufinels
of a Grand fary, 1 capital Matters, is in favorem

vite y but that taken (imply is not true, for then
w hat
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what Reafon can be affign’d, why a Man fhall
be arraien’d on an Appeal of Murder, Robbery,
or the like, which touches his Life, as much' 25
an Indi@tment of thofe Crimes, - without having
the Matter of the Appeal firft found to be true
by a Grand Fury ? But the true Reafon of a Graud
Fury is the vaft Inequality of the Plaintiff und
Defendant, which in an Indiftment 1s always be-
tween the King and his Subje€ls; anc that doth
not hold in an Appeal, which is always been
Subjes and Swhjeéi : and therefore the Law In an
Indi@ment hath given a Privilege to the Defen-
dant, which it hath done in no other Profccution,
on purpofe, 1f 1t were poffible, to make them
equal in the Profecutfops and Defence, that equal
Tuftice may be done between both. It confiders
the Fudres, Witneffes and Fury are more likely to
be influenced by the King than the Defendant
the udes s having been made by him, and as
it is in his Power to turn themn cut, punifh, to
prefer or reward them highers and though there
are no jult Caufes for them o f{train the Law, yet
there are fuch Caufes, which i all Ages have taken
place, and probably always will. "This was the
Reafon of running Preregative fo high in their
Judgment of High-Treafon before the §tat. of £d.
111. that no Man, as that Sratute fays, knew what
was not Hieh-Treafor: This was the Reafon of
expounding that Safute oftentimes between the
making of i, and the making of the Statute of

ueen Mary, that People were at as great a lofs,
il the laft Statute, as they were before the mak-
ing of the firft; and even fince the Statte of
QOueen Mary, the Expofition on the Statvte of
F4. 11, has been {o extravagant and various, that
People are at this day as much ata lofs to know
what is not High-Treafon, as they were before the
Statute of Ed. 111, Nor was ir, nor 1s 1t, poffible,
but that the great Power of enriching, honouring,
rewarding and punifhing lodg’d in the King,
always had, and yet muft have an ]-:I’.I:!LIE:I]CE on
the /7itneffes and Frry 5 and therefore it 3s that the
T 2w hos ordered, that at the King’s Profecution, no
Nan thall be criminally queftioned, unlefs a Giand
Fury, upon their own Knowledge, or upon the J-
yidence given them, fhall give a Verdict, that they
really believe the Accufation s true.

I own, of late Days, they have faid the Duty of
the Grend Fuiy is to find, whether the Accufation
be probable or no, But that Saying is warranted
by no pofitive Law, or antient Authority 3 and
therefore the Duty of the Grand Fury muft be found-
ed in the QOafh adminiftred to them, which is as
{tri& as the Ocfh adminiitred to the Pefit Fury:
and to fay truth, the Verdict of the Petit Fury
rakes credit from the Verdiét of the Grand Fury;
which is not only the Reafon of the Difference in
the Names of they two Juries, but is likewile the
Reafon why an Attaint for a falfe Verdiét doth not
lic againft a Peit Fury.

The Oazh of the Grand-Jwy, is, Te prefent the
Truth, the whole Truth, and notbing bu! the Truth
The Qath of the Petit Fury 1s, wwell and tritly to 17y,
and tize Deliverance wmake, between the Kiug and the
Prifencr o the Broi, &c. which fignifies the fame
thing as to prefent the Trath, & It s true, fome
Reafons have been offer’d, which, if confider’d, are
Words without Senfcy as thar the Prefentment of
the Grand Fury 15 but in order to bring the Prifoner
to his Trial, and he not before the Grand Frury
to make his Defence himfelf: but that can be no
Reafon why Probabilities thould fatisty the Jury,

becanfe it doth not anfwer the Defien of the Lavw.
which wiil have a Man convi&ted by the pofirive
Oaths of fwo Furies, confifting of more than twenty -
four, in all Indi&ments.

Next, why is a Grard Fury compofed of more
fubltantial and underftanding Men than a Pesit sy,
if their Bufinefs be mere Formality, or a Maticr
of lefs Weight than the Bofinefs of a Pesit Sy 2
In the lalt place, why is lefs Evidence required to
convi€t a Man in his abfence, than is reqhircd tn
convit him if prefent? It is far from an Argument,
that lefs Evidence is requird to conviét one if ab-
fent, than if prefenr, that it feems to me that more
Evidence fhould be requird to do it. Men may,
and often do muake very fair Stories in the abfince
of a Perfon accufed, that when prefent, he cafily
an{wers ; and there being no pofitive Law for the
Direction of a Grand Fury in that matter, a Grand
Jury-mai is excufable, nay, 1t is his Duty to given
Verdict according to the plain underftanding of the
Words of his Oath, which is to prefent the Truth,
as far as he is convinced of 1t 5 and that Troth muft
be found according to his Knowledge, or as it is
reprefented to him by Witnefies,

And as for the Witnefles, they muft be Porfons
of Credity and all Perfons are fuppofed to be 1o,
unlels the Grawnd Fury know the contrary, or have
been fo credibly informed. Tis true, a Grasd FYury
ought not to believe Coffez-lonfe Stories, or light
Stortes 5 but common Fame by credible Perfons,
which 1s Pox Poprls, ought to prejudice them againft
a Witnels, fo as to difbelieve him: and 1t is no
Anfwer to fay, as the Chief Fufticz in this Cafe faid,
that the Credibility of the Witnefs 15 not to be con-
fidered by the Grand Fury, becaule the King is not
prefent to defend the Credit of his Witnefles: the?
the Fact i that Cafe was rot true, for the King’s
Attorney, Sollicitor and Counfel were prefent, and
I think the King is no otherwife prefent at any Cri-
minal Profecution 3 and the Jury knew by Celedpos
Trial, and by TFillinfo’s Depofitions before the
King, that the Evidence of all the Witnefles pro-
duced, except what were to the Paper, was que-
ftioned, but even that was afterwards quitted by the
Court, when 1t wounld not be fiwallowed by the
Grand Ty : for afterwards the Court told them,
that if they of their own Knowledge knew any
thing againft the Witnefles, they mighe confider of
it, but not of what they were credibly inform’d
by others. And, befides the Credibility of the
Witnefles, the Poflibility or Probability of the thing

fworn is to be confider’d by the Grand Fury; an

impoffible thing they ought not to beheve, though
fworn by never fo many credible Witneffes, and a
very improbable thing they cannot pofitively on
their Oaths fwear they bulieve.

And not only the Iact, but what the Crime of
the Fact alledged n the Bill of IndiCtment, the
Graind Fury, as fav as they are capable of judging
Matter of Law, ought to confider ; fo they were
told in the Charge given them, *Tis true, if they
were ignorant in the Law, and the Court in their
Directions mifled them, as it the Court thould tcll
them ftealicg a Florfe is High-Treafon, and the
Grand Fury find it accordingly, itis excufable in the
Graud fuiy, though purifhable in the Court,  But
wrong Dire€tions by the Court, in finding a Fatt
where there 15 no Evidence, do not excufe the
Tury.

Now, to examine the Matter in hand by thefe
Rules, could any Perfonwho knew my Lord Shaftes-
bury, or that had heard of, or believed his Cha-

1 racles
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radter to be what it was, believe that it was poffible
£or him 1o difcourfe with the Witnefles at the rate
they {wore, to fome of them at the firft, to others
of them the fecond time he faw them ; to difcourfe
of Matters of Policy, with Booth at one time, and
afcerwards with Hagnes, and afterwards with Macna-
marra, Fellows of fo lictle Senle, ::hat he would
have been atham’d to have entertain d them 1n the

meanelt Office about him ; and yet as they preten-
ded, he makes them his Privadoes in the Secrer, of
not fo much what he would have had them, but of
what he intended himfelf to do?

Who could believe any thing, Truberville, Smith
or Haynes fhould fay, where there was fo much of
their Falthood, and of their Defigns to fwear falfly,

rov’d againft them in Colledge’s Trial ? Or of fvey,
and the three Macnamarra’s after that Trial, who,
thovgh they were not produc’d at it, becaufe the
King’s Counfel by Colledge’s Notes fau{ he was able
to falfify them, yet fome Witnefles 1 that Trial

prov’d their D:fign of {wearing falfly ¢

W ho could believe Booth’s Story of lilting fo many
Men under Filkinfon, to be at my Lord Shafrefbury’s
difpofe at Oxon, after Colledge’s Trial, and after what
Iilkinfon had teftify’d to the King and Counail,
though not then prov’d to theGrand-Fury ?

A Judge indeed cannot take notice of any thing
not prov’d (though he may and ought to be a Wit~
nefs, if he knew any thing material of the Matter
try’d before him and others) but a Graid-7uiy may
take notice of any thing they know or believe,
The Paflages at Colledge’s Trial were pretty noto-
rious, being aathentically publifh’d by Fra. Nexth,
and the Examination of /77kinfon by as authentick
a Paper,

It was unaccountable, that the Witneflus conceal’d
what they heard the Earl {peak {o long, of which
none of them pretended to give any Reafon s nor
was 1t any ISxcuiz to thofe who fign’d a Petition to
the City, in which they fuggefted they were tempted
to fwear againft their Confciences, to fay they knew
not what was 1a the Petition : He that fets his Hand
1o a thing as if he aflented to 1t, but doth nor,
is a Man of Fulfhood. Suppofe one fets his Hand
to 2 Bond, faid to be feal’d and deliver’d, not ha-
ving feen it feal’d and deliver’d, is not he guilty
of hule lefs than Forgery? But admitting thofe
Wirnefles had {worn Truth, yet the Jury ought
not to have found the Bill; for they ought to find
the Bill true according to all the material Circum-
ftances of 1t, as well as the Subftance of ir, which
was High-Treafor.  One material Circumftance of it
was, that 1w was faid to be High-Treafon within
the Statute of Cbarles . And that made another
Circumftance of the Indictiment material, which was
the time when that Treafon was committed ; be-
caufe by that Sratute the Profecutions of Treafon
on that Statute ought to be within {ix Months after
it 18 committed, and the Inditment ought to be
within three Months after the Profecution: and he
being imprifon’d in Fuly, andthe Bill fuggefting that
the fuppos’d Treaflon was committed the 18th of
March before, and divers other times, both before
and after, which might be interpreted to have been

to have been committed, not only within the time
the Profecution by that Statute ought 1o be, buc alfo
within the time the I[udiffment ought to have been
preferr’d, whereas in truth the Earl had been Impri-
fon’d above three Months before the [ndictuent
preferr’d, and there was no Evidence of any Treafon
committed by him after his Imprifonment: and
therefore the finding the Bill as laid had been inju-
rious, to bring a Man in queftion for his Life on
that Statute, whereas by Law he ought not to have
been.

For it was refolv’d in Colledge’s Cafe, that the
Profecution for Treafon on that Statute ougbt o be
within {ix Months, and the Indi@lment within three
Months, though the Court was of another Cpinion
in the Lord Ruffel’s Trial,

And that this Indi¢tment was on that Stature, was
exprefsly faid to the Graud-JFury, and upon good
Reafon 3 for the Court in their Charge faid, that
the Intention of levying War, or defigring (o 1m-
prifon the King, was not Treafon, til! the Staiute of
Charles the Second 3 though in the Lord Rufel’s
Trial it was held to be Treafon by the Suatute of
Fdw. 11, and therefore the time of ¢he Treafon com-
mitted was matertal to be found by the Fury,

As for the Writing found in the Earl’s Sruly, it
was no manner of LEvidence of Treafon, admitting
what the Wirnefles {wore as to the findt g it to be
true; becaufe 1t was not prov’d that it was profe-
cuted or compos’d by the Earl of Shafrzbury, or
by his Order, and that piece of Evidence was in that
patticular a meer Original.

In Fitzharris's Cafe, it was prov’d the Libel was
compos’d by his Direction 3 Colonel Sidirey’s Book
was prov’d to be like his Hand 5 it was pretended
that Colledge faid he was the Author of the Raree-
Svew, and no Example of this Kvidence was ever
made ufe of before. '

Neither was it Evidence of Treafon as to the
Matter, for there was not one Word againft the
prefent King, but his Succeffor, if he thould be fuch
a Perfon,

It istrue, one of the King’s Counfel faid that one
Paffage in it “was, that they would join to deftroy
the Mercenary IForces about Londeiz, and thenct in-
ferr’d it was downright levying War againft the
King and his Guards ; whereas there is not any fuch
word or thing in the Paper as he pretended rocite
and if it had been in the Paper, it would have been
but Evidence of a Treafon within the Statute of the
late King. And then the time of Writing it, ought
to have appear’d; and if that had been clear’d, yet
for the above Reafons it was no Evidence : and the
Grand-Jury, tho' fome of them afterwards fmarted
for it upon other Pretences, did like honeft under-
ftanding Gentlemen ; and had they done otherwife,
to avoud the Ignominy of being call’d, though'in
truth 1t was an honour to be, an Jguoramns Fury,
they had juftly deferv’d the Reproach which fince
have lighted on other Juries, fuch as Mr. Cornifb’s,
and the like.  And having {poken of this Jgnoramus
Fury, for which, two of them, if not more, were
afterwards upon other Pretences feverely handled 5 ¥
think fit to fay fomething of the Sufferings of one,

after the Prifoner’s Commitment; had the Jury for being in a preceding Ignoramns Fury, becaufe it
found the Bill as laid, they had found the Treafon was a meer Novelty, and that was M. 77mer,

Vor. 1V,
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% 15 Profecution, though it was but Cnmmal

& ¥ o4 rot Capiral, did as much Milchiel,
i: Yenels

a Terror im0 all Grazd Furis, as any
the beiore menticned DMatterss and it was by the
A:iize Repl:Ziends iflued omr againft him,  As
for the Informationazzinft him, I Thall {ay neihing,
becacfe the T juflics of both will appear in the Dif-
courfe of tac firlt,  Ar. Z7Zer had fent a Boy be-
yond S:a by Agreement, as NMr. 7wz faid, whe-
Lisr trus c:r ROty 25 10 this matier 1s not material 5
a Homlin: Reyl goniy s granted againft Mr. [z
for thz;-, 2z wholz i’rmccu.,mn 15 port mater12) : fnr
any Pcrfon upoa Suggeltion, back’d b}r an Ajda-
< r,t may have g wnted.  The Storiff would have
tarn’d on the \‘. riz, that the Boy was fent by his
Agreement ard Confent with Nr. Piuer s
which lern was no: allow’d, and the Shenifis were
told that they muft eizher return they had replevied
the Bov, and they mult have lim 1n Court, or elfe
thev would b2 laid by the hEEIb, or clfethey muft

L 1—.-—1

Tu’ fov oo
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return chat Mr, Wiz had £/7iz:d him, which s
carryirg l.; 'fﬂ avway, wiere the “Sheriff could not Grnd
him s codihena I beriam would iffueagainft Mr.,

J]7%lm:er, upon which he weuld be t2ken and kept
in Prifon till he preduced the Boy : and no other
Retura fheula be zllowed than one of thofe two,
and 1f they did no: mzke one of thofe two Rerurns,
they fhould be commited. Now if the Law be
%0, the Court mu be i innocent, but the Law oughe
then to bz reformed 1n that Pamcular; bur i tl.
Toaw was not, 23 1 thinkitis not, I think vir.
:7ihzer 2nd the Naton had grear Injuilice done
them 5 for 1t was quf:l.;" :en wha: the Mifchief of
that ]Ldgﬂnnt was, and thorefore it was endeavoured
to be reformed by an AG of King and Coucil af-
cerwards.  Firft, I oy, i 15 lawful for = Mafter
to coyen.;nr with a Servaat to ferve him beyond
Sea 3 in the neat place 1t is lawiul for a Mafter
to fend his Servant eyond Sea according to fuch

Agcreement, And if bo:h thele Propoﬁmm betrue,
=5 [ think no Man will fay they are not, 1t 1S a

natural Confequence to {2y, that the Law hath pro-
vided 2 Return upona Writ of Homine Replegiands,
1f 1t fhould b2 fued our againft fuch Mafter for a
Servant {o fent beyond Sea, which may indemnify
the Mafter 1o fo doing 3 and that Return can be
no other than the fge cial Mater which in this Cafe
was reiofed to be CC&PIEd. T'is no Argument thzat
no fuch Remrn i1s ever read of in any Book: For
the Law hath determined, that fomes Returns are
good, and ozhers bad; yer it hath not faid, what
are a]l the good Returns, which may bz made onan
Hmlinz R::.’.gr.;*;m:? and th2 Sheriff 15 no more con-
fin’d to Returns, than a Man 1n the pleading of his
Cafe, which my Lord Cokz fays may vary accord-
ing to the Naiure of his Cafe; and yet the Law hath
21d what 15 2 good Plea, and wiaat a bad one, but
hath ro: expicﬁ al] the good or bad Pleas, And
thereiore 1t 35 no Argument againft fuch a Re-
trn, thi no Precedent of it can be tound,
enocgh that 0o Judgment can be produced wamf’c
the Reafon of both may be, that tht‘. Cafe
never happened before, that is to fay, that never

]..... . E-.IJ

any Perfon was fo malicious before, 23 to fue ous
an Homine Replegtardo againfl a Mafter for a Servant
fent by Agreement beyond Sea: and Returns mulk
be varied according to the Cafe.  Perhaps no Pre-
cedent can be found of 2 Return on that Writ, that
the Perfon fought for 1s dead 5 yet all Perfons wlll
agree 1t 15 = guoj Return, 1t is fo in Replevin of
Cattle, and even that Example falfifies the Doétrine
of the Court, tnit thereare but two Returns on that
Wit allowable by Law. Itis not an Argument
for difallowing the Return, that the P rfon fere be-
yond Sea was a Child, not capable ot making fuch
a Contract {though I believe, 1t sthe matter were
look’d 1nto, he was of age fo :o Jo) for nothing of
that doth, or can appear in the Wit or Return .
It ftands therefore fimply upon this, whether the
Sheriff may on an Homise z'u.ﬂ:gr’z.r:dﬂ return, that
the Perfon fuppofed to be in cuftody, being of full
Age, was by mutual Agreement fent beyond Sea
by the Perfon 1n whofe cuftody by the Writ he is
fuppofed to be, which I think is far from a Doubt,
Bur notmthﬂandm’r all thefe Hardfhips on Furies,
it was {zen to be plﬂm]y impofiible to procure any
Bills of Indiftment for Highb-Trealza, much fefs any
Perfons to be convicted on the like ivitace, ex-
cept In Loudsiz, were are fome of the beil, as well
as the worft of Men in the Nation 5 acd even there
It was not to be done, as long as the Furies were
fenfible and honeft Men, which would b 2as long;
as the Election of Sheriffs was in the Cinizens s
and, to the Honour of the City, it was fven that
they chofe only honeft Men to be thzir Sherifis s
and that when they faw the publick Safety aepend
on noneft Officers, though at other times they had
rather pay a Fine, than undergo the Trouble and
Charges of that Office, yer at Ehﬂt time no Man,
Ifgally chofen, refufed to ftand, though tiey werc
reproached and punifhed for it : and i Br, Dox
refoled, 1t wasbecaufe he would net join wich Nors,
who was 1mpofed on the City 5 for which rexfon ic
was refolved to take from the Cuy the Right of
chuling Sheriils, buz by what means wasnor priently
refolves on.

That the City mighe forfeit their Right of eleét-
Ing, there was no great doubt; as if the Sheriffs
were dead, and new ones were not chofen 1n a corn-
venient time, {o that there was a defet of Juftice,
or the like: but nothingof that kind couid be laid
to therr Charge, and therelore a new unheard-of
matter was thought on, and fet a-foor, which was,

to make the City forfeir their being a Corporation 3
and being annihilated, the Grants made to them by
the Crown, as the Right of eleéting Sheriffs was,
would revert to the Crown again.

A Buo lVarranto was therclore brought againtt
the City in Hilary Term, 1651, to thew by what
Warrant they pretended to bz a Corporation, -and
to have thetr Privileges mentioned in the Writs to
which the City pleﬂdcd, and fer forth their Right s
and the King reply’d, and fer forth feveral Mat« -
ters done by them, contrary to the Duty of a Cor-
poration : upon which there was a Demurer, of
which Judgment was nor given gill Trinity Term,
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1682, 1 wl) fay nothing of the Right of the Pro-

ceeding, it having been fargely and fearnedly ar-
ow'd for the City ; but if the Matter were fo clear
2 Cafe, asthe King’s Counfel and Court would have
it to be, how came it to pafs that in Henry the
Eightl’s time, when the King was fo earneftly bent
to diffolve the Rehiglous Corporations, in which the
publick Inclination join’d wich him, t?he doing it by
Quo Warranlo Was not thﬂugf[t .Gf . IE was very
plain, that thofe pretended Religious did not cb-
ferve the Rules, nor perform the Ends for which
they were incorporated ; and certam_]y their Mif-
demeanours, againft the Intent of their being 1ncqr-
porated, were better Caules of Forfeiture, than was
the City’s petitioning for a Parliament, &z, Yer
that King ook other Methods, he had formal Con-
veyances of their Lands from moft of thofe Cor-
pOrations; and formal Surrer_ld_crs oi their Corpo-
rations, fign’d by every Individual of the Corpo-
rations, and thofe afterwards confirm’d by A¢t of
Parliament. And fure the late King had as much
'Right to bring a Quo Warrante againlt Magdalen
College, for refuling, contrary to thewr Duty to
admic the Prefident the Ring nominated, if the
King had a Kight to nominate the Prefident (as
fome Judges afferted he had) as King Charles the
Second had againft the City : and it was once in
Debate, whether the Proceeding again{t thar Col-
lege thould be by Que Warrante, or before the Zt-
ciefiaflical Commiffioners; the lalt was relolv’d on,
not as more legal or effetual, butas more expe-
ditious ; in the one, the Proceedings being de Die
711 Dizm, in the other from Term to Term. This
only I will oblerve, that whenthe Judgment againft
the City was given, which was of the greateft Con-
cern to the Nation ever contefted in any Court of
Weflminfier-Hall, it was done by two Judges only,
and no Reafon of that Judgment rendred : whereof
IWithins, who was one, [ think, heard but one Ar-
gument in the Cafe. It istrue, they {aid Raymond,
when alive, was of the fame Opinion ; and faid
Saunders, who was then paft his Senfes, was of the
fame Opinion; though I was told by one who was
prefent, when the two Juitices came to afk his Opi-
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nion 1n the matter, he bad only Senfe enough to
reproach them for troubling him abour the mat-
ter, when they were fenfible he had loft his Me-
mory. And to fay truth, the delivering the Senfe
of an abfent Judge, though it hath been fometimes
pactis’d, is not allowable; for fomerimes they de-
liver another Opinion than what the abfunt Judee
1s of.  Judge /¥ithins did fo in feveral Cafes, when
he delivered the Opinlon of Sir Edward Hevlert,
which Sir Edward Herbert atterwards in  open
Court, difown’d: Judge Hollsway ferv’d Judge
Powel the fame Trick, if the laft faid true. The
long depending of the Quo Warrants had alarm’d
all the Nation, who were yet quiet, hoping thac
Judgment would be given {or the City, as fome
of the Judges and of the King’s Counfel, had gi-
ven out it would 3 but the contrary was refolv’d
on, and therefore the Nation, at the time of the
giving the Judgment, muft be amus’d with fome-
what clfe and nothing fo proper as a Plot: but
there was difficulty in that alfo; for if the pre-
tended Plotters fhould be acquitted, it would make
the Marter worfe 5 and nothing-would fecure that,
but impofling what Sheriffs they pleas’d on the Ci-
ty, and accordingly North and Rich being pirch’d
on, the onc by a thamelefs Trick, and the other
by open Force, were impos'd on the City.

Having gain’d that Point, the Proceedings in
the Qo [Varranio were much quicker than before,
and two Arguments were only permitred in it of
each [ide, the one in Hilary Term, the other in
Lafler Term ; and fo the Cafe was ripe for Judg-
ment in Trinity Term following, but muft be, and
was ufher’d n, with the Difcovery of a pretended
Plot: Which fo amaz’d the Nation, that though
Judgment 1n the Quo Farranto was given two Days
after the pretended Difcovery, no body took any
notice of it for feveral Months after it was given.
The truth was, no body durft mutter againtt i, or
queftion the Legality of 1r; it was enough to have
brought any Perfon into the Plot to have done it,
it would have been call’d flying inthe Face of the
Government, gueftioning the Fuflice of the Nation,
and fuch like Cant.

REAEREREREAERERERINRIENERBDEES
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HE Plot being nois’d abroad, the Perfons
before-hand refolv’d on were ftiz’d on, and
the Lord Ruffel, and others were clapp’d up clofe
Prifoners,
T'he Lord Ruff+! having been for fome %ew Weeks
a clofe Prifoner in the Tower, was, the r3th of
July, 1683. brought to the Old-Baily, and ar-
rafgn’d for High-Treafon, in defigning to raife a
Rebellion, &e. and the fame Morning was try’d.
He defird he might not be try’d that Day, for he
had fome Wimeffzs which would not be in Town
tilf Night : Which being deny’d, then he defird
that the Trial might be put off till the Afternoon;
which was likewife deny’d.  He ask’d whether he
might not make ufe of any Papers he had ; which
was allow’d,  He defird hz might have a Copy
of the Pannel of the Tury that was to pafs on him
he was told he had a Copy dehiver’d to his Ser-
vant fome Days before,

Vo IV.

/

The Jury being calPd, he challeng’d the Fore-
man for being no Frecholder in London. Toargue
which, Counfel were affign’d him ; who prefently
came 1nto the Courr, and having excus’'d their not
{peaking more to the Matter, for want of time to
confider of it,‘yftrgu“d, That it was a good Chal-
lenge, becaufe at common Law every Juryman
ought to be a Frecholder; that the Statute of
2 Hen, V. provides none fhall bea Juryman in ca-
pial Matters, but a Freeholder of Forty Shillings
yearly : That there is no Difference between a Ciry
and County, and a County ar large, at common
Law; nor by that Stature 7 Hen, VII. which 1akes
away the Challenge of #o Freeholder in the Ward in
London, and fhews it was a good Challenge in Lona
aon before thattime ; The 4th of Hen. VIII. which
likewife takes away the Challenge of no Frechold
in London, fhews it wasa good Challenge before
that time ; and the fame was inferr’d from the 23d
of Heiry VIII: Bur thongh none of thofe Sta-

+ Bboe tutes
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tutes extended to Treafon, yetif it wasa good Chal-
Jenge in Treafon in London before thofe Staiutes, it
was fo fhill.

The King’s Counfel faid, at common Law it was
not neceffary that a Juryman in Treafon, fhould
be a Freeholder; and though Trealon 1s within
the 2d of Hewry the V, yer by the Statute of
Queen Mary, the Statute of the 2d of Ilary the
Vth, as to Treafon, was repeal’d; that 1t was a
Point they would not have loft to the City of
Loizdon 5 thac if the Prifoner thould peremptonly
challenge Thirty-five, as by Law he might, there
would fecarce be found Thirey-five more Frechold-
ers in the City, the Inherirance of the City being
moftly in the Nobiltty and Corperations, and con-
fequently Trealons may be commicted in the Ciey,
and there would not be enough to try it ; and in
the Cafe of the City of WWrcefler, in Quo I7ar-
ranto brought againft them, that Challenge was
taken and over-rul’d by the King’s-Beneh, by Ad-
vice of the Judsaes of the Common-Pleas 3 that the
Veire mentions no Ireehold, but only Piobss &
Legales Homines de Viciacto,

Then the™ Chiet Jultice afk’d Mr.
Pollexfen, Whether e did find any
Judament i Trealon at common
Law, that #o freclold was a Challenge? Who un-
twer’d, he did nor.  Whereupon the Chief Jullice
reply’d, That then he dud vot fpeak ad idw 5 for
he took i, incafe of Trealon and Felony, at com-
mon Law 1t was no Challenge ; and the Stature of
Heyry the Fiith, inthat Polar, was introduétive of
a new Law, and tnat Statuee, as to Treafon, was
repeal’d by that of Queen #ary; and chat a Cafe
cannot be found of tuch a Challenge in Trealon
fince the Statute of Queen AMary, but it was a Bu-
finefs of great Impottance,

The * Chief Baron was of the fame
Opinion ; for the fame Reafon, Jeflice
[Vinddan and Tuflice Tenes were of the
fame Opiniony the it added, the rather becaule
the Prifoner is allow’d to challenge Thivty-five
peremprorily ¢ and  Juliee Carlion was of the
fame Opinion, and the rather, becaufe no Prece-
dent had been olier’d of fuch a Challenge before :
Jultice L:vinz was of the {ame Opinion, for the
fame Reafon: Juftice Street was of the fame Opi.
nion, for the fame Realons; and thoughe they had
been very nice, when the Life of the King lay at
{take, and all the Cuiloms and Privileges of the
City of Londor ltem’d to be levell’d at in that
point: Jultice #71bins was of the fame Opinion.

Then the Chict Jultice told the Prifoner, the
Court over-rul’d his Challenge 5 but that he had no
Hardlhip put upon him, for the Reafon of Law for
Frecholders was, that no (light Perfons fhould be
put upon the Jury; but in his Cafpthere were Per-
fons of Quality and Subftance put upon the Jury,
which was the fame in fubftance with 2 Jury of

Frecholders. ,

Thele being the Reafons of over-ruling thar Chal-
lenge, they may be ranked under thefe Heads :
There was no fuch Challenge ar common Law ; if
there were, vet not in Treafon. And if it were a
Challenge in Treafon, wherea Trial 1s ina County
at large, yet not where it 15 ina City and County ;
and if 10 a City and County, yetenot in Lowdoin,

The affigning many Reafons for one and the
lame thing, makes the Judgment juftly fufpedted :
for if when two Witnefles to one Fad, varying in

* Sir Francis
Pemberton.

t Will. AMon-
tague, £/4

1 Ser Stat. of Merton, cap. 7.
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the Circumftances of i, are jultly fufpelted in
point of truth feveral Ieafons for the fame Jude-
ment make the Knowledge or Integrity of the Judges
juftly fulpe&ied 5 every Cale in Law, as my Lords
Coke and Hale fay, ftanding vpon its own parti-
cular Reafon: and therefore when many Realons
are given, it looks as if the Judges were hunting
abour for Reafons to make good what before-
hand they are refolved to vent for Law, rather
than that their Judgment is the Relul. of thofe
Realons.

But to confider them fingly, I do indexd think
there 15 ro exprels Refclutien, that ar cemmon
Law in any Cafe of any capital Mater, it was a
cood Chalizrge {excepr the Cafe of Fitzhariii, al-
ready taken notice of) but 1 civil Matters my Lord
Coke s exprefs, that at commen Law 1t wasa good
Challenge 5 and with him Sir Folinr Iortefene {cems to
concur, whe, 1 his LExpelition on that Statute of
Heiry the Vieh, fays, i the Dobis or Damages be
under Forty Marks, the Juryman fhall have Land
to a computent Value, according to the Difcretion
of the Juflices, My Jord Cele faith, in fuch Cafe
any I'rechold fufiiceth 5 now how can that be true,
it 1c were not neceflary ar common Law to have
fome Freehold ¢ For the Siatute malies no Provi-
fion for Debr or Damages under Forty Marks. It
muft thercfore be by common Law that fome
Freehold was neceffary, and thatany Freehold thell
fuffice.  And furely, i in civil Matters it was ne-
ceffary for a Juror to have a Frechold, much mote
in capteal Maeters, and moftly in Treafon. It is
very phun, that ar common Law no Man was
thought to be a fufficient Man, but a Freeholder ;
and tho’ now, and for fome time paft, the Value
of Trade s equal to that of Land, yet heretofore
1t was not fo, and by what was heretofore, the com-
mon Law 150 be known.

The mazer of Trade was heretofore fo incons
fideiable, and the Traders them{elves for that Rea-
fon fo vile, thar 1t was a Dilparagement for a Free-
holder to marry with a Tradefman, as is to be {een
by the Stituie | Adrfor: and thercfore mere-
‘T'radefinen, and not Frecholders, were not to be
trufted with the Concern of a Trial in acivil Mat-
ter, and much lefs ina Capitl, and leaft of 2llina
Tri2l of High-Treafon.

The Chict Jultice Pewberton {ays, that the Rea-
{on of Frecholders was, that no flight Perfons thould
be put upon a Jury where the Life of a Man, or
his Luftate, 1s in queitton s itis plamn therefore, the
Concern of the thing to be tried, is che meafure
of the Subflance of the Juryman, If chat be true,
the “Irial 1n Treafon is of the higheft Concern :
Fow then s 1t true, as fome of the Judges cor -
cluded, thartho® Frechold nght be requifite in fome
Cafes at commen Law, yer in Treafon certainly
not! It 1s indeed a Paradox to me.

And the perempiory Challenge of Thirty-five
allowed the Prifoner, is no Reafon againf the Chal-
lenge of no Irecholder 5 for that is only a Privilege
allowed the Prifoner in favsiem Vite 5 and it might
as well be argued, that no Chalienge at all o the
Petry-Jury ihall be allow’d the Pritoner, becaule
he had a Grand-Jury palt upon him before, which
is alfo 11 favorem Vite 3 that no ivian, at the King’s
Suit, fhall be fo much as quelfion’d for his Life,
till above the Number of T'welve fubftantial Men
have on their Oaths faid they think the Accufation
true 3 and alwer that, he is allow’d o challenge

z Inft. gz, Colt Lit. €2
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ily Thirty-five, and with Caufe without

eremptor i _
1 ; To affirm therefore that no Freehold 1s

number.

qot a Caule of Challenge, becaufe he may chal-

lenge pcremptarilyiT hirty.ﬁve_, 15 a #Hon fquffl
and though Non-ufage, that 1s _to fay, that inis
Challenge was never taken In Trealon, was then
1'd as an Argument, yer it 18 the weakeft of Ar-
ouments which s to be found 1n
:vcn hat Fact was not true, for ‘[hf: Chal!enge' Wi
calcen and allow’d hefore 3 unlefs you will diftin-
cuifh and fay, that in thag Cafe t was talcen by :Eh_f:
King, and therefore good, and in this by _the Pri-
funer, and therefore bad. 1'm {ure th;}tdlf’ferencne
" cannot be warranted, either by Authority or R::.._-
and what though Cogk, and the other Regl-
cides, and other Perfons, did not take that Chal-
lenge, is it an Argument that they could not, Jor
thar they thought they could not? perhaps they
had forgotten o do ir, as much as the Judges 1n
his Cafe had forgotten their Relolution 1n Fitz-
harriss Cales or perhaps thzy could not t:_ikc ir,
their Jury belng Freehoh]cf's;,'or E?rhaps It Was
to no purpole, they being tried 1n Middefex, where
a Jury of Frecholders would quickly be found.
Nor is it an Argument that no Cafe of this Chal-
Jenge at common [aw is ro be found in_the Bools s
for fince the Statute of Ifewry the Filth, to the
time of Queen Mary, 1t could never be a Cales
1nd from that time to this it could never be a Cafe
in Felony : and the Law being fo very plain, that
if the Fa@ were with the Prifoner, it was always
allowed 3 if againft the Priloner, it was difallowed,
ot as not good in point of Law, but as not true
in point of Fadt; thercfore the Challenge perhaps
was not raken notice of in the Books, which only
report Difficulties,

It is true of late, and it is bus of late Practice,
the whole Tranfadtions of a Trial are publifhed
for the Benefic of the Publifber, rather than for
the common Good; and that indeed was the Mo-
tive of publithing Flizbarris’s Trial ligned by Fra.
Pemberton, and of Colledge’s Trial figned by Fra.
Noith, and of my Lord Ruffel’s figned by Hilltam
Pritchard, Mayor, and Col, Sidugy’s Trial figned
by George Fefferizs, and Mr. Coraif’s Trial figned
by Thomas Fones.  And that is the Reafon why,
{ince that Statute, we find no Cafe of {uch a Chal-
lenge in capital Matters, and before that Statute the
Year-Books po but a [irtle way.

It is enough there was no Refolotion that it was
not a good Challenge, for it will be of the King’s
fide to fhew why that fhould not be a good Chal-
lenge in Trealon, which was 1 moft, if not in all
other Cales,

It is preity.to obferve what Steps were made in
over-ruling this Challenge : {ome were of Opinion
that 1t was no Challenge 1n any Cafe at common
Law s fo faid the Arorney and Sollicitor-General,
the Chiet Baron, Juliice Fizanam, and Baron Street.
Fhe Coiet Joitice thought 1t no Challenge at com-
mon faw in Trealon or Felony only, but chat the
Suarute of Jivwey the Filth made 1t a Challege 1n
Treafon and Felony 5 bur whether the Scatute of
Heivy the Fifth made it a Challenge in Treafon,
the Chief Baron and Juflice #izdbam doubted.  Jus
ftice. Fon:s thought it no Challenge ac common
Law wn Treafon; Jultice Levinm would not de-
termine whether it was a good Challenee in any Cafe
at cormmmon Law, boer he apd Baron Strect were
cicarly of Opinien 1t was not a good Challenge in
London,  The Chiel Juttice thought it a Bufinefs
of great Confequence, not only for the Prifoner,
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but for all other Perfons: Baron Street. thought
the Judges had been very nice in the matter, which,
in the Phrafe of the Law, is giving themielves a
great deal of trouble in a matter very clear, or of
no moinent.

But though they diffes’d in their Reafons, yer all
agreed in this, and 10 this only, that tried he thould
be, and thac prefently.

Then as {or the Cuftom of the City of Londsn,
to try without Freeholders, how did 1t appear to
the Judges that there was any fuch Cuftom ¢ Did
they ever read of any fuch Cuftom in the City of
Lendar 2 Nay, were not the Statutes which were
cited, where #o Ireebeld was made no Challenge in
Londoar 1n particular Cafces, as fo many exprefs Re-
folutions, that there was no {uch Cultom in the
City 2 for if there had been fuch Cuftom, what
iced thofe Stawutes 2 To which ¢he Judges never
vouchfated any Anfwer, becaule in truth they could
malce none,

But it was objeted, there was the Refolotion n
the City of Warcefier’s Cafe, which I agree was of
as good Awherity, and of no better, than the
Judgment in the principal Watter of the Quo I¥ar-
rainto.  And it was likewife objetted, there would
be a failure of juilice in Cities, 1f the Challenge
were good for want of Irecholders.

I afk, Would it have been a failure of Juftice at
common Law, or by reafon of fomewhast which
Lath happened of late Times? There is none who
preiends to know any thing of the Hittory of Eng-
lend, that will fay, that herewcfoie the Cities were
not inhabited mofily by the Gentry, and elpecnlly
the City of Londeir 5 partly for Luxury, partly for
their Seenrity, and then there was no wane of Free-
holders in the Cities; but when matters became
more quicr, and Trade increafed, and made Heules
in the Cities more valuable, then were Houles of
equal Convenience, and lefs Price, fituate 1n the
Suburbs, or in the Country 5 the Gentry by degrees
parted vrith their Houfes in the Cites to Tradel-
men for Profit, and remov’d themfelves to other
Places. And I believe it may beremembred, that
even the Sirand, in the Memory of Man, could
have furnifh’d the Ceunty of Middlefes: with a fut-
ficient Number of Trecholderss and yetr now, for
the above Reafons, you can hardly find 2 Jury of
Freeholders there.

Befides, it muflt be remembred, that Loadon here-
tofore had many of the King’s Palaces in 1t 5 and
the Country Gentlemen did not then, as now, take
up with Lodgings, bur were Inhabitants of Houfes ¢
and i the failure of Juftice happen by the above
means, 1 am fure it is again{t the Oath of the Judges
to fupply that Defeét with their Refolution 5 but
it ouzht to have been fupplied by an Act of the
Legiflative Power.

If the Neceffity of the Thing warrants the Judg-
ment, how unlearned were the Judges in Heary the
Seventh and Henry the Eighth’s Times, that they
did not fupply the Defe& in Law in the City of
London, and other Cities, by their Refolutions?
How vain were the Parliaments in thofe Times,
who fupplied thofe Defeéts in Law, mentioned 11
the A@s cited by thofe Statates, which were Works
of rime and trouble, if they had thought the Judges,
by their Refolutions, had power to doit? for if
they had power to do I, they conld have done it
exiempore, as 1w this Cale.

For the laft Obje&tion, that the Writ mentions
only Prebos €5 Legales Homines, and {peaks nothing
of Freeholders; Legales may be very well incer-
preied,
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preted, to imply Men -qualify’d by Law; but [
take it, that Homines implies it - for by Homines de
Comitatu are meant Frecholders of that County ;3
and all others, in point of Truft, are not confi-
der’d in Law. My Lord Ceks, in his Comment
upon the 28th of Eliz. 1. ¢ap. 8. which gives the
Eletion of Sheriffs to the People of the County
where the Sheriffwick is not in Fee, fays, People
there, means Freeholders of the County ; and the
fame is underftood by Writs to the Counties to
choofe Coroners, Verdurers, and the like, though
the Writ fays, per communitatem Comitatus, & de
affenfu Comitatus,

And tho’ the Writs of Penire in civil Matters,
of late Days, mention what Frechold each Juror
fhall have, yer that is by the Statute of the 35th
of Hen VI cap. 6. which exprefsly commands the
Writ fhall fo expre(s it, in all Iffues join’a in Wefl-
minfler, to be tried becween Party and Parry 5 be-
fore which time it is plain, the Venire, even in civil
Matters, did not exprefs any Frechold, and that
Statute doth not extend to 1ffues join’d on Indict-
ments,

Now if upon all which hath been faid, it is nct
plain, that the Challenge ought to have been al-
low’d, yet fure it was doubtful ; and if {o, and 2
matter of grear Confequence, as the Chief Ju-
ftice faid it was, why might not the Counfel ior
the Prifoner have had a little more time to have con-
{ider’d of the Challenge before they had argu’d 1,
or the Judges have taken a little time to confider
the Matter before they had given their Judgment ?
I dare fay, none of them could remember any po-
{itive Refolutions one way or other, nor upon a
fudden was it expected they thould 5 and thercfore,
for their own fakes, if not {or the Prifoner’s, they
might have taken the Morning, if not the Day.
The Prifoner defir'd his Trial to be put off, for
to have confider’d of it; in that nme, perhaps,
fome of them might have remembred, or others
might have put them 1 mind of their Refolutions
in Fifzharris’s Cafe 3 they might have confider’d
how to diftinguith between thar Cale and this, and
not run away with it, that char Challenge was ne-
ver made in Treafon, as all the Judges affirm’d.
But my Lord Rufe/ was told by the Court, that
they always tried the Prifoner, in Treafon, the Day
he was arraign’d, and could not put off the Trial
for a Morning, without the Actorney-General’s
Confent ;5 but furely that is not true, Plunket and
Fitzharris were try’d the Term after they were ar-
raign’d, though the Attorney-General oppos’d ir.
It 1s true, he fubmitied to the Rule, as it was as
much his Duty to do, as the Prifoner’s ; but if
there be a difference between an Arraignment at
Weftminfler and the Old-Bailey, as to the fpeeding
the Trial, the Place will not vary the Reafon of
the thing, if there be not any Law for it, as there
1s not; but even at the Old-Baitley, the Trial in
Treafon hath been put off to another Seffions, it
was done in Whitehrzad’s Cafe, and in many other
Cafes. If it be faid that was by the Atorney-Ge-
neral’s Confent, I fay that makes no difference 5 for
the Judze is to be indifferent berween the Attorney-
General and the Prifoner.  If the Court muft or-
der nothing but what the Attorney affents to, why
15 not the Prifoner try’d and judg’d by the Attor-
ney alone? or what needs all the Formality of a
Triad? Iric be faid, that that Trial was put off, be-
canle the King’s Winefles were not ready 5 1 fay,
there 15 the fame Reafon to put off a Trial, be-
canle the Driloner’s Winefles are not ready, and
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that was the pretended, though not the ttue Reas
fon of putting off Firzharris’s Trial to another Term,

and there is no Law to the contrary.
It is torally in the Difcretion of the Judges to

put off a Trial; which Difcretion ought to be go-
vern'd by Realon,

But indeed this was extraordinary, and without
any Precedent: 1t can never be thewn in the Cafe of

the greatelt or meaneft Perfons, being accus’d of
the greateft or lealt Crime, that ever the delay of
a Day, much lefs of o Morning, for his "[rial, was
deny’d, where he fhew'd but any colour for what
he faid, when the Seflions were to continue after
the rime he defir’d, as in this Cafe it did.  Fitzbar-
ris fad his Witnefles were in Flofland, and though.
he nam’d no Perfons, yer his Trial was put off 1o
the next Term 3 my Lord Reffe! faid his Witnefles
could not be in Town till that Night, yet the re-
fpite till next Day was deny’d : all Perfons agreed,
that there was fome extraordinary Reafon for it,
and before the Trial was over, the Riddle was

O

My Lord of £fcx was kill'd, or to be kil{d
that Morning 3 as to this Mauer, it 13 not mage-
nal whether by his own or another’s Hand @ they
were fenfible the lividence againlt my Lord Reffe!
was very defedlive, and that Accident was to help
1t out 5 but that would not avail, unlefs it were 2
furprizing Matter upon the Jury : fhould the Jury
have had a Day’s, or but a Morning’s time to con-
ider ot it, Pecple might have been talking with
the Jury. Ic was very matenal o afk, what In-
fluence that Accident would have on myLord Ruffal’s
Trial, whether 1t was any Evidence againft him -
they might have been told what was true, that no
Perfon kilPd, was i Law {uppos’d to have kill’d
himfelf, tll a Coroner’s Inqueft had fat upon the
View of his Body, and found it fo ; and if it had been
fo found, yet even that had been no Evidence againft
another, becaufe the Coroner’s Inqueft never found
the Reafon why a Man kill’d himfelf ; and if they
fhould find the Reafon, yet cven that was no Evi-
dence agawnft another, becaufe that other was never
call’d before the Coroner’s Inqueft to make his De-
fence, They might have been told a great many
Circumftances of the Improbability of the killing
himfelf 5 they might have obferv’d that the King’s
Counfel were {o far fenfible, that it was no Evidence
againft my Lord Raffel, that they never attempted
to prove the Earl of £ffex was dead, or kilPd him-
felf: 1t wis only fhily infinuated, together with the
Reafon of 1r, which had its Effeét, if the Report te
true of fome of the Jurymen’s faying it went farther
with them, thai all the Evidence of the Witneffes pro-
duc’d 3 and if thag be true, there was a reafon, tho®
not a juft one, for {peeding that T'rial beyond the
ordinary Methods of Triuls at the Old- Bailzy.

But tho’ my Lord Ruffdl had feemingly lefs
favour in that Marer than any other Perfon,
even than Colledge, who had the refpite of two or
three Hours between his Arraigoment and Trial,
(tho’ that was not in favour to Colledge, bur only
to examine his Papers which they ook from him,
and inftruct their Witnefles accordingly) yet in
other things he had more Favour or Juftice done
him : his Papers were not taken from himj it
was agreed to be his Right to ufe them with-
out queftioning from whom he had them, what
they were, or the like, as in Colledge’s Cafe was
done ; he had a Copy of the Pannel of the Jury,
even before his Arraignment, given him; and
the Chief Jultice faid it never was denied in Cafe

of




Romarks on the Lord Ruflel’s Trual.

of Life that he knew of, which was denied Col-

Jedge before he pleaded s I_Je'cztufe then ’twas pre-
cended there was no [ffue join d, tll P!E:? pleaded,
after which the Ventre 1S awar::led; tho’ all Men
know, that the Sheriff fummon’d the _]1}1'2 before
che Arraignment, and even after Iffue join’d. Col-
edge was denied a Copy of the Pannel, only he
was told, he fhould look every Juryman in the
trice before he was fworn; and as far as the
Looks of 2 Man betray him, he fhould be fa-
isfy’d whether he was hon_eit or nof, Wthh; 15
an ill way of judging ; for I think
= Lwd Chitf  the Perfon * that gave that Rule,
Fuftice Northe 0 o1 have deceiv’d any Man by his
Countenance, who had not known his Pradlices. _
But fays the Attorney General T, in
| Sir Robert  my Lord Ruffel’s Cafe it was matter
Savyer. of Favour, aud not of Righe, there-
fore no Injultice to Colledge. 1 confels of all Men
who ever came to the Bar, he hath laid down
the moft Rules, which depend totally upon the
Authority of his own faying : in Colledge’s Cale
he afirm’d, that the King’s Witnefles ought not
to be kept out of the hearing of each other, when
they save their Lvidence (a Method vs’d in civil
Matcers, the Reafon of which is well known, and
none can fhow any Law or Reafon why ic fhould
not be us’d in capital Maweers) with as much Rea-
fon and Authority, as what is now faid.

Firft, I do affirm there is no Authority in Law,
which fays a Prifoner fhall not have a Copy of the
Pannel; in the next Place [ affirm, that after a
Jury ftruck in a civil Matter, cach Parey ought to
have a Copy of the Pannel, in order to provide
himfelf of a Challenge, if thicre be any Caufe. In
the laft place, T afirm, that by Law, more Fa-
vour is allow’d a Defendant 1n a Capial Matter,
to defend himfelf, than in a Civil, And it thefe Pro-
politions be true, ler any Perfon, it he can, make
out the Law or Reafon of the above Affertions.

Of a like Stamp was the Saying of the Attorney,
when my Lord defir’d a Copy of the Matter of
Fact laid againtt him, that he had Notice of it;
for Quefltions were put to him about it, and he was
with his Lordfhip himfelf, and examin’d him up-
on thofe Queltions, which was a Favour to him,
that he might know what the Mawer was he was
accus’d of,

[ do not affirm that ever it was pradtis’d, to
give the Prifoner a Note of the Fa&, to be given
1n Kvidence againft hiim, proving Treafon, or that
it was ever denied till then, nor do I know of
any Law pro oc con n the Cafe s bue if one would
judge by Reafon or Pra&ice in parallel Cafes, I
think 1t ought not to be deny’d.

I know not at prefen: of more than two Sorts of
general Indictments, and thofe are of Treafon and
Barretry 5 the lalt is a general Indi¢tment, for ftir-
ring up Sutts without Reafon, and without men-
tioning any Suit in particular: and therefore if
by the Rule of the Court the Defendant was not
help’d, which obliges the Profecutor to give the
D:fendant, fome reafenable time before the Trial,
a Note of what Suits he intends to give in Evi-
dence againft him, ir was impoffible for the De-
fendant to efcape, if it had been his Misforiune to
have had five or {ix Suits.

For I never yet faw a Witnefs produc’d againft
the Inditted, bur he would fwear the Indi&ed
brought an Adtion againft him without Reafon ;
and yet 1 have ofien feen, that the Indi@ed ha-
ving had notice, - that that was one of the Suits he
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was 1atended to be charg’d with, hath been able
to prove that he had good, or at lealt probable
Caufe of Suit, which he could not have done if
he had not notice. And in Treafon, for defigning
to kill the King, there have been fo many Inter-
pretations of IKalts tending thar way that it is

almoft 1mpoflible for an Innocent to defend him-
felf, unlefs he had notice of the Faét intended to
be infifted on at the Trial.

‘There are yet fome Expreflions which mighti-
ly puzzle me: the King’s Counfel faid in the
Argument of the Chalicnge, that they would not
have the Point of being a Feryman, tho' not
a Freeholder, loft to the City of London; and
one of the Judges faid, ’twas the Privileges of
the City were ftruck at in that Point. If by
thofe Expreflions be meant, that it is for the be-
nefic of the Publick chat there thould be no fai-
lure of Juftice, Iagree to it; but if it be meant
that 1t is for the Benefit of the Citizens to be 7u-
rymen, 1 deny 10: and. 1 think nothing fhews
1t plainer, than that it is a Privilege thar a Cid-
zen .fhall not be drawn out of the City to bea
Furyman; that a Nobleman fhall not be on a
Jurys thatic is a Matter of Prerogative in the
King, and Favour to a particular Perfon, to grant
2 Charter of Exemption from being on a Fury.
So that, if I confider the Law, I know what is

meant by thofe Expreffions 5 1f I confider aliow’d
Prattice, it 1s true, a Faryman may earn his Eight-
pence for a Trial ; but that i1s too inconfiderable
Pay for Perfons of Subftance, as the Furymen in
this Cafe were faid tQ be, to be fond of the Em-
ploy, orto account it a Privilege. Yet even that
was but 1 civil M. ~ers; in criminal Matters not
Capial, the J#ry were heretofore paid if chey ac-
quitted the Detendant, bur noe if they found him
guilty, tho’ of late it hath been practis’d to give
them more, and reat them higher if they con-
vilted the Defendant, than if they acquitted him:
But in capital Matters, as the Cafe in queltion
was, It was never allow’d, or at lealt own’d, to
pay the Fary, be the Verdiét which way it would.
Having {poken to the Preliminaries, I proceed to
the Trial, wherein Colonel Rumfey was firlt pro-
duc’d : he fad, he was {ent by my Lord Shefief-
bury about the end of Oligher, or beginning of N¢-
vember 3 who told him, he fhould mieet at one
Sheppard’s the Doke of Adoumouth, Lord Ruffl,
Lord Gray, Siv Thomas drmfireng, and Mr, fer-
gufon, 10 know of them what Relolution they were
come to about the Rifing of Tamntoir. Sheppard
carry’d hitm where chey were, and anfwer was made,
Mr. Trenchard had faill’d them, and there would
be no more done in the matter at that time ;
thereupon the L.ovd Shafteshury took a Refolution
1 be gone. Mr, Fergufon {poke moft of the Mef-

fage, and he thought the Lord Gray fpoke {ome-

thing to the fame Purpole; he did not know how
often he had been at that Houfe, he was there
more than once, or elfe he heard Mr. Fergufon
make a Report of another Meeting to the Lord
Shafteshury, my Lord Ruffel was in the Room, and
that was all they faid at that time that he remem-
bred, he was not there above a Quarter of an Hour.

There was fome Difcourfe about leeing m what

pofture the Guards at the AMews and Savey were

in by all the Company, to know how to {urprize
them if the Rifing had gone on sy .Sir Thomas Ay~

firong and Mr, Fergufon began, all debated it 5 he

thought the Duke of Monmouth, the Lord Gray,
and Sir Thomas Armfireng were {ent to view them ;
I the
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the Rifing was appointed to be the 1gth of Nevem-
beir; he was {poke to by the Lord Shaftcsbury 1o
oo to Briffol it the Rifing had gone on, bur mn
was Quality was not determin’d,  The Lord Rujfe!
agreed to the Debate, Being afk’d if my Lord
Reuflel faid any thing there, and what 3 he anfwer'd,
My Lord Ruff-/ fpoke about the Rifing at Tatton.
Being afk’d what my Lord Reff faid, he an-
fwer'd, My Lord Reffe! difcourfed of the Rifing,
Being afl’d it my Lord gave his Confent to the Ri-
fing, he faid he did.

The next Witnefs was Mr, Sheppard, who {ad, In
October laft, Mr, Fergnfoin came to him in the Duke

of Mosmonth’s Name, and defir’d the Conveniency

of his Houfe for himfelf and fome Perfons of Qua-
lity, which he granted. In the Evening the Duke
of Monmauth, Lord Gray, Lord Rajj=i, Sic Thomas
Armfirong, Colonel Reinfey, and Mr, Feroufon came,
not all together, but the one after the other. Sir
Tuowas drinfirone delir’d, that none of his Servants
might come up, and that they might be private s
{o what they wanted he went down for, a Bottle of
Wine, or fo: the Subftance of the Difcourfe was,
to {urprize the King’s Guards ; and in order to it,
the Duke of Moumonth, the Lord Gray, and Sir
Thomas drmfirong, went one Night, as he remem-
bred, to the Mews, or thereabouts, to fee the
Guards ; and the nexe time they came to his Houfe,
he heard Sir Thomas drmflrong fay, the Guards were
very remifs 1n their places, and not like Soldiers,
and the thing was feafible if they had but firength
to doir, Heremembred but two Meetings there 3
they came in the Evening; he neither heard nor
{aw any Coaches at his Door : When they came in,
as he remembred, the Lord Re/i/ was both times
tiere 5, he had no Bufinefs with the Lord Reff!, nor
the Lottt Ruf2l wich him at that time, but fince he
had, He did not remember Colonel Rumfey dif-
cours’d the Lord Ruffz/ abour any private Bufinefs,
nor remember’d any farther Difcourfe 5 he remem-
ber’d no Writings norPapers read at tha: time : upon
recolleClion, he remember’d oné Paper read by Mr.,
Fergufon, in the Natwure of a Declaration, fetting
forth the Grievances of the Nation, the Particulars
he could nor tell; it was a prewty large Paper, it
was fhew’d for Approbation, as he fuppos’d, when
to be fet out was not difcours’d ;3 ’twas fhew’d to
Sir Thomas Armfireung, and, as he remember’d, the
Duke of Ademmsnth was prefent, and he thought
Colonel Rumfey wasprefent,  Colonel Rumfey faid,
he was not prefent, it was done before he came.
Mr. Sveppard went on and faid, the Defign of the
Paper was in order to a Rifing, as he fuppos’d by
the Purport of it 3 he would not fay the Lord Ruffi!
was there when that Paper was read, but he was
there when the talk was about feizing the Guards
he could not be pofitive as to the Times of thofe
Meetings, but it was when the Lord Shaftesbury vwas
abfent tfrom his Houfe, he abfented abour Michacl-
mas-Day 5 he could not be pofitive that my Lord
Ruffel was at both Meetings; he thought he was at
both, he was fure he was at one,

The laft Winefs was the Lord Howard, He
faid he brought Captain 7alcot acouainted with the
Lord Shafteshury; and upon his Account Caprain
[¥alco! foon gain’d a confidence with Lord Shaftes-
bury. I¥alcot told him, the People were fenfible all
their Interefts were going to be loft by the Violence
offer’d to the City in the Ele@tion of Sherifis, and
that they were refolv’d to rake feme Courfe to put
2 Stop to it : that there were feveral Meetings about
1t, and fome Perfons began o prepare to act 5 that
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fome had good Horfes, and kept them in private
Stables, and he reflolv’d to be one in 1t : He having
an Lftate in freland, he difparch’d his Son thither,
and order’d his Son to turn his Stock into Money
the Son wentabout Argnft : That the 3oth of Septem-
ber, Waleot din’d with him 5 told him, that the Lord
Shaftesbury was fecreted, and defir’d to fpeak with
him : Falcat brought him to the Lord Shafteshury;
who complain’d of the Duke of Monm-uth and the
Lord Ruffl for deferting him 3 but there was fuch
preparation made in Losdon, that now he was able
to do it of himfelf, and intended to do it fuddenly 5
he had above 10000 brifk Boysready to follow him
when he held uphis Finger, they would poffefs them-
felves of the Gates, and in twenry-four Hours they
would muliiply to five times the Number, and
would be able to poflefs #7bitehall by beuting the
Guards. The Lord Howard went to the Duke of
Monmouth, told lm the Lord Shafteshury’s Com-
plaint, who faid, the Lord Kujffe/ and he told the
Lord Shaftesbury from the beginning, that there was
nothing to be done by them in the Country at that
time, The Matter of the Difcourfe between him
and the Duke of Mvimonth, him and the Lord
Shafiesbury, and him and TFalcot, is too tedious to
relate, and as little to the purpofe, if the Jury had
underltood Matter of Law, which they did not; in
it he takes care to fhew what Confidence my Lord
Snafteshury had in him, more than in the Duke of
Monmenth or the Lord Ruflel 5 how very cautious
he was, and how precipuate the Lord Shaftesbury
was, and that what he told the Duke of Monzscnt),
the Duke told the Lord Reffe! 5 and he Leard the
Lord Reffel had been with the Lord Shafic ", v, end
put off the intended Rifing. At which the Lord
Ruffel interrupted him, and faid, he thoughe he had
very hard mealure, there was a great deal of Evi-
dence given by hear-fay only, Whereupon the Chief
Juftice faid, 1t was nothing againft the Prifoner 3 he
declar’d it to the Jury, but the Attorney-General
bid the Lord Howard go on in the Method of Time,
and that it was nothing againit che Prifoner, but the
Witnelles were coming to 1t, if his Lordfhip would
have patience, he affur’d him fo, The Lord Hsward
went on where he left off, with a Story between him
and /7aleot of an intended Rifling, and of fome dark
Sayings let fall by Falcot and the Lord Gray, im-
porting a Defign upon the King’s Perfon ; but the
Lord Heward was very careful to put all off; but at
laft 1t was refolv’d to rife on the 17th of November :
But the Lord Hewardiearing it had been difcover’d,
becaule he faw a Proclamation a little before, for-
bidding Bonefires without the Lord Mayor’s leave,
that of the 17th of Nevember was alfo difappointed,
and the Lord Shafteibury went away and died. But
confidering they had gone fo far that it was not fafe
to retreat, and likewife that fo great an Affair as
that, confifting of fuch infinite Particulars, was to
be manag’d with fo much Freffe, they erelted a
Cabal of fix Perfons, the Duke of Moumonth, Lord
of Effex, Lord Ruffel, Mx. Hampden, Algerion Sidney,
and himfelf, about the middle of Fannary lafty and
about that time they met at Mr, Hampden’s Houle,
where it was confider’d whether the Infurreftion
fhould be in Lsudon, or in 2 Place diftant ; what
Countries and Towns were fitteft and moft difpos’d
to Action ; what Arms neceflary to be provided 3
how to raife twenty-five or thirty thoufand Pounds,
and how they might {o order it as to draw Scotland
mto a Confent with them,

About ten days afeer they met at the Lord Kuffel’s

Houfe, and refolv’d 1o fend fome Perfons into Sm.f.}
lail
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iand to the Lord Argyle, to invite fﬂme Perfons
hither to give an -Account of tl:at Kingdom ; the
Perfonsto be invited were Sir Foos Gockram, Lord
Melvil, Sir Camphel 3 that Matter was re-
ferred to Col, Siduey, who told him he ha_.d ft?nt Auaron
Smith; they agreed not to meet again till the re-
urn of the Meffenger.  The Mefinger was gone
about a Month, it was fix Weeks or more before
he retarned, andthen his Lordfhip-was forced togo
into Effex, where he had a fmall Concerns there he
fraid three Weeks, and when he returned, he was
informed Sir Fobn Cockram vas come to Town, and
afterwards he was forced to go to the Bath, where
he fpent five Weeks 3 and from that time to this was
five Weeks, all which time wasa Parenthefisto him ;
and that he and the five mentioned ereéted themfelves
by mutual Agreement into that Society.

Abterbury Swore Campbel was in his Cuftody : then
Colonel Rumfey was afked, whether my Lord Ruff!
heard him when he delivered us Meflage to the Com-
pany, and in what place of the Room the Company
were: who anfwered, that when he came 1n, they
were ftanding by the Fire-{ide, but all came from
thence to hear him ; and when my Lord Rujffel faid,
Colonel Rumfey was there when he came in, Rumfey
faid, No, the Duke of Monmouth and Lord Ruffel
went away together,

Then in behalf of my Lord Ruffel, the Ear] of
Anglefey was examined, who faid, that vifiting the
Earl of Bedford, the Lord Howard came 1n, and told
the Earl of Bedford, that his Son could notbe in fuch
a Plot, or fufpected of it , and that he knew nothing
againft the Lord Ruffel, or any body elfe, of fuch

a barbarous Defign: And he was going on again
with- what the Lady Chaworth had told him, buc

was interrupted by the King’s Counfel, teliing him,
as the Court would not permit them to give Hear-
fay in Evidence againft the Prifoner, fo they muft

not permit his Lord(hip togive Hear-fay in Evidence

for the Prifoner.
M. Howard faid, that the Lord Howard took it

upon his Honour, and his Faith, he knew nothing
of any Perfon concerned in that Bufinefs, and not
only thought my Lord Ruffel unjuftly fuffered, buc
he took God and Man to witnefs, he thought my
Lord Ruffel the worthieft Man in the World,

Dr. Buraet faid, the Lord Howard was with him,
and he did then, as he had done before, with Hands
and Eyes lift up to Heaven, declare, he knew no-
thing of any Plot, nor believed any, and treated
it with great Scorn and Contempt.

‘The Lord Cavendifs teftified as to the Life and
Converfation of the Lord Ruffel, and thence con-
cluded, it was not likely he fhould be guilty of any
fuch Matter, and heard the Lord Ruffel (peak of
Rumfey, as if he had an ill Opinion of him, and
therefore it was not likely he fhould trult him. Dr.
Tillotfon {poke of his Converfaticn 3 Dr. Burnetand
Dr. Cox fpoke of his Converfation, and of his A-
verfenels to all Rifings.  Dr. Cox teftified, that my
Lord Ruffel faid the Lord Howard was a Man of
luxuriant Parts, but he had the luck not to be truft-
ed by any Party. The Duke of Somerfet fpoke of
the Lord Ruffel's Converfation. The Lord Clifford,
Mr. Levefon Gowver, Mr. Spenicer, and Dr. Fitzwilliams
Ipoke of the Lord Ruffel’s Converfation. The Lord
Howard being afked by the Yury what he faid to
the Earl of Aiglefey’s Evideace, owned whar the
Earl {1id, but he did it to outface the Mateer ; and
if he faid untrue, he ought not to be believed on
his Oath, and infinuated, that he meant what he
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faid to be meant of a Defign of murdering the King,
which he did not believe the Duke of Monmonuth

or the Lord Ruffel guilty of. -

This being the Sum of the Evidence given a-
gainft, or for my Lord Ruffe!, letus confider how
tar 1t will jutify the Verdi&t givenagaintt him : firft,
confider the Improbability of Rumfey’s Kvidence,
it my Lord Cavendifh {aid true, that hie fhould truft
Rumfey to hear the Debate abour feizing the Guards,
when the Lord Ruffel had an ill Opinion of Rumfey,
As for Remfey’s delivering the Meflage, there was
no great Matter in that, it ts impoffible to hinder
Peoples fpeaking, and itis not Treafon to conceal
what’s faid 3 befides it was well known, it was Rum:
Jey's way to talk extravagantly, in order to accufe
thofe that heard him, if they did not difcover it
But befides the Improbability of the Evidence in
refpet of the Perfon, the manner of delivering the
Ividence, and the Evidence itfelf was fuch as car-
ried no Colour of Truth with it: he faid he deli-
vered his Meffage, and had an Anf{wer to i, and
being afked whar the Company faid furcher, an-
fwered, that was all thar was faid at that time, that
he remembered, and gives a very good Reafon for
it, for he ftaid not above a quarter of an Hour,
and added, that he was not cerrain whether he then
heard fomething of a Declaration there, or whe-
ther Mr, Fergufon reported it to my Lord Shaftef
bury, that they had debated it : and yet when $hep-
pard {aid Rumfzy was there when the Declaration
was read, bhe dented it, and faid it was read before
he came in.  Being afked to what the Declaration
tended, he anfwered to another matter, viz, that
there was fome Difcourfe about feeing what pofture
the Guards were in, and f{aid, thatall the Company
debated it 3 and being drawn on by Queftions, faid,
it was in order to feize the Guards, if the Rifing
had gone on. Now how doth that part of the
Kvidence agree with what he {aid before, that there
was nothing more {aid than the delivering his Mef-
fage, and the Anfwer to it? And how doth it a-
gree with the time he faid he {taid, which wasnot
above a quarter of an Hour? Whereas that Debate,
if all the Perfons prefent (being fix) debated it, as
he faid chey did, would certainly have taken up
a larger time.  How does the firft and lalt part of
his Evidence agree, when he faid, my Lord Ruffel
agreed to the Anfwer of his Meflage ¢ And being
afked whether and what he fpoke to it, faid, he
{poke about the Rifing at Zaunton, but doth not fay
what; and yet in the ficft part of his Evidence, he
faid, when afked who fent the Meffage back, Mr,

‘ergufon delivered the Anfwer, the Duke of Monmouth
and the Lord Ruffel were prefent, and he thoughe
the Lord Grey faid fomething to the fame purpofe,
But what Credic could be given to any part of a
Man’s Evidence, whofe Memory was {fo thallow,
that he could not remember whether he was at two
Meetings, or whether Mr, Fergufon related one of
them to the Lord Shaftefbury ? Yet both were fup-
poled to be within the Compafs of a Year, whereas

a Man of Senfe i1s {uppofed to remember all his own
Adls for feven Years paft, which is the Reafon why

‘the Chancery obliges a Man to anfwer as to his own

Adts pofitively for {even Years, witnout faying, as .
be believeth, or as be remembzreth, or the like, What
Credit is to be given to a Witnefs who teftifieth
what was faid in Company, and by whom, when
his Memory doth not ferve to anfwer pofitively,
whether he was in the Company, or whether ano-
ther told him what was there faid ? He mighr as

Cc well
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well have faid he was there, or dreamt he was there,
or that he heard the Difcourfe or dreamt of i,
which had carried equal Creditwith e,

It was plain, the Man was riot of fane Memory
enough to make a Will, much lefs to be a Witnels
in-the Trial of 2 Man’s Life ; and nothing can be
faid for him, but that he was a Witnefs for the
King, thatisto fay, a mad Man may bea Witnels
to take away a Man’s Life, which is as good Law
as a great deal of other Cant vented as a part of the
Prerogative. | |

It is true, one of the King’s Counfel recommends
Rumfey to the Jury, as a very credible Witnefs un-
der the Notion of an unwilling Witnefs : but had
the fame Perfon been a Counfel for the Prifoner,
he would have called Rumfey a dancing Witnefs, for
he faid backwards and forwards 3 and an amazed
Witnefs, for being afked one thing, he anfwered
another ; being afked as to the Declaration, he an-
fwered to the feizing of the Grards; being afked
whether my Lord Ruffel affented to the Anfwer of
the Meflage, he replied, yes, becaufe he talked of
the Rifing, ¢, which might be as well againft as
for it.

Sheppard’s Evidence was to the Defign of feizing
the Guards ; and as to the Declaration, heremember’d
but two Meetings, at both which he faid, as he re-
membered, my Lord Ruffel was prefent, but he
could not be pofitive in that, and the times of
the Meetings he did not remember: he faid, the
Subftance of the Difcourfe was, how to {urprize
the King’s Guards; and that the Duke of Mon-
mouth, the Lord Grey, and Sir Thomas Armfirong
went to fee the Guards, as he remembered ; and the
next time they came to the Houfe, Sir Toomas Arm-
firong faid the Guards were very remifs, &e,  Ta-
king this Ewvidence by itlelf, without tacking Rum-
Jey's Evidence to it, it was fo far from being
FEvidence of Treafon, that it was no Crime ; for
he doth not fay, it was intended to be put in
practice, notwithftanding all faid by him: both
the Difcourfes and Perfons viewing the Guards,
(which laft was not Ewvideice, nor ought to have
been given in FEuidencz) might be a Matter 1o
try each other’s Judgments, as well as an Evideance
of a thing defigned : and if it be capable of two

Interpretations, the Law hath faid, it {hali be ta-
ken in mitiore fenfu, in favour of Lifz, That diftin-

&ion was taken by the Chief Jultice in Blague’s-

Cafe, the Day after tlits Trial, where the Evi-
dence agamft him was a Difcourfe about taking the
Tower, as higha Crime as {eizing the Guards;
and upon that Blagre was acquitted, It is true,
Rumfey faid it was in order to be put in pradtice,
when the Riling fhould be in the Country, but
that he did not fay at firft 5 but was afterwards
led to it by Queftions: nor did he fpeak it as
2 thing atthat or any other time determined, but
as his own furmife or guefs, becaufe he knew of
an intended Rifing ; yet how foolifhly did he con-
tradi€t himlelf? Yor, fays Rumfey, it was to have
been put in practice, if the intended Rifing had
gone on ; and yet at the fame Meeting he had faid
before, the Rifing was put off: how contradiétory
therefore i1s it to fay they made Preparations for
a thing they had laid afide before ? And it is plain
Sheppard {peaks of the fame time ; for both agree
Rumfey was at that Meeting, though they do not
agree how foon hecame: belides, how could Shep-
zard {peak pofitively of the Difcourfe, or of the
Defign of it, when he owns he did not hear all
their Difcourfe, and gives a very good Reafon for
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it? For he faid he went feveral tiines down to fetch
Wine, Sugar, and Nutmeg, and did not know
what was faid in his Abfence: he faid he heard
nothing about a Refing, nor heard any further Dif-
courfe 5 but on recollection, he heard fomething
about 2 Declaration of Grievances in order to a
Rifing, as he fuppofed; the Particulars he could
not tell. Now what forc of Evidence was that?
In all civil Matters, 2 Witnefs fhall .not be per-
mitted to give Evidence of the Content of a Deed
ot Writing, with producing the Desd or Wri-
ting itlelf, or a true Copy of it, and upon very
good Reafon; for he may make an untrue Con-
ftruttion of it. I remember a Witnefs who fwore
to the Content of a Deed of Intail; and being
afked, whether he knew a Deed of Intwil, and by
what he knew the Deed he fpoke of to bea Deed
of Intail, anlwered, he knew a tailed Deed very
well, and he knew the Deedto be a tatled Deed,
becavfe it bad a Tail half as long as his Arm,
meaning the Label of the Deed.  And if this be
the Prattice, and the Reafon of the Pradtice, in
civil Matters, thew me any Authority or Reafon
any thing fhould be permitted to be given in
Evidence in Treafon, which is not permitted to
be given i Evidence in the Trial of any civil
Matter,

It you fay, as Juftice Levinz faid in a like Cafe
in Colledge’s Trial, that it would be the difficulteft
thing tn the World to prove Treafon againft a Man,
if the Law were not fo, and the King would in ro
fort be fafe 5 on the other Hand, [ fay as Collzdge
there faid, if the Law fhould be {o, no private Perfon
1s fafe : and if there be Mifchief of either Fland, the
Law 1s and muft be Judge, which hath taken care
(though to no purpofe, becaufe it hath not been
obferved) that there fhould be a firicter Proof in
‘T'reafon than 1n any civil Matter, or in any other
Crime : and how the Judges came to permit that
loofe Eviderce in Treafon to be given, which of
late Years they have done, no juft or honeft Ac-
count can be given.

The laft material Witnels againft my Lord Ru/

fel, was my Lord Howard, (as for Atterbury’s Evi-

dence, 1t ought not to have been permitted to be
given, as fhall be thewn, nor was it material) to
no part of whofe Evidence any Credit ought to be
given, even by his own Confeflion: he was {urely
in the right, when he faid that the Religion of an
Qath is not tied to a Place ; and I’ll add, not to a
Form, but receives its Obligation from the Appeal
therein made to God: and therefore if he faid
(though I own he was not bound to fay it) to the
Earl of Beaford, Mr. Howard, and Dr. Burset, what
was teftified againft him, he ought not to be be-
lieved in any part of his Evidence, Did he fay
true to my Lord Bedford, when unfent for and un-
afked, (for ought appears after my Lord Ruf
was clapt into the Tower) that {ure his Son counld
never be in any fuch Plot as that, or fufpected for
it, and that he knew nothing againft him, or any
body elfe, of fuch a barbarous Defign ; and yet he
knew, if he fwore true, that my Lord Ruffel was
guilty of fuch a barbarous Defign, that nothing
but the Lord Howard’s Duty to God, the King,
and the Country, could prevail with him to give
it in Evidence againft a Perfon for whom he had
{fo great an Affection as he had for my Lord Ru/-
fel.  How was it confiftent with the truth of his
Fvidence. what he faid to Mr, Howard, that he
knew nothing of any Man’s being' concerned in
that bulinefs, and particularly of my Lord Ruffel,

whom
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whom he highly commended, and faid,_he thought
the Lord Ruffe! unjultly fulfered ; or w1tll_wh:1t hie
{2id to Dr, Burnet with Hands and Iyes Iife up to
Heaven, which is as much an Appeal 1o God s
may be, that he knew nothing of any Plot, nor
believed any? It was an idle Evafion to fay, when
he {poke of my Lord Ruffel, he meant my Lord
Ruffzl was not guilty of the Defign of murdering
the King, (for which that Man, as he faid, was
committed, meaning Walcot, the Lord Ruffel, or
any other Perfon) for he is ftill at Liberty to explain
himfelf, and Iam apt to think they were all com-
mitted by Warrants of the fame Form. I know
not how dextrous he 1s at paring an Apple, but
he muft be an excellent Logician that can recon-
cile the Truth-of his Evidence and Sayings. The
Truth is, 2 Man that has thofe Niceties in his Head
ought to have no Credit; for no Man knows whe-
ther he underftands what he fays aright, and I
am 2pt to think his Lordfhip could fhew, that he
did not intend what he faid at my Lord Ruffel’s
Trial in the Senfe it was underftood by the Court
or Jury. To fay, that he was to out-face the thing
for himfelf and his Party, was as vain; (for be-
fides that I think he was of no Party, becaufe,
as my Lord Ruffel faid, he had the Luck to be
trufted by none) where was the Senfe of making
thofe Proteftations to Perfons who could do him
no good, and would do him no harm, both which
my Lord Pemberton could 3 and therefore ’twas
not alike? It is true, the Attorney-General com-
mends the Lord Howard as a Perfon of great Cre-
dic among(t the Party, and infinuates the Lord Grey
was left out of the Cabal for his Immorality, and
the Lord Howard was taken in his place, But 1o
pals from the General of his Evidence to the Par-
ticulars of it,” for about two Leaves in the Print of
it; itis a Difcourfe berween my Lord Shaftefbury
and Him, wherein he makes my Lord Shaftefbury
have a wonderful Confidence in him, and difcovers
all the Defign to him, and what number of Men
he had ar command ; but who they were or what
they were, was never yet difcovered, and yet the
Lord Howard had not at that time been concerned
in the Matter, nor did then affent : he very pru-
dently was refolved to fee whether it was likely to
take effe¢t or not, before he would enter on ir.
ft was indeed a Matter of great wonder to thofe
who knew my Lord Shaftefbury, and knew what
Opinion he had of the Lord Howard, from the
time he difcovered that the Lord Howard frequent-
ed the Dutche(s of Portfinonth, which was before
Fitzbarri®s Trial, (though after that Trial the
Matter was publickly owned, which was before
fufpected by moft, known to the Lord § vaftefbury)
that he fhould fo readily truft the Lord Howard
with the Secret, who was unconcern’d in the Ma-
nagement before, as he fays himfelf, and yet fe-
cicted himlfelf from the Duke of Monmonth, and
my Lord Ruffel, who were equally guilty, if what
was (worn was true. I cannot but obferve, that in
all the time of the Lord Shaftefbury, the Lord
foward was no otherwife concerned in the pre-
tended Defign, buc in raifing Difficulties, and be-
02 i great fear featt there thould be a Rifing or
an Atemp: upon the ring’s Perfon : and if he
fard true, he was the Man chat pat off the intend-
ed Rifings, and likewif the intended Defign on the
Kuag’s Perfon; infomuch, that I think he was {o
far from ftanding in need of a Pardon for Treafon,
that he deferved a confiderable Reward, if it were
for nothing elie than for his fearing the Defign
Vou lV,
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was difcovered by the the Provlamatici againft Bone-
fires, which, as be faid, put off the Rifing intend-
cd to be the 17th of Nevember ; and yer he and
others being afraid, the middle of Fanuary they
erected themifelves into a Cabal of fix Perfons, of
which there is but one Perfon in all his Narrarive
he pretends to have {poken to about thar Matter
before, which is the Duke of Adoumouth, and bur
one more he pretends even by hearfay to be con-
cerned in it betore, which is my Lord Reffel.  How
improbable therefore was it, that thole fix Per-
fons fhould, as it were in fight, put themfelves
upon {uch a dangerous Deflign, efpecially confi-
dering cthe Reafon he gives for i, which was their
Fears, that what had been rranfacted was, or might
be difcover’d? This likewife is obfervable, that
from the 3oth of Seprember, the time the Sheriffs
entred upon their Office, to the 17th of Nevember
following, heis very exa® as to the time of each
Matter, when there was no Perfon could contra-
dict him; for my Lord Sbaflebury was dead, Hal-
cot was convicted, and the Duke of Afonmonth was
oone, who are all the Perlons mentioned to be
concerned 1n that time: yer when he comes o
{peak of the Mateer in which my Lord Ruffe! was
concerned, then he fays it was about the middle
of Fauuary, aboutten Days after, about fix Weeks
after, abour three Weeks, and five Weeks; for
had he been precife in the times, he might have
been difproved in the Meetings he gave Evidence
of : and it was much his Memory 1s fo very good
as to the former times, to be fo very precife in
them as he was, and fo very defe@ive in the latter
times ; and yet thofe times do not make up the
fpace between the middle of Fenuary, and the time
of the Trial, by many Weeks, unlefs you will
give large Allowances to the Word about 5 an Ex-
ception which was taken to Mowdray’s Evidence,
though he reftify’d it by his Account in his Al-
manack ; but it would not be admitted, though
Colledge very fenfibly defired of the Court, for Juftice
fake to look on the Almanack, 1o fee whether it
was newly writ, as 1f done for that purpofe.

Belides the Improbability, if fuch a thing was in
hand, as the Lord Howard pretended, for him to
run into the Country, and then to the Bath, wheén
the Matter was juft come to a Crifis, as it were,
fhews him, if he fwore true, rather a Madman
than a Traitor,

But the Ulage of the King’s Counfel and the
Court towards the Prifoner, was very unjult and
unfair 5 they permitted my Lord Howard 1o go
on with a long Story of him and my Lord Shaftef-
bury, at which, when my Lord Ruffel ook Excep-
tions, the Ghief Fuflice, it is true, fald it was no
Evidence 5 yer the Atorney-General bidding him
go on in the Method of time, he went on where
he left off, intermixing Stories of Defigns, and of
Attempts by other Perfons upon the Xing’s Perfon,
to exafperate the Jury, as my Lord Raufel faid
rightly, againft him ; a thing which no Counfl
durft have done, and no Court would have fuffered
In any other Cafe, nor even in that would the
Coure or Counfel fuffer it for the Prifoner, How
was my Lord duglefey check’d when he began to
tell what my Lady Chaworth faid, and Mr, Ed-
ward Hyward when he did not fpeak of his own
Knowledge! How unjuft was it for the King’s |
Counfel to repeat all the Evidence the Lord How-
ara gave, when they fumm’d it up, even that
which the Court told them before was not Evi-

dence! How unjuft was the infinvating of the
Cc 2 Death
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Death of my: Lord of Effex, as Evidence again(t
my Lord Ruffel! And why did not the Court n
fumming up the Evidence take notice of the Li-

berty the Witneffes and Counfe! had taken, and
have told them what was not Evidence? No
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other Reafon can be given than what Colledge faid
at his Trial, upon his Obfervation of Fitzbarriss
bufinefs and his own, that the Matter was not
to {top at him,

PEREEEREREsOBERERE0A30RERAREE:

Remarks on Colonel Sxdney’s Trial.

T HE Lord Ruffel being executed, and the

4 fame Day, what was called his Speech be-
ing publithed, than which, nothing in Print
was fo eagerly accepted or fought after, which
fhewed the Inclination of the People, there was
fome refpite for quicting the Minds of the Peo-
ple; bur it was not o ftop there, as Colledge faid,
and therefore Colonel Sidney (who was ralked to
death under the Notion of a Commonwealth’s-man)
was the 7th of November, 1683, brought to 2Vefi-
minfler to be arraigned on an Indi¢tment of High-
Treafon. The Inditment at the time he came to
the Hall, was fo far from being found by the
Grand Jury, that 1t was not {fo much as prefent-
ed to them ; but the King’s Counfel, who had
pack’d the Jury, knew well enough that it would
be accepied, that is, found upon fight by the Jury,
without any Confideration, which was accordingly
done, and Colonel Sidrey thereupon arraigaed.
The Indittment was for defigning to depofe the
King, ard to perfuade the King’s Subjeéts to re-
- bel; and thar he did write a cerrain Libel wherein
it was conwain’d, that he (meaning King Charles
the Sccond) 1s {uvject to the Law of God, as he is
a Man; to the People who made him fuch, asa
King, &c. To which Indi¢tment he would have
put in fome Exceptions, expreft in a Parchment in
his Hand, but was told by the Court he muft ei-
ther plead or demur, and upon no other terms
Exceptions could or ought to be admirted ; after
which he pleaded Not Guilty,

The 21ft of November he was try’d, at which
time he infifted to have a Copy of his Indictment,
as he had done when he was arraigned 3 bur was
both times dented,  The firt Witnefs againft the
Prifoner was Mr. 77/, agamnft whom Col. Siduey
objected, becaufe he was not pardoned ; bur it was
anfwered by the Court, that he was a good Wit-
nefs inmy Lord Reffel’s Trial, and therefore fhould
be in that, Then Colonel Sidrey delired Mr. /7722
might f{peak nothing bur what he knew of Colonel
Sidney 5 but was anfwered by the Court, he might
give Evidence of a Plor in general, tho’ Colonel
Sidnzy was not concerned it; and ir was called
Siv William Foiies’s Law, Then Mr. 77:£ went on,
and gave Evidence of what Coloncl Rumfey, Mr.
Nelthorp, and Mr, Fergufon told him of Colonel
Staney 5 but of his own Knowledge he could not
fay any thing of the Prifoner.  Rumfey gave a like
Evidence he had done in my Lord Ruffel’s Trial,
with an addition of what Mr. #%# and Mr. Good-
enorgh told him. Aeeling gave Evidence of what
Goodeinongh told him, all which the Court agreed
was no Lividence againft the Prifoner. Then the
Lord Howard gave the like Evidence, from the
middle of Famrary to that rime, as he had done
in the Lord Ruffel’s Trial, faving that he faid the
Harl of Salifbury was brought into the Cabal, who
was not mentioned before 5 and fave that he faid

the meeting at my Lord Ruffzl’s was about a Fort-

mght or three Weeks after the meeting at Mr.
Hampden’s ; whereas in my Lord Ruffz’s Trial, he
fays 1t was about ten Days after the mecting ac Mr.,
Hampdei’s Houle: and here he makes two notable
Speeches for Mr. Hampden at che opening of the
Confult, both which he had forgotten at my Lord
Ruffel’s Tral, nor could remember ac Mr, Hamp-
aen’s ‘T'rial, tho’ in the laft he was led by a great
many Queltions to put him in mind of them. Af-
ter his Evidence given, Colonel Sidiey was afk’d
whether he would afk the Witnefs any Queltions,
who anfwered, he had no Queftions to afk him ;
whereupon the Attorney-General faid, Sifence———
You know the Proverb,

The Record of the Lord Ruffol's Conviction and
Attainder was given in Evidence, Sir Ludrew Fo-
fter fwore Sir Fobu Cockram, and the two Campbells
came to London. Sir Phiip Foyd proved the fizing
of fome Papers in the Prifoner’s Houfe, and he
did believe the Papers fhewn in Courtto be {ome
of them. Sheppard, Cary, and Cosk fwore the Wri-
ting produced was like the Prifoner’s Hand-writing.
The Actorney-General defired fome part of the
Writng fhould be read ; the Prifoner defired all
of it might be read, but wasanfwered by the Courr,
that the Attorney muft have what part of it he
would to beread, and afterwards the Prifoner thould
have what part of it he would to be read ; bur he
perfifted to defire all of it thould be read. Then
the Writing was read (which was plainly an An-
fwer toa Book, but what Book, was not men-
tioned) in which the Righc of the People was af-
ferted, The Earl of Auglefea gave the fame Evi-
dence for the Prifoner, of the Lord Foward's {peak-
ing of my Lord Ruffel, and the Plot, as he bad
done in my Lord Ruffe’s Trial. The Earl of Clare
fad that the Lord Asward, after Colonel Siduey’s
Imprifonment, faid, 1f he was queftioned again, he
would never plead; the quickelt difpatch was the
beft, he was {ure they would have his Life 5 and
fpeaking of the Primate of Armagh’s Prophecy, he
faid, the Perfecution was begun, and he believed it
would be very fharp, buthoped it would be fhozt;
and faid, he thought Colonel Siduey as innocent as
any Man breathing, gave him great Encomiums,
and bemoaned his Misfortunes ; and as for Col.
Sidiy’s Papers, he faid, he was fure they could
make nothing of them, WMr. Philip Howard {aid,
the Lord fward faid it was a Sham-plot; Dr.
Buriet gave the fame Evidence as he did in my
Lord Ruffel’s Trial. Mr. Lucas gave Evidence,
that the Lord Howard faid he knew nething of Col,
Sidney’s being in any Plot,  The Lord Paget gave
Lividence to the fame purpole. My, Edward How-
ward gave Evidence to the fame purpofe. Trary and
Penwick gave Evidence to the lame purpofe. M.
Blalke teltified, that the Lord Hesvard 121d he had
not his Pardon, and could not afcribe it to any o-
ther Realon, than that he mult not have it il the
Drudgery of fwearing was over, Now to review

what
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what hath been faid, it s ftrange to {fee what a Pro-
orefs was made in the Refolutions of Points of
iﬂW, to tﬂke away n Mﬂ,ﬂ,S Llfe ’ fo fﬂyi 1IC 1N Col.
Sidnzy’s Words, as if the Cnurtandj C@nlcl thought
it their Duty to take away a Man’s Lifc any how.
Mr, /72, and feveral other:s, are adml_tted to glve
Evidence by hear-fay againft the Prifoner, and
their Evidence fummed up, anfd urged as Evidence
to the Jury; and the Reafon given for 1t was, that
he was admitted a good Witnefs of a like matter,
in the Lord Ruffel’s Trial 3 which, beﬁdes‘ that It
was not true, for it was rejected in that ‘Trial, as 1c
appears it was in the priat, yet if he had been ad-
mitted, of no Authority, as Colonel Sidney fud,
becaufe, perhaps, he was not excepted to. Of a like
ftamp is the Evidence of the Conviction of the
Lord Ruffil 5 tho’ L agree the Lord Ruffel’s Con-
vittion was as good Evidence againft Colonel Sid-
ney, as the Barl of Effex’s Murder was againft my
Lord Ruffél, and no better, The fame may be faid
of Rumfey, Keciing, Forfler,and Atterbury’s Evidence,
Againft the Lord Howard’s Evidence there were the
fame ObjeCtions as in the Lord Ruffel’s Trial, with
the addition of feveral other Perfons teftifying he
faid he knew not, nor belicved any thing of the
Matter ; and that he could not have his Pardon,
all he fwore others out of their Lives, which in
truth was the Senfe of his Expreflions.

The King’s Counfel indeed had thought of fome-
thing {ince the Trial of my Lord Ruffel, to palliate
the matter of the Lord Howard's Sayings. (for they
lean’d hard upon his Reputation, and look’d as if
he would perjure himfell at the Expence of fome
Perfons Lives, as his Words are n the Lord Ruf-
feP’s Trial) Would you, fay they, have had him
confefs’d the matter to thofe Perfons to whom he
had deny’d 1t ?

I think there 1s a difference between confeffing
and denying: Who alk’d him the Queltion ? What
did it avail him to deny it to the Perfons tettifying
againft him? and therefore when he voluntarily
faid a thing untrue, unatked, not provoked or com-
pelled to do it, and which could do him no good,
it was good Evidence of his untruth, and that no
credit ought to be given to what he fwore.

As for the laft parc of the Evidence, which was
about the Writing, both the Indi®ment and the
Evidence was defective,

As for the Evidence, if the Subje@-Matter of the
Writing had been Evidence of Treafon, the Indi&-
ment ought to have exprefs'd that he publifhd it,
which the Indi&ment in this cafe did not ; and upon
good Reafon, which was, that the Jury might be put
In mind, that the publithing of it was neceflary to
make it known ; whereas they very well knew that
the Evidence would not, nor did come uptoit, This
WS the firlt Indictment of High-Treafon, upon
wiich any Man loft his Life, for writing any thing
without publithing its * for in Fitzbarriss Indift-
ment, hg was charged with publifhing his Libel 3 and
fo in ail other Indi¢tments for Writing, and upon
good reafon @ for this being made an Overt- A& of
frexfon, it muft be an Evidence of a Defign to kill
or depofe the King, or the like; and as the Confe-
quence of what the Writing contain’d, which was,
vhat the Power was in the People, 9, being in 1ts
nature no other, nor urged by the King’s Courfel to
any otner Intent than to corrupt the Subjects Minds,
could not be Rvidence of fuch matter, unlefs proved
he had wriz and pubfithed ir, whereof the laft was
not pretended to be proved,
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‘That it was neceffary to be exprefs’d in the Indiét-
ment, and proved at the Trial, appears by the Refo-
tion of all the Judges of Zugland in Hugh Pine’s
Cale, reported in Cro. Car. fol. 117, at a time when
Prerogarive run pretty high; wherein, befides the
Refolution thatano Words charging the King with
any perfonal Vice, was Trealon, there is the Cafe of
one £eacham, 1 the 33d of Henry the Eighth, cited,
who was indiéted for Treafon, for treafonable Paf-
fages in a Sermon never preached, nor intended to
be preached, but found in Writing in his Study 5 he
was found guilty, but never executed; for many
Judges at thactime were of Opinion it was not Trea-
fon, as the Book fays: which I think, according to
the ILvidence here given, was the exprefs Cafe of
Colonel Sidney, admitting he writ the Book produ-
ced, and that the Paflages in it were treafonable.

And as this Inditment was an Original in the
particular before-mentioned, fo it was a fecond of
an Innuends Indi€ment of Treafon 3 Fitzbarris was
the brft. The Profecution againft Cary as I re-
member, was an Information, and Judgmene ar-
refted after a Verdiét, becaufe it was by Inauendo,
of which no Precedent could be produc’d; and al-
though in Actions for Words it was permitted, yet
in Criminal Matters, being penal, it was refolv’d
it ought not to be permitted, and certainly much
lefs in Treafon: and as this IndiCtment was an Q-
riginal in one part, and a fecond in another, the E-
vidence on it was an Original in another part,
which was proving the Book produc’d ro be Col.
Sidney’s Writing, becaufe the Hand was like what
fome of the Witnefles had feen him write ; an E-
vidence never permitted in a criminal Matter be-
fore, The Cafe of the Lady Carre was well ci-
by Colonel Sidney, againft whom there was an [n-
dictment or Information of Perjury 5 in which it
was refolv’d, that comparifon of Hands was no E-
vidence in any criminal Profecution ¢ And it muft
be own’d, that ar that time, befides Keeling and
Twifden, there then fat in that Court Sir Wadbam
IWindbam, whom all will own to have been the fe-
cond beft Judge which fut in H/effminfier- Hall fince
the King’s Reftoration : and if it be not Evidence
in a Profecution of Mifdemeanor, much lefs in
Treafon, as Col. Sidney faid ; which Inference, be-
fides the Reafon of the thing, is back’d by the Au-
thority of my Lord Coke.

Bur admitting Colonel Sidney wrote that Book,
and publithed ir; yet if it were not done with a
Defign to ftir the Subjeéts up inte a Rebellion, but
was writ and publifhed only dijputand: gralia, as
the Import of the Books fhews plainly it was, it
was no more Treafon, than the Difcourfe between
Blague and Mate Lee about taking the Tower was.
And fuppofe it was wrote with that Delign, yet 1t not
appearing when 1t was writ, how could a Jury, up-
on their Oaths, fay it was done with a Delign (0
raffe Rebellion againtt King Charles the Second,
when, for ought appeared, it was writ before he
was King, or thought of ? It might, for ought ap-
peared, be writ in King Charles the Firlt’s time, or
Cromwell’s time, and delign’d againft either of
them, or any foreign Prince, and therefore could
not be Treafon againft King Charles the Second.

The Evidence was an Original in this particular
alfo it was the firlt time chat ever a particular Ex-
preflion in a Writing was given in Evidenceagamnft a
Man in T'reafon, withoutreading the whole Writing,
and for a very good Reafon given by the Jury in
Fitzharris’s Cafe, which was, That there might be
' fomething




